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NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 20-F (“Annual Reportntains “forward-looking statements/ithin the meaning of the United Ste
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 199&thare not historical facts but rather reflect prgsent expectations concerning future re
and events. Words such as “anticipate,” “estimatexpects,” “may,” “projects,” “intends,” “plans,"believes,” “would,” “could” and word
and terms of similar substance used in connectitmamy discussion of future operating or finangalformance may identify forwatdeoking
statements. These forward looking statements ir¢lbdt are not limited to, statements regardifjgoir belief about our competitive posit
in the tracking, asset management and monitoringyearadio frequency identification (“RFID"), I®, and our ability to become a k
technological player in such markets; (ii) our bEkbout the commercial possibilities for our protsun such markets; (iii) our expectatiol
be able to leverage our current products and tdopies for the development of new applications pedetration to additional markets; (iv)
expectation to be able to continue to participatehie government market; (v) our belief about ohilitg to leverage our public sec
experience into the commercial sector; (vi) ouidfaegarding the effects of competitive pricing @mr margins, sales and market share;
our expectations regarding the effects of the lgateedings we are involved in on our sales aratating performance; (viii) our bel
regarding the fluctuations of our operating resuisluding our belief about the effects of inftati and the fluctuation of the NIS/dol
exchange rate on our operating results; (ix) oyeetations about our future revenues (or absencevehues); (x) our expectations abour
effects of seasonality on our revenues and opegra#nults; (xi) our expectations regarding develeptrand introduction of future produt
(xii) our expectations regarding revenues from existing customer contracts and purchase orderkjdimg, without limitation, the value
our agreement for our end-to-end system for a natimultidD issuing and control system with the governmerd &uropean country and «
expectations for increased revenues from saleddifianal technology and raw materials to such gomrent; (xiii) our expectations regard
the success of our active RFID and electronics toang technology; (xiv) our expectations regardihg effectiveness of our market
programs and generation of business from thosergmtgy including our ability to continue to sell guxts through strategic alliances and
belief about the role customer service plays insales and marketing programs; (xv) our anticipatiat sales to a relatively small numbe
customers will continue to account for a significgortion of our net sales; and (xvi) the anticggzhtiming of our product introductiol
Forwardiooking statements are subject to risks, unceitgrdand other factors which could cause actualteeu differ materially from tho
stated in such statements. Factors that could aausentribute to such differences include, butroelimited to, those discussed below ul
the captions “Risk Factors” in Item 3.D and “Oparatand Financial Review and ProspedtsTtem 5 and elsewhere in this Annual Repor
well as in our reports on Formk-submitted to the Securities and Exchange Comoiissir the SEC. We are not under any obligation
expressly disclaim any obligation, to update oeraltny forwardeoking statements, whether as a result of newrinétion, future events
otherwise. All subsequent forwatdeking statements attributable to us or any perscting on our behalf are expressly qualified igir
entirety by the cautionary statements containegf@rred to in this section, and you are cautiometto place undue reliance on these forwar
looking statements which speak only as of the datkis Annual Report.

In this Annual Report, all references to "SuperCatme “Company,” Wwe," "us" or "our" are to SuperCom Ltd., a companganize:
under the laws of the State of Israel, and its islidrges.

In this Annual Report, unless otherwise specifiediess the context otherwise requires, all refees to "$" or "dollars" are to U
dollars and all references to "NIS" are to New dfir&hekels. Except as otherwise indicated, thanfml statements of and informal
regarding SuperCom are presented in U.S. dollamcaordance with generally acceptable accountiiriptes in the United States"{US
GAAP" ). The representative rate exchange rate betweeNHIS and the dollar as published by the Bankscddl and effective on Decem
31, 2012 was NIS 3.7330 per $1.00.

Note: Unless otherwise indicated herein, the prices anantities of our ordinary shares provided in thisnal Report reflect the 1 to 5.88:
share consolidation (reverse share split) that wenpleted on April 29, 2007 and which became effedtir trading purposes as of May
2007.




PART |

ITEM 1. Identity of Directors, Senior Management and Advise

Not applicable.
ITEM 2.  Offer Statistics and Expected Timetables.

Not applicable.
ITEM 3. Key Information.

A. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial dasaof December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008or the years then ended
have been derived from our audited consolidateghfifal statements. These financial statements Ibase prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in theé¢hBtates, or U.S. GAAP, and audited by DeloitigiBman Almagor Zohar(a member of
Deloitte international), for the year 2012 andhir&anne & Co (member of Grant Thornton Internaidifor the years 2008-2011. The
selected consolidated financial data set forthwedoould be read in conjunction with and are qiealiby reference to Item 5, "Operating and

Financial Review and Prospects" and the consolidftancial statements and notes thereto and ditercial information included elsewhere
in this Annual Report. Historical results are netessarily indicative of future results.




SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Revenue:
Cost of Revenues

Gross Profit

Operating Expense
Research and Developmt
Selling and Marketin
General and Administrati\
Other (income) expenses

Total Operating Expenses

Operating (Loss) Incom
Financial (Expenses) Income, Net

Income (Loss) before Income T

Income Tax

Net Income (Loss) from continuir
operations

Loss from discontinued operations

Net income (loss

PER SHARE DATA:

Basic earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Diluted earnings (loss) from continuing operati
Basic and Diluted loss from discontinued
operations

Basic earnings (loss) per shi

Diluted earnings (loss) per she

SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Cash and Cash Equivalel

Marketable debt securitit

Trade receivables (net of allowance for douk
accounts of $ 1,726 and $ 134 a
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively)
Inventories, ne

Total Current Asset

TOTAL ASSETS

Total Current Liabilities

Accrued Severance P.

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(IN THOUSANDS OF U.S. DOLLARS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DA

2012 2011 2010 2009(*) 2008(%)

8, 94C 7,92z 7,38¢ 9,30¢ 18,11
1,61¢ 3,30¢ 2,057 3,36¢ 6,94¢
7,321 4,61¢ 5,33: 5,93¢ 11,16’
312 462 38¢ 89¢ 1,73¢
3,06( 3,50¢ 4,40¢ 5,131 9,90¢
857 732 1,98¢ 1,64¢ 2,611
1,08t (137) (396) 13C 8
5,31¢ 4,567 6,38( 7,807 14,26
2,00¢ 54 (1,04 (1,869) (3,095)
1,80¢ 99¢ (67¢) (620) (3,087)
3,811 1,044 (1,726) (2,489) (6,187)
1,00¢ (25) (50) (71) (137)
4,817 1,01¢ (1,776) (2,559 (6,319)
- - (18¢) (2,526) (6,039)
4,81 1,01¢ $ (1,969 $ (508) $ (12,35
0.1¢ 0.29 $ 011 $ (0.46 $ (1.22)
0.1% 0.0¢ $ 0.29 $ (0.46) $ (1.22)
- - 3 0.09 $ (0.46 $ (1.17)
0.1¢ 011 $ 032 $ 0.92) $ (2.39)
0.1¢ 0.0¢ $ 032 $ 0.92) $ (2.39)
22¢ 21E 197 65€ 812
1,59¢ 1,54z 752 857 84C
28C 26¢ 197 82 1,307
2,93( 2,131 1,66¢ 4,23¢ 6,447
3,74¢ 2,45¢ 2,00¢ 4,687 8,03t
2,79¢ 7,82¢ 4,50( 6,33: 10,42«
23€ 227 254 304 37¢
711 (5,607 (7,879 (6,27 (1,867)

(*) Due to the sale of certain business activittedanuary 2010, as described in Item 4 belowsdghmusiness activities are presented as

discontinued operations in accordance with U.S. BAA




B. Capitalization and Indebtednes
Not applicable.
C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of Procee
Not applicable.
D. Risk Factors
You should carefully consider the following riskgdther with the other information in this AnnuaRrt in evaluating our business,
financial condition and prospects. The risks andartainties described below are not the only ohes Wwe face. Additional risks ai
uncertainties not presently known to us or thatcamsider immaterial may also impair our businessragions, financial results and prospec
If any of the following risks actually occur, oundiness, financial results and prospects coulddened. In that case, the trading price of
ordinary shares could decline. You should alsorrefehe other information set forth in this AnndrRéport, including our financial statements

and related notes and the Section captioned “Nagarding Forward-Looking Statements.”

Risks Related to Our Business

We require capital to fund our growth and may needo reduce the scope of our operations if it is natvailable

In the past, we have partially funded our operatittmough the issuance of equity securities andextible bonds to investors and n
not be able to generate a positive cash flow frperations in the future. Continuation of our cutr@perations after utilizing our current cash
reserves may be dependent upon the generatiorditioa@l financial resources either through theigsse of additional equity or debt
securities or other sources of financing, genegatash flow from operations. Any additional finamgs will likely cause substantial dilution to
existing shareholders. If we are unable to obtaessary additional financing or generate cash bperations, we may be required to reduce
the scope of our operations. Even if we raise suithitional capital, we may be required to redueesitope of our operations and may need to
implement certain operational changes in orderetrehse our expenditure level. Our need for additioapital to finance our operations and
growth will be greater should, among other thirms, revenue or expense estimates prove to be ewtorr

The current economic and financial crisis may hava material adverse effect on our results.

The crisis of the financial and credit markets wailde in the second half of 2008 has led to an ectva slowdown worldwide, and
the outlook for 2013 is uncertain. A continuatiana@rsening of unfavorable economic conditions|udig the on-going credit and capital
markets disruptions, could have an adverse impaouo business, operating results or financial @@in a number of ways. We may
experience declines in revenues, profitability aash flows as a result of reduced orders, delaysceiving orders or in the completion of
projects, delays or defaults in payment or othetois caused by the economic problems of our cust®@Ind prospective customers. We may
experience supply chain delays, disruptions orrgih@blems associated with financial constrainteéaby our suppliers and subcontractors. Ir
addition, changes and volatility in the equity,ditend foreign exchange markets and in the conpeiandscape make it increasingly diffic
for us to predict our revenues and earnings iredture.

Adverse capital and credit market conditions may inpact our ability to access liquidity and capital.

The capital and credit markets have been experigrextreme volatility and disruption in recent yealVe need liquidity in our day-
to-day business activities to pay our operatingeesps.

We may be required to raise financing to fund querations. The availability of financing will dekon a variety of factors such as
market conditions, the general availability of dtethe volume of trading activities, the overalbdability of credit to the financial services
industry, our credit ratings and credit capacit/weell as the possibility that customers or lendexdd develop a negative perception of our
long- or short-term financial prospects. If oureimal sources of liquidity prove to be insufficigtiitere is a risk that external funding sources
might not be available or available at unfavorabtens.

Disruptions, uncertainty or volatility in the cagdiand credit markets may also limit our accessafmtal required to operate our
business. Such market conditions may limit ourigttib raise additional capital to support busingsswth.




This would have the potential to decrease bothability to attain profitability and our financialkekibility. Our results of operations,
financial condition, cash flows and regulatory talpposition could be materially adversely affedbgddisruptions in the financial markets.

Depending on the effect on our business of the cuant economic and financial crisis, we may face prééms in managing any decline in
our business.

If the current economic and financial crisis con#n to have an adverse impact on the demand fgroducts or their profitability, v
may face difficulties in managing a decline in business. Our success in handling a contracti@uobusiness will depend on our ability,
among other things, to:

* develop efficient forecast methods for evaluatimg prospective quantity of products that will bdesed by our customer

* control inventories of components ordered by ountiget manufacturers required to meet actual depiankliding but not limited to
handling the effects of excess inventories accutedlby such manufacturel

® reduce the costs of manufacturing our prodt
continue to collect receivables from our custonieffsill and in a timely manner; ar

* properly balance the size and capabilities of ooirkforce.

If we are unable to manage a decline in businesgomld fail to manage the costs associated wlithsglects of our business, which
would have a material adverse effect on our busiaes results of operations.

We derive a substantial portion of our revenue fromone customer, and the reduction of sales to thisistomer could adversely impact
our operating results by causing a drop in revenues

We depend on one customer for a substantial poofi@ur revenue. In 2012 and 2011, we derived 64%03%, respectively, of our
consolidated net revenue from one customer. A aukiat reduction in sales to, or loss of, our digant customer would adversely affect our
business unless we were able to replace the reweaueceived from the customer, which replacemeanimay not be able to find. Specifically,
changes that may negatively impact the politicad@rnomic stability and environment of the Europeauntry from which we derive most of
our consolidated net revenues, could adverselgtadigr business and future operations in such cpunt

As a result of this concentration of revenue frotiméted number of customers and our increasedmek on our e-1D, electronic
monitoring PURERF™ Suite and products, resulting from our sale ofairrassets and liabilities related to the electr@gicess control market
and our Government Services Division including 6®&MS and RAPTOR suites, our revenue has experiemickdfluctuations, and we expect
our revenue to continue to experience wide fluatmatin the future. Part of our sales is not reogrsales; therefore, quarterly and annual ¢
levels could fluctuate. Sales in any period mayb®indicative of sales in future periods.

Our reliance on third party technologies, raw materals and components for the development of some ofir products and our reliance
on third parties for manufacturing may delay product launches, impair our ability to develop and delier products or hurt our ability to
compete in the market.

Most of our products integrate third-party techigylohat we license and/or raw materials and compisrthat we purchase or
otherwise obtain the right to use, including: ogiaasystems, microchips, security and cryptograggeyinology for card operating systems,
which prevents unauthorized parties from tampewiitg our cards, and dual interface technology, Wheéoables cards to operate in both
contact and contactless mode. Our ability to puseland license new technologies and componentstfiodhparties is and will continue to be
critical to our ability to offer a complete line pfoducts that meets customer needs and technalagiguirements. We may not be able to
renew our existing licenses or to purchase compsraerd raw materials on favorable terms, if atlhike lose the rights to a patented
technology, we may need to stop selling or may needdesign our products that incorporate thdirietogy, and we may lose the potential
competitive advantage such technology gave usdditian, competitors could obtain licenses for tealogies for which we are unable to
obtain licenses, and third parties may develomabke others to develop a similar solution to ségissues, either of which could adversely
affect our results of operations. Also, dependarcthe patent protection of third parties may rifuird us any control over the protection of
technologies upon which we rely. If the patent pctibn of any of these third parties were compreahi®ur ability to compete in the market
could also be impaired.




We usually do not have minimum supply commitmendsfour vendors for our raw materials or componants generally purchase
raw materials and components on a purchase order basis. Altheegienerally use standard raw materials and conmpef@ our systems,
some of the key raw materials or components ariada only from from limited sources. Many of guoducts are only available from limit
sources. Even where multiple sources are availakddypically obtain components and raw materiedsifonly one vendor to ensure high
quality, prompt delivery and low cost. If one ofrauppliers were unable to meet our supply demandswve could not quickly replace the
source of supply, it could have a material adveffect on our business, operating results and fighcondition, for reasons including a delay
of receipt of revenues and damage to our busirgagation.

Delays in deliveries from our suppliers, defects igoods or components supplied by our vendors, or s in projects that are
performed by our subcontractors could cause our reenues and gross margins to decline.

We rely on a limited number of vendors and sub@mttrrs for certain components of the products wesapplying and projects we
perform. In some cases, we rely on a single sotgndor or subcontractor. Any undetected flaws imponents or other materials to be
supplied by our vendors could lead to unanticipatests to repair or replace these parts or masefiaien though there are multiple suppliers,
we purchase some of our components from singlelisnppo take advantage of volume discounts, whigsents a risk that the components
may not be available in the future on commercigdlgsonable terms, or at all. Although we beliewa there are additional suppliers for the
equipment and supplies that we require, we mayeaatble to make such alternative arrangements ghpnifone of our suppliers were unal
to meet our supply demands and we could not quigace the source of supply, it could cause aydef receipt of revenues and damage ou
business reputation. We depend on subcontract@deiquately perform a substantial part of our ptejdf a subcontractor fails to fulfill its
obligations under a certain project, it could deday receipt of revenues for such project and damag business reputation, and therefore
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrgserating results and financial condition.

We may pursue acquisitions or investments in compheentary technologies and businesses. We may be upsessful in integrating the
acquired businesses and/or complementary technol@s and businesses, the acquisition of which we mpyrsue in the future, and such
integrations could divert our resources and adverdg affect our financial results.

Other than Intelli-Site and SHC, we have not mauéhe last five (5) years any other acquisitidngegrating newly acquired business
or technologies into our business could divertrmanagement’s attention from other business con@rd<ould be expensive and time-
consuming. Acquisitions could expose our businessmforeseen liabilities or risks associated witteeang new markets. Consequently, we
might not be successful in integrating the acquimesinesses, technologies or products into outiegibusiness and products, and might not
achieve anticipated revenue or cost benefits.érfuture, we may pursue acquisitions of, or investts in, complementary technologies and
businesses. We may be unable to identify suitadijeiaition candidates in the future or to make ¢rasquisitions on a commercially
reasonable basis, or at all. Such acquisitionseptess number of potential risks and challengesdbald, if not met, disrupt our business
operations, increase our operating costs and retiecealue to us of the acquired company. For edanifpwe identify an acquisition
candidate, we may not be able to successfully metgadr finance the acquisition on favorable terinsaddition, future acquisitions could res
in customer dissatisfaction and performance problesith an acquired company, which could advers#gcaour business.

Costs arising from our future acquisitions and dispsitions could adversely affect our financial condiion.

Any acquisition or disposition that we make cowddult in the use of our cash or equity securitiesjrrence and assumption of debt,
contingent liabilities, significant acquisition-aééd expenses, amortization of certain identifiaii@ngible assets, and research and
development write-offs, and could require us twrdgoodwill and other intangible assets that coe&llt in future impairments that could
harm our financial results. We will likely incurggiificant transaction costs pursuing acquisitiondispositions, including acquisitions or
dispositions that may not be consummated. We mabaable to generate sufficient revenues fromagquisitions or dispositions to offset
their costs, which could materially adversely affear financial condition. The recognition of impaents of tangible, intangible and financial
assets results in a non-cash charge on the incategrent, which could adversely affect our resoiltsperations

Our dependence on third-party distributors, sales gents and value-added resellers could result in mketing and distribution delays,
which would prevent us from generating sales reveras.

We market and sell some of our products using aar&tof distributors covering the United States aads of Europe. We establish
relationships with distributors and resellers thlyloagreements that provide prices, discounts amet ataterial terms and conditions under
which the reseller is eligible to purchase ourayst and products for resale. These agreementsafjgra® not grant exclusivity to the
distributors and resellers and, as a general mattemot long-term contracts, do not have commitsyéor minimum sales, and could be
terminated by the distributor. We do not have age@s with all of our distributors. We are currgrghgaged in discussions with other
potential distributors, sales agents, and valuesdddsellers. Such arrangements may never beziabdind, if finalized, such arrangements
may not increase our revenues or enable us toapiefitability.
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Our ability to terminate a distributor who is n@rforming satisfactorily may be limited. Inadequpé&formance by a distributor cot
adversely affect our ability to develop marketshia regions for which the distributor is responsiéhd could result in substantially greater
expenditures by us in order to develop such markais operating results will be highly dependerug(i) our ability to maintain our existing
distributor arrangements; (ii) our ability to edtsl and maintain coverage of major geographicsaegal establish access to customers and
markets; and (iii) the ability of our distributorsales agents, and value-added resellers to sfihessarket our products. A failure to achieve
these objectives could result in lower revenues.

Third parties could obtain access to our proprietay information or could independently develop simila technologies.

Despite the precautions we take, third parties amgy or obtain and use our technologies, ideasykmow and other proprietary
information without authorization or may indepentiedevelop technologies similar or superior to tashnologies. In addition, the
confidentiality and non-competition agreements leetmvus and most of our employees, distributorschedts may not provide meaningful
protection of our proprietary technologies or otimellectual property in the event of unauthorizesé or disclosure. If we are not able to
successfully defend our industrial or intellectpadperty rights, we may lose rights to technologdieg we need to develop our business, whicl
may cause us to lose potential revenues, or welimagquired to pay significant license fees forube of such technologies. To date, we have
relied primarily on a combination of trade secned aopyright laws, as well as nondisclosure anérotbntractual restrictions on copying,
reverse engineering and distribution to protectgroprietary technology.

We have no patents or patent applications, angatgnts that we may register in the future mayigmonly limited protection for
our technology and may not be sufficient to providenpetitive advantages to us. For example, cotgpettould be successful in challenging
any issued patents or, alternatively, could devsloplar or more advantageous technologies on their or design around our patents. Any
inability to protect intellectual property rights our technology could enable third parties to cetapnore effectively with us and/or could
reduce our ability to compete. In addition, theferts to protect our intellectual property rigltisuld require us to incur substantial costs even
when our efforts are successful.

In addition, the laws of certain foreign countrieay not protect our intellectual property rightshe same extent as do the laws of
Israel or the United States. Our means of protgaiimr intellectual property rights in Israel, thaitéd States or any other country in which we
operate may not be adequate to fully protect aietlectual property rights.

Third parties may assert that we are infringing ther intellectual property rights.

We may face intellectual property litigation, whicbuld be costly, harm our reputation, limit ouilioto sell our products, force us
to modify our products or obtain appropriate liceisand divert the attention of management andieghpersonnel.

Our products employ technology that may infringettom proprietary rights of others, and, as a restdtcould become liable for
significant damages and suffer other harm to ogirass. Other than the litigation with Secu-Systetds as described in Item 8 below under
the caption “Legal Proceedings,” we have not bedajest to intellectual property litigation to datwe have received demand letters in the pa:
alleging that products or processes of ours abegach of patents, which we have denied, but nedés/have been filed in respect of such
claims.

Litigation may be necessary in the future to erdany patents we may obtain and/or any other @ueial property rights, to protect
our trade secrets, to determine the validity amgbe®f the proprietary rights of others, or to def@gainst claims of infringement or invalidity,
and we may not prevail in any such future litigatibitigation, whether or not determined in ourdawr settled, could be costly, could harm
our reputation and could divert the efforts andratton of our management and technical personagl frormal business operations. In
addition, adverse determinations in litigation cbrésult in the loss of our proprietary rights, jggbus to significant liabilities, require us to
seek licenses from third parties, prevent us freenking our technology or selling or manufacturing products, or require us to expend
significant resources to modify our products oerfpt to develop non-infringing technology, any dfieh could seriously harm our business.

Our products may contain technology provided tbyhird parties. Because we did not develop sachriology ourselves, we may
have little or no ability to determine in advanckeather such technology infringes the intellectuaperty rights of any other party. Our
suppliers and licensors may not be required tormmdfy us in the event that a claim of infringemenasserted against us, or they may be
required to indemnify us only with respect to itgetual property infringement claims in certainigdictions, and/or only up to a maximum
amount, above which we would be responsible forfarther costs or damages. In addition, we havermuification obligations to certain
parties, as well as to OTI, with respect to anyimgiement of third-party patents and intellectualgerty rights by our products. If litigation
were to be filed against these parties in connedtiith our technology, we would be required to deffand indemnify such patrties.
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We may be plaintiff or defendant in various legal ations from time to time.

From time to time, we are the defendant or pldimtifvarious legal actions, which arise in the natrwourse of business. We are
required to assess the likelihood of any adverdgments or outcomes to these matters as well asfeltranges of probable losses. A
determination of the amount of reserves requiredifese contingencies, if any, which would be chdrp earnings, is made after careful and
considered analysis of each individual action witin legal advisors. The required reserves may ahanthe future due to new developmen
each matter or changes in circumstances, suclelzasnge in settlement strategy. A change in theimedjueserves would affect our earnings in
the period the change is made. For more informatiothe above and our ongoing litigation see utitecaption “Legal Proceedings” in Item
8.

A security breach of our internal systems or thosef our customers could harm our business by adverkeaffecting the market's
perception of our products and services, thereby eesing our revenues to decline.

For us to further penetrate the marketplace, theetiglace must be confident that we provide effectiecurity protection for national
and other secured identification documents andscaithough we have not experienced any act of tsgf@oor unauthorized access by a third
party of our software or technology to date, ifeaual or perceived breach of security occurs inimiernal systems or those of our customers
regardless of whether we caused the breach, id@mersely affect the market's perception of @adpcts and services. This could cause t
lose customers, resellers, alliance partners ardithsiness partners, thereby causing our revanwdecline. If we or our customers were to
experience a breach of our internal systems, osinbas could be severely harmed by adversely affpttie market's perception of our
products and services.

We may be exposed to significant liability for actal or perceived failure to provide required products or services, which could damage
our reputation and adversely affect our business bgausing our revenues to decline and our costs tse.

Products as complex as those we offer may contadetected errors or may fail when first introducedvhen new versions are
released. Despite our product testing efforts astirtg by current and potential customers, it issfie that errors will be found in new
products or enhancements after commencement of eociahshipments. The occurrence of product defacesrors could result in adverse
publicity, delay in product introduction, diversiohresources to remedy defects, loss of or a dalayarket acceptance, or claims by custol
against us, or could cause us to incur additioosiscor lose revenues, any of which could advemsi#het our business.

Our failure or inability to meet a customer's expéons in the performance of our services, ordsd in the time frame required by
the customer, regardless of our responsibilitytfierfailure, could result in a claim for substaihtiamages against us by the customer,
discourage other customers from engaging us faetBervices, and damage our business reputatiooakiieproduct liability insurance, but
existing coverage may not be adequate to covenpatelaims.

We do not maintain insurance coverage for profesdithability, for theft by employees, nor do we imtain specific insurance
coverage for any interruptions in our business afi@ns. The successful assertion of one or moge lelaims against us that exceed available
insurance coverage, or changes in our insurandeigglincluding premium increases or the impogitid large deductibles or co-insurance
requirements, could adversely affect our busingssidnificantly increasing our costs.

Our efforts to expand our international operationsare subject to a number of risks, any of which coadl adversely reduce our future
international sales and increase our losses.

Most of our revenues to date have been generagedsdictions other than the United States. Oabitity to obtain or maintain
federal or foreign regulatory approvals relatingtte import or export of our products on a timehgis could adversely affect our ability to
expand our international business. Additionally;, imbernational operations could be subject to miper of risks, any of which could adversely
affect our future international sales and operatésylts, including:

« increased collection risks;

« trade restrictions;

« export duties and tariffs;

« uncertain political, regulatory and economic depetents;
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- inability to protect our intellectual property righ
« highly aggressive competitors; and
e  currency issues.

In addition, in many countries the national seguritganizations require our employees to obtaiarelece before such employees car
work on a particular transaction. Failure to reeaiv delays in the receipt of, relevant foreignlidjigations could also have a material adverse
effect on our ability to obtain sales at all oratimely basis. Additionally, as foreign governmeggulators have become increasingly string
we may be subject to more rigorous regulation byegemental authorities in the future. If we failadequately address any of these
regulations, our business will be harmed.

We have sought in the past and may seek in the fukito enter into contracts with governments, as wehs state and local governmental
agencies and municipalities, which subjects us tetain risks associated with such types of contrast

Most contracts with governments or with state aalagencies or municipalities (“Governmental Caciis”) are awarded through a
competitive bidding process, and some of the bgsitigat we expect to seek in the future will liket/subject to a competitive bidding
process. Competitive bidding presents a numbesks rincluding:

- the frequent need to compete against companiesaors of companies with more financial and marketisgurces and more
experience than we have in bidding on and perfogmiajor contracts

« the need to compete against companies or teantgdanies that may be long-term, entrenched incuislfena particular
contract we are competing for and which have, @salt, greater domain expertise and establishstbmer relations

« the substantial cost and managerial time and efferessary to prepare bids and proposals for estitzat may not be awarded
to us;

« the need to accurately estimate the resourcesastdéiructure that will be required to service firgd-price contract that we are
awarded and

» the expense and delay that may arise if our conmpgfprotest or challenge new contract awards rt@ds pursuant to
competitive bidding or subsequent contract modiitees, and the risk that any of these protestdhalienges could result in the
resubmission of bids on modified specificationsinoiermination, reduction or modification of thearded contrac

We may not be afforded the opportunity in the fattar bid on contracts that are held by other congsaand are scheduled to expire,
if the governments, or the applicable state orllagancy or municipality determines to extend tkisteng contract. If we are unable to win
particular contracts that are awarded through timepetitive bidding process, we may not be ableperate in the market for the products and
services that are provided under those contracta fmmber of years. If we are unable to win nentraet awards or retain those contracts, if
any, that we are awarded over any extended pasiodhusiness, prospects, financial condition asdlite of operations will be adversely
affected.

In addition, Governmental Contracts subject ussiksrassociated with public budgetary restrictiand uncertainties, actual contracts
that are less than awarded contract amounts, arwkation at any time at the option of the goveental agency. Any failure to comply with
the terms of any Governmental Contracts could tésw@ubstantial civil and criminal fines and pdieas, as well as suspension from future
contracts for a significant period of time, anywdfich could adversely affect our business by réagius to pay significant fines and penalties
or prevent us from earning revenues from Governaléntracts during the suspension period. Cartawallaf any one of our major
Governmental Contracts could have a material adveffect on our financial condition.

Governments, may be in a position to obtain gra@yéts with respect to our intellectual propetigm we would grant to other entiti
Governmental agencies also have the power, basédantial difficulties or investigations of thaipntractors, to deem contractors unsuitable
for new contract awards. Because we will engaghdérgovernment contracting business, we will bgexitio audits, and may be subject to
investigation, by governmental entities. Failuredmply with the terms of any Governmental Consaxiuld result in substantial civil and
criminal fines and penalties, as well as suspenfs@mn future contracts for a significant periodtiofie, any of which could adversely affect our
business by requiring us to pay the fines and piesadnd prohibiting us from earning revenues f@avernmental Contracts during the
suspension period.

Furthermore, governmental programs can experiealaysl or cancellation of funding, which can be edgctable; this may make it
difficult to forecast our revenues on a quartergogarter basis.
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Some of the markets that we target for a substantigart of our future growth are in very early stages of development, and if they do nc
develop, our business may not grow as much or asgfitably as we hope.

Some of the markets that we target for our futuoewh are small and need to develop if we are toea® our growth objectives. If
some or all of these markets do not develop, threiff develop more slowly than we anticipate, thenwill not grow as quickly or as profitably
as we hope. In February 2006, we announced thedimttion of a new technology and solution for asliiMracking people, objects and assets,
Active RFID Tracking technologies and products {&RIF"). This technology was developed in respoaggrdwing market demand for asset/
people tracking and monitoring solutions in the letand security and commercial markets.

Although we believe the government market is ailtio our success in the short term, we believelibth the government and
commercial markets will be critical to our lobgrm success. The development of these marketsl@pkind on many factors that are beyonc
control, including the following factors (and otHactors discussed elsewhere in the Risk Factfydhere can be no assurances that we will b
able to continue to apply our expertise and saohstideveloped for the government market to the catialanarket; (ii) the ability of the
commercial markets to adopt and implement the ad®i¥ID solutions; and (iii) the ability of our mageament to successfully market our
technologies to such government and/or commeraoigties.

The success of our active RFID & mobile based bugiss lines is dependent on several factors.

The success of our active RFID & mobile based assidines is dependent on several factors, inajuplinper new product
definitions, product costs, timely completion anttéduction of the new product, differentiationtbé new product from those of our
competitors, and market acceptance of the prodsatsell as our existing and potential customersying budgets for capital expenditures and
new product introduction. We have addressed thd tedevelop new products through our internal traent efforts. In light of the OTI
transaction and the sale of certain assets anitlitledbrelated to our electronic access controtkedand our Government Services Division
including our CSMS and RAPTOR suites, the activélR& mobile based business lines is anticipatedg@ur main revenue growth gener;
in the future. There can be no assurance that Weswecessfully identify new product opportuniteesd/or develop and bring new products to
market in a timely manner, or that the productst@atinologies developed by others will not rendergroducts or technologies obsolete or
noncompetitive. The failure of our new product depenent efforts could have a material adverse effamur business, results of operations
and future growth.

If our technology and solutions ceases to be adopt@nd used by government and commercial organizatis, we may lose some of our
existing customers and increase our losses.

Our ability to grow depends significantly on whatlgevernmental and commercial organizations adaptechnology and solutions
as part of their new standards and whether websikble to leverage our expertise with governmesdyects into commercial products. If the
organizations do not adopt our technology, we migtttbe able to penetrate some of the new market@ravtargeting, or we might lose some
of our existing customer base.

In order for us to achieve our growth objectivas;, RFID & mobile based technology must be adapteathd adopted in a variety of
areas, including, but not limited to:

« Public safety and Emergency;

« Community Monitoring and Law Enforcement
« Animal monitoring and management;

« Health Care and Home Care; and

« access control

Any or all of these areas may not adopt our RFIé&bile based technology.

We cannot accurately predict the future growth,ri@ny, or the ultimate size of the RFID & mobilased markets. The expansion of
the market for our products and services dependsrarmber of factors such as:

« the cost, performance and reliability of our praduend services compared to the products and ssrefcour competitors;
« customer perception of the benefits of our RFID &hite based solutions;

« public perception of the intrusiveness of thesetsmhs and the manner in which organizations usertformation collected,;
« public perception of the confidentiality of privatdormation;

« customer satisfaction with our products and sesyiaad

« marketing efforts and publicity for our productsiaervices.
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Even if our RFID & mobile based solutions gain widarket acceptance, our products and services otagdequately address mar
requirements and may not gain wide market acceptdhour solutions or our products and servicesiologain wide market acceptance, our
business and our financial results will suffer.

We need to develop our position as a provider of RB & Mobile based solutions and services to earn gh margins from our
technology, and if we are unable to develop such gition, our business will not be as profitable as &hope, if at all.

The increasing sophistication of our RFID & Mollilased technology places a premium on providinguvatige software systems and
services to customers, in addition to manufactuaind supplying RFID technology. While we have hahs early success positioning
ourselves as a provider of such services and sgst®@mmay not continue to be successful with ttieegy and we may not be able to captt
significant share of the market for the sophisédatolutions and services that we believe areyliteeproduce attractive margins in the future
significant portion of the value of our RFID & Mdbibased technology lies in the development ofasarft and applications that will permit the
use of RFID & Mobile based technology in the nelested new markets. In contrast, the margins ireivn manufacturing and selling RFID
& Mobile based technology can be relatively smatigd may not be sufficient to permit us to earntaaetive return on our development
investments.

The time from our initial contact with a customer to a sale may be long and subject to delays, whicbudd result in the postponement of
our receipt of revenues from one accounting periotb the next, increasing the variability of our resits of operations and causing
significant fluctuations in our revenue from quarter to quarter.

The period between our initial contact with a ptisrcustomer and the purchase of our productssendgces is often long and subject
to delays associated with the budgeting, appravélcmmpetitive evaluation processes that frequeagtpmpany significant capital
expenditures, particularly by governmental agendiég typical sales cycle for our government cusicenhas, to date, ranged from nine to 24
months and the typical sales cycle for our comna¢tistomers has ranged from one to six monthengthy sales cycle may have an impact
on the timing of our revenue, which may cause aarggrly operating results to fall below investapectations. We believe that a customer's
decision to purchase our products and serviceisisadionary, involves a significant commitmente$ources, and is influenced by customer
budgetary cycles. To successfully sell our prodaots services, we generally must educate our patentstomers regarding their use and
benefits, which can require significant time ansbrgces. This significant expenditure of time a@gburces may not result in actual sales o
products and services.

Due to the nature of our business, our financial ash operating results could fluctuate.

Our financial and operating results have fluctuateithe past and could fluctuate in the future frguarter to quarter and from year to
year for the following reason

« long customer sales cycles;

« reduced demand for our products and services;

« price reductions;

« new competitors, or the introduction of enhanceamtipcts or services from new or existing competjtors

« changes in the mix of products and services waipcostomers and distributors sell;

« contract cancellations, delays or amendments bipmess;

« the lack of government demand for our productssardices or the lack of government funds appropdiad purchasing our
products and service

- unforeseen legal expenses, including litigations;os

- expenses related to acquisitions;

« other non-recurring financial charges;

« the lack of availability, or increased cost, of lmmponents and subassemblies;

« the inability to successfully manufacture in volyraad reduce the price of, certain of our produsst

The lead time for ordering parts for and manufacturing our products can be significantly long and theefore based on forecasted
demands rather than actual orders received.

The lead time for ordering parts and materialslauittiing many of our products can be many monttsa4esult, we must order parts
and materials and build our products based on ésted demand. If demand for our products lagsfsignily behind our forecasts, we may
produce more products than we can sell, which eanltin cash flow problems and write-offs or wiitewns of obsolete inventory. If demand
for our products exceeds our forecasts, our busimzs/ be harmed as a result of delays to perfomtracs.
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Our markets are highly competitive and competitioncould harm our ability to sell products and servics and could reduce our market
share.

The market for RFID & Mobile based enabled prodisistensely competitive. We expect competitioinizrease as the industry
grows and as RFID & Mobile technology begins tovame with the access control and information tetdgy industry. We may not be able
to compete successfully against current or futorapetitors. We face competition from technologigabbphisticated companies, many of
which have substantially greater technical, finah@nd marketing resources than we do. In somescage compete with entities that have pre
existing relationships with potential customers.ths active RFID& Mobile enabled solutions markegp@nds, we expect additional
competitors to enter the market.

Some of our competitors and potential competitangeeHarger technical staffs, larger customer basese established distribution
channels, greater brand recognition and greatanéial, marketing and other resources than we doc@mpetitors may be able to develop
products and services that (i) are superior togppaducts and services, (ii) achieve greater cust@oeeptance or (iii) have significantly
improved functionality as compared to our existamgl future products and services. In addition,caumpetitors may be able to negotiate
strategic relationships on more favorable termn tha are able to negotiate. Many of our competitoay also have well-established
relationships with our existing and prospectivetomeers. Increased competition may result in oueerpcing reduced margins, loss of sale
decreased market share.

The average selling prices for our products mayieas a result of competitive pricing pressupgemotional programs and
customers who negotiate price reductions in exochdoglonger-term purchase commitments. The prichgroducts depends on the specific
features and functions of the products, purchateves and the level of sales and service suppguined. As we experience pricing pressure,
the average selling prices and gross margins fopmducts may decrease over product lifecycleses&same competitive pressures may
require us to write down the carrying value of &amyentory on hand, which could adversely affect operating results and earnings per share

We rely on the services of certain executive officeand key personnel, the loss of which could adveely affect our business.

Our future success depends largely on the effodsabilities of our executive officers and seni@magement and other key
employees, including technical and sales persofiihel.loss of the services of any of these personkl@dversely affect our business. We do
not maintain any "key-person" life insurance wiglspect to any of our employees.

Our ability to remain competitive depends in part a attracting, hiring and retaining qualified technical personnel; if we are not
successful in such hiring and retention, our busires could be disrupted.

Our future success depends in part on the avatiabfl qualified technical personnel, including pennel trained in software and
hardware applications within specialized fields.aAssult, we may not be able to successfully @ttaretain skilled technical employees,
which may impede our ability to develop, instathplement and otherwise service our software andvweme systems and to efficiently conduct
our operations.

The information technology and network securityusities are characterized by a high level of enggayobility and the market for
technical personnel remains extremely competitiveartain regions, including Israel. This competitmeans that (i) there are fewer highly
qualified employees available for hire, (ii) thestoof hiring and retaining such personnel are ragl (iii) highly qualified employees may not
remain with us once hired. Furthermore, there nepressure to provide technical employees withkstptions and other equity interests in
us, which may dilute our shareholders and increasexpenses.

The additions of new personnel and the departuexisting personnel, particularly in key positionan be disruptive, might lead to
additional departures of existing personnel andcchave a material adverse effect on our busirgsesating results and financial condition.

Our planned growth will place significant strain onour financial and managerial resources and may negively affect our results of
operations and ability to grow more.

Our ability to manage our growth effectively wilquire us:

« to continue to improve our operations, financiad amnagement controls, reporting systems and pooesd
« to train, motivate and manage our employees; and
« asrequired, to install new management informagigstems.
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Our existing management and any new members of geament may not be able to augment or improve egigtystems and controls,
or implement new systems and controls, in respamaaticipated future growth. If we are successfuchieving our growth plans, such
growth is likely to place a significant burden te toperating and financial systems, resulting @néased responsibility for our senior
management and other personnel.

Some of our products are subject to government redation of radio frequency technology, which could ause a delay in introducing, or
an inability to introduce, such products in the Unted States and other markets.

The rules and regulations of the United States fa@@»mmunications Commission (the "FCC") limit ttaelio frequency used by and
level of power emitting from electronic equipme@tr readers, controllers and other radio frequaachnology scanning equipment are
required to comply with these FCC rules which mequire certification, verification or registratiof the equipment with the FCC.
Certification and verification of new equipment uggs testing to ensure the equipment's complianitethe FCC's rules. The equipment mus
be labeled according to the FCC's rules to showptiance with these rules. Testing, processing effEC's equipment certificate or FCC
registration and labeling may increase developragdtproduction costs and could delay introductibour verification scanning device and
next generation radio frequency technology scanaqgpment into the U.S. market. Electronic equiphpeermitted or authorized to be used
by us through FCC certification or verification pealures must not cause harmful interference todie@ FCC users, and may be subject to
radio frequency interference from licensed FCC s1s®elling, leasing or importing non-compliant guouoent is considered a violation of FCC
rules and federal law, and violators may be sulifgae enforcement action by the FCC. Any faileredmply with the applicable rules and
regulations of the FCC could have a material adveffect on our business, operating results arahéiial condition by increasing our
compliance costs and/or limiting our sales in thtéd States.

We are exposed to special risks in foreign markeighich may make operating in those markets difficultand thereby force us to curtail
our business operations.

In conducting our business in foreign countriesanesubject to political, economic, legal, operadil and other risks that are inheren
in operating in other countries. Risks inherermperating in other countries range from difficedtiin settling transactions in emerging market
to possible nationalization, expropriation, priomirol and other restrictive governmental actioiie. also face the risk that exchange controls
or similar restrictions imposed by foreign govermta¢ authorities may restrict our ability to conviercal currency received or held by it in
their countries into U.S. dollars or other currescior to take those dollars or other currenci¢®bthose countries.

Risks Related to our Location and Incorporation inlsrael

Conditions in Israel affect our operations in Isra¢ and may limit our ability to sell our products and services.

We are incorporated under Israeli law and we apmrate offices located in Israel. Political, ecommend military conditions in Israel
may directly affect our operations and businesscéthe establishment of the State of Israel irBl@&4umber of armed conflicts have taken
place between Israel and its Arab neighbors andta ef hostility, varying from time to time in deg and intensity, has led to security and
economic problems for Israel. In addition, recewil anrest and political turbulence in various otries in the Middle East and Northern Afr
have shaken the stability of those countries. Trgtability may lead to deterioration of the pal#l and economic relationships that exist
between the State of Israel and some of these esinin addition, Iran has threatened to attackelsand is widely believed to be developing
nuclear weapons. Iran is also believed to haveoagtnfluence among extremist groups in the regsoich as Hamas in Gaza and Hezbollah i
Lebanon. These situations may potentially escafatiee future to more violent events which may etfisrael and us. Furthermore, several
countries still restrict trade with Israeli compasiand additional countries may impose such réstas a result of changes in the military
and/or political conditions in Israel and/or thersunding countries, which may limit our ability tieake sales in, or purchase components {
those countries. Any future armed conflict, poétimstability, continued violence in the regionrestrictions could have a material adverse
effect on our business, operating results and &igdaondition.

Our operations could be disrupted as a result of th obligation of management or key personnel to pasfm military service in Israel.

Generally, all nonexempt male adult citizens anna@ent residents of Israel under the age of 46|dar for reserves officers or
citizens with certain occupations, as well as ¢erfiemale adult citizens and permanent residentsraél, are obligated to perform annual
military reserve duty and are subject to beingethfbr active duty at any time under emergencyuanstances. While we have operated
effectively under these requirements since ourripm@tion, we cannot predict the full impact oflswonditions on us in the future, particule
if emergency circumstances occur. If many of oupleyees are called for active duty, our operatiarisrael and our business, operating
results and financial condition may be adverselgcéd.
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Your rights and responsibilities as a shareholder il be governed by Israeli law and differ in some espects from the rights and
responsibilities of shareholders under U.S. law.

We are incorporated under Israeli law. The rigimd sesponsibilities of holders of our ordinary sfsaare governed by our
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Associatiand by Israeli law. These rights and respolitséisi differ in some respects from the
rights and responsibilities of shareholders indgplJ.S. corporations. In particular, a sharehotifean Israeli company has a duty to act in
good faith and customary manner in exercising hisen rights and fulfilling his or her obligatiot®vard the company and other shareholders
and to refrain from misusing his power, includiagyong other things, when voting at the general imgeif shareholders on certain matters.
Israeli law provides that these duties are applectibshareholder votes on, among other thingsndments to a company’s articles of
association, increases in a company’s authorizatestapital and mergers and interested party tctinsa requiring shareholder approval. A
shareholder also has a general duty to refrain #®ploiting any other shareholder of his or hehtégas a shareholder. In addition, a contro
shareholder of an Israeli company or a sharehaeWtherknows that it possesses the power to deterthmeutcome of a shareholder vote or
who, under our Articles of Association, has the pot appoint or prevent the appointment of a diinear executive officer in the company,
has a duty of fairness toward the company. Istaelidoes not define the substance of this dutwbhéss, but provides that remedies generall
available upon a breach of contract will apply afsthe event of a breach of the duty to act watinfess. Because Israeli corporate law has
undergone extensive revision in recent years, tisdittle case law available to assist in underdiag the implications of these provisions that
govern shareholder behavior.

Provisions of Israeli law may delay, prevent or oterwise encumber a merger with or an acquisition obur company, which could
prevent a change of control, even when the terms efich transaction are favorable to us and our shatelders.

Israeli corporate law regulates mergers, requeadér offers for acquisitions of shares above §ipddhresholds, requires special
approvals for transactions involving directorsja#fs or significant shareholders and regulatesratiatters that may be relevant to these type
of transactions. Furthermore, Israeli tax consitiena may make potential transactions unappeatingstor to some of our shareholders whose
country of residence does not have a tax treatly siael exempting such shareholders from IsragliThese provisions of Israeli law could
delay, prevent or impede a merger with or an adiprisof our company, which could prevent a chaofeontrol, even when the terms of such
transaction are favorable to us and our sharehobid therefore potentially depress the price ofbares.

Our shareholders may face difficulties in the enfotement of civil liabilities against SuperCom Ltd. ad its officers and directors and
Israeli auditors or in asserting U.S. securities a claims in Israel.

Most of our officers and directors and our Israeiditors are residents of Israel or otherwise eesigtside of the United States.
SuperCom Ltd. is incorporated under Israeli law ésgrincipal office and facilities are locatedigmael. All or a substantial portion of the
assets of such persons are or may be located eutkttie United States. Therefore, service of meemon SuperCom Ltd., such directors and
officers and our Israeli auditors may be difficidteffect in the United States. It also may béidift to enforce a U.S. judgment against
SuperCom Ltd., such officers and directors andisnaeli auditors as any judgment obtained in th@ddinStates against such parties may n
collectible in the United States.

In addition, it may be difficult to assert U.S. gdties law claims in original actions institutedlsrael. Israeli courts may refuse to
hear a claim based on a violation of U.S. securitgs because Israel is not the most appropmatsrf to bring such a claim. In addition, e
if an Israeli court agrees to hear a claim, it rdatermine that Israeli law and not U.S. law is agafile to the claim. If U.S. law is found to be
applicable, the content of applicable U.S. law nigsproved as a fact, which can be a time-consuamiggcostly process. Certain matters of
procedure will also be governed by Israeli law. fEhis little binding case law in Israel addresdimgse matters.

However, subject to time limitations, Israeli cauntay enforce a U.S. judgment in a civil matter, if

. adequate service of process has been effectedhantbtendant has had a reasonable opportunity hedrel;

. the judgment and its enforcement are not contatiie law, public policy, security or sovereignfitioe State of Israe
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. the judgment was rendered by a court of cderggurisdiction, in compliance with due process #he rules of private
international law prevailing in Israe

. the judgment was not obtained by frauduleeans and does not conflict with any other validgjuént in the same matter
between the same parti

. no action between the same parties in theesaatter is pending in any Israeli court at theetiime lawsuit is instituted in a U.S.
court; anc
. the U.S. courts are not prohibited from enforcindgments of the Israeli cour

Fluctuations in the exchange rate between the U.8ollar and foreign currencies may affect our operaing results.

We incur expenses for our operations in IsraeléwNisraeli Shekels ("NIS") and translate these artwounto U.S. dollars for purpos
of reporting consolidated results. As a resultihations in foreign currency exchange rates magsely affect our expenses and results of
operations, as well as the value of our assetdianitities. Fluctuations may adversely affect twenparability of period-to-period results. In
addition, we hold foreign currency balances, prilpatlS, which will create foreign exchange gaindasses, depending upon the relative
values of the foreign currency, at the beginning @nd of the reporting period, affecting our nebime and earnings per share. We may use
hedging techniques in the future (which we curgedt not use), but there is no assurance that Wéevable to eliminate the effects of
currency fluctuations. Although the dollar depaticin in relation to the NIS during 2012 had notexrdely affected our financial results,
exchange rate fluctuations could have a materiadise impact on our operating results and stodep(BSee also Item 5, "Impact of Inflation
and Currency Fluctuations".)

We may not pay dividends in the near future and anyeturn on investment may be limited to the value bour ordinary shares.

Under the Israeli Companies Law, dividends may dmaypaid out of profits legally available for dibtrtion and provided that there is
no reasonable concern that such payment will ptev&from satisfying our existing and foreseealliigations as they become due. In
addition, a competent court may approve, as peotiomto be filed by a company in accordance whih israeli Companies Law requirements,
a payment which does not meet the profits tesyigea that the court was convinced that there issasonable concern that such payment wil
prevent the company from satisfying its existing &reseeable obligations as they become duee davnot pay dividends, our ordinary
shares may be less valuable because a return ormyastment will only occur if our share price apgiates.

Risks Pertaining to Ownership of Our Ordinary Shares

The trading market for our ordinary shares has lowliquidity, which could make it difficult for our sh areholders to sell their shares at
desired prices and amounts.

Our ordinary shares currently are traded on the @BCtronic Quotation Service. Currently, we do maet the initial listing
conditions of the Nasdag Stock Market. The margeshares quoted on the OTC is typically less tighian that for shares listed on the Nax
Stock Market. This could make it more difficult four shareholders to sell their shares at desiiedpand amounts.

Our ordinary shares may become subject to the “pennstock” rules of the SEC which will make transactbns in our ordinary shares
cumbersome and may reduce the value of our shares.

Trading in our ordinary shares may become subgettt¢ "penny stock" regulations adopted by the SHfése regulations generally
define a "penny stock" to be any equity securitt thas a market price of less than $5.00 per shabgect to certain exceptions, such as if the
issuer of the security has net tangible assetsdass of $2,000,000. The market price of our omgishares is currently less than $5.00 per
share and our net tangible assets as of Decemb2032 were approximately $3,743,000. While weebadithat our ordinary shares are
currently exempt from the definition of penny stptliere is no assurance that they will continueg@xempt from such definition. If our
ordinary shares become subject to the “penny stadk’s of the SEC, it will make transactions in otdinary shares cumbersome and may
reduce the value of our shares. This is becausafptransaction involving a penny stock, unlessngpt, Rule 15g-9 generally requires:

« that a broker or dealer approve a person's acdéoutransactions in penny stocks; and

« the broker or dealer receive from the investor itew agreement to the transaction, setting fdréhidlentity and quantity of the
penny stock to be purchast
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In order to approve a person's account for trammsacin penny stocks, the broker or dealer must:

« obtain financial information and investment expecie objectives of the person; and
« make a reasonable determination that the trangacitiopenny stocks are suitable for that persontlaagerson has sufficient
knowledge and experience in financial matters todgable of evaluating the risks of transactionseinny stocks

The broker or dealer must also deliver, prior tg ansaction in a penny stock, a disclosure sdeqaiescribed by the SEC relating
the penny stock market, which, in highlight form:

« sets forth the basis on which the broker or deakde the suitability determination; and
« that the broker or dealer received a signed, writatement from the investor prior to the trarisact

Disclosure also has to be made by the brokdealer about the risks of investing in pentoglss in both public offerings and in
secondary trading and about the commissions payalieth the broker-dealer and the registered sgmtative, current quotations for the
securities and the rights and remedies availabém tmvestor in cases of fraud in penny stock @atiens. Finally, monthly statements have to
be sent disclosing recent price information forpleany stock held in the account and informationhenlimited market in penny stocks.

Generally, brokers may be less willing to exectaegactions in securities subject to the "penngiétaules. This may make it more difficult -
investors to dispose of our ordinary shares andecawdecline in our market value if we were to beesubject to the said "penny stock” rules.

We have shareholders that are able to exercise suastial influence over us and all matters submittedo our shareholders.

Sigma Wave Ltd., or Sigma, is the beneficial owofestpproximately 46% of our outstanding shares.|&ee 6E for more
information. Such ownership interest gives Signeahility to influence and direct our activitiesibgect to approvals that may be required for
related-party transactions pursuant to Israeli lBigma will have influence over the outcome of nmoatters submitted to our shareholders,
including the election of directors and the adaptd a merger agreement, and such influence coakkras a less attractive acquisition or
investment target. Because the interests of Sigmadiifer from the interests of our other sharekddd actions taken by Sigma with respect to
us may not be favorable to our other shareholders.

If persons engage in short sales of our ordinary sires, including sales of shares to be issued updretexercise of our outstanding
warrants, options and convertible bonds, the pricef our ordinary shares may decline.

Selling short is a technique used by a sharehotdiake advantage of an anticipated decline irptiee of a security. In addition,
holders of options, warrants and convertible bomillssometimes sell short knowing they can, in effeover the sale through the exercise of
an option, warrant or convertible bond, thus logkiim a profit. A significant number of short satgsa large volume of other sales within a
relatively short period of time can create downwgarrelssure on the market price of a security. Futhies of ordinary shares issued upon
exercise of our outstanding warrants, options owvedible bonds could cause even greater declmései price of our ordinary shares due tc
number of additional shares available in the maunketn such exercise or conversion, which could erage short sales that could further
undermine the value of our ordinary shares. Youd;daherefore, experience a decline in the valugonir investment as a result of short sales
of our ordinary shares.

A change in tax laws of any country in which we opate could result in a higher tax expense or a higr effective tax rate on our
worldwide earnings.

We conduct our operations in various countriesughmut the world. Tax laws and regulations are lgigbmplex and subject to
interpretation. Consequently, we are subject tmghn tax laws, treaties and regulations in anevbeh countries in which we operate,
including treaties between nations. Our incomeetgpense is based upon our interpretation of théatas in effect in various countries at the
time that the expense was incurred. A change isethax laws, treaties or regulations, or in therjretation thereof, or in the valuation of our
deferred tax assets, which is beyond our controlccesult in a materially higher tax expense bigher effective tax rate on our worldwide
earnings.
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A loss of a major tax dispute or a successful taxhallenge to our operating structure, intercompany picing policies or the taxable
presence of our subsidiaries in certain countriesatild result in a higher tax rate on our worldwide @rnings, which could result in a
significant negative impact on our earnings and casflows from operations.

Our income tax returns are subject to review aradrération. We do not recognize the benefit of inedax positions we believe are
more likely than not to be disallowed upon challeby a tax authority. If any tax authority succeBgfchallenges our operational structure or
the taxable presence of our subsidiaries in cecaimtries; or if the terms of certain income taeaties are interpreted in a manner that is
adverse to our structure; or if we lose a mateaaldispute in any country, our effective tax rateour worldwide earnings could increase
substantially and our earnings and cash flows foperations could be materially adversely affected.

While we believe that we are not currently a PFIC ad do not anticipate becoming a PFIC, United Statetax authorities could treat us
as a "passive foreign investment company,” which add have adverse United States federal income taxisequences to United States
holders.

Generally, if for any taxable year, 75% or moreof gross income is passive income, or at least 80fte value of our assets,
averaged quarterly, are held for the productioroofyroduce, passive income, we will be characterizs a passive foreign investment com|
("PFIC") for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Aedmination that we are a PFIC could cause our §h8reholders to suffer adverse tax
consequences, including having gains realized esalte of our shares taxed at ordinary income,redtfter than capital gains rates, and being
subject to an interest charge on such gain. Similas apply to certain "excess distributions" madth respect to our ordinary shares. A
determination that we are a PFIC could also havadaerse effect on the price and marketabilitywfshares. If we are a PFIC for U.S. fed:
income tax purposes, highly complex rules wouldappU.S. holders owning our ordinary shares. Adaagly, you are urged to consult your
tax advisors regarding the application of suchguBee "ltem 10.E. Taxation - Passive Foreign lmvest Company" below.

Being a foreign private issuer exempts us from cesin SEC requirements.

We are a foreign private issuer within the meamifigules promulgated under the U.S. SecuritiesExthange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”). As such, we are exdrom certain provisions applicable to U.S. puldaompanies including:

« the rules under the Exchange Act requiring thadilivith the SEC of quarterly reports on FormQ@nd current reports on Fol
8-K;

» the sections of the Exchange Act regulating thizisation of proxies in connection with shareholdezetings;

« the provisions of Regulation FD aimed at prevenigsgiers from making selective disclosures of nitarformation; and

- the sections of the Exchange Act requiring insiderfde public reports of their stock ownershipdanading activities and
establishing insider liability for profits realizém any “short-swing” trading transaction (i.e.purchase and sale, or sale and
purchase, of the issU's equity securities within less than six mont

Because of these exemptions, investors are natafiche same protections or information genewmlbilable to investors holding
shares in public companies organized in the U.S.

ITEM 4. Information on the Company.
A. History and Development of the Compa
History of the Compan:

SuperCom Ltd. was incorporated in Israel, as a @mpimited by shares, on July 4, 1988, under tiowipions of the then-current
Israeli Companies Ordinance. We now operate urdelstaeli Companies Law, which became effectivE&eruary 1, 2000, and the Israeli
Companies Ordinance (New Version) 1983, as amended.

From our incorporation in 1988 until 1999, we wardevelopment-stage company primarily engagedsi@areh and development,
establishing relationships with suppliers and ptétcustomers and recruiting personnel with a fooo the governmental market. In 2001, we
implemented a reorganization plan, which we conepléh 2002. As a result of the reorganization, wegaeded our marketing and sales efforts
to include the commercial market with a new lined¥anced smart card and identification technokgieducts, while maintaining our
governmental market business.

During 2002, we sold, in three separate transagtidgth third party purchasers, our entire equitgiiast in a U.S. subsidiary, InkSure

Technologies, Inc., for which we received aggregateeeds of approximately $6,600,000. In Decergbé®, we discontinued the operations,
disposed of all of the assets and terminated th@ames of two U.S. subsidiaries, Genodus Inc.kmnotek, Inc.
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We became a publicly-traded company on NASDAQ Eerstpck market (formerly EASDAQ) on April 19, 1999n October 23,
2003, following the closing of the NASDAQ Europest market, we transferred the listing of our oagtinshares to the Euronext Brussels
stock market under the symbol “SUP,” which becaMBNC” after our corporate name change on May 14,72@0We applied for delisting of
our shares from the Euronext Brussels stock maalket,our application was approved on May 6, 20fi6ctive August 4, 2008.

On July 29, 2004, we filed a Registration StatenoenEorm 20-F under the Exchange Act. When the fegion Statement became
effective on September 29, 2004, we became a foggigate issuer reporting company under the Exghakct. On November 5, 2004, our
ordinary shares began trading in the U.S. on th€ Btilletin Board under the symbol “SPCBF.OB," whicHowing our names change on
May 14, 2007 became “VUNCF.OB.” On August 23, 2080 ordinary shares were approved for trading lo@ NASDAQ Capital Market
under the symbol “VUNC” and the trading of our sson the OTC Bulletin Board ceased. On Octob20Q9 our shares were delisted from
The NASDAQ Capital Market and beginning on the saaie, our shares were quoted under the ticker sytftUNCF” on the OTC. On
March 18 2013, following the change of our nameuooriginal name SuperCom Ltd., our shares aréeglonder the ticker symbol "SPCBF"
on the OTC. For more information and details on the history ofthe listing of our ordinary shares see under Iltem 8 "Offer and Listing
Details".

During the fourth quarter of 2006, we establishedwa wholly-owned subsidiary, S.B.C. Aviation Ltincorporated in Israel) which
began operations in 2007 and focused on executfogmation technology and security projects.

In 2006 we decided to sell our E-ID Division in erdo focus on opportunities in the U.S. for outESbusiness, which we later sold
in 2010, and current active RFID tracking businesaad on December 31, 2006, we sold the E-ID @inito On Track Innovations Ltd., or
OTI for 2,827,200 restricted ordinary shares of @¥flwhich 212,040 shares were related to constgdas part of the direct expenses of this
transaction). As of December 31, 2008, we solthallOTI shares received in the OTI transaction.

Simultaneously, we entered into a service and guagieement with OTI under which (i) OTI agreect as our subcontractor and
provide services, products and materials necessargrry out and complete certain projects thaewet transferred to OTI (the “Existing
Projects”), and (ii) OTI granted us an irrevocalerldwide, non-exclusive, non-assignable and mandferable license to use in connection
with our Existing Projects, certain intellectuabperty rights transferred to OTI as part of the @&hsaction, for the duration of such projects.
The sale of our E-ID division and the services smgply agreement are collectively referred to easi the “OTI transaction”.

In November 2006, we raised $3,156,500 throughstheance of units consisting of convertible bormighe Convertible Bonds and
warrants. Units valued at $2,500,000 were issuddté@an Howard Master Fund Limited or “BH” and tsnvalued at $656,500 were issued to
Special Situation Funds (SSF)For more details on the terms of the Convertible Bods and warrants see Item 5B "Liquidity and capital
resources"

On July 3, 2007, we entered, through our wholly-ed/subsidiary, Vuance, Inc., into an agreement“@C Purchase Agreement”)
to acquire all of the issued and outstanding stagltal of Security Holding Corp. (“SHC") from Homa@d Security Capital Corporation
(OTCBB: HOMS.OB (“HMSC")) and other minority shareholders (collegty, “Sellers”)for approximately $4,335,000 in our ordinary shi
and direct expenses of approximately $600,000 iroadinary shares. The closing date of this trati@aavas August 28, 2007 (“SHCClosing

Date”). SHC was a Delaware corporation engaged in the businessaafifacturing and distributing RFID-enabled solusioaccess control
and security management systems. As consideratiché acquisition of the stock capital of SHC,9I,@26 of our ordinary shares, which
were subject to certain lock up mechanism, wengeidgo the Sellers. HMSC further agreed that aBH€ Closing Date it will grant an
irrevocable power of attorney to our Chairman &f Board of Directors to exercise all voting rigtgtated to its SuperCom shares until the sal
or transfer of such SuperCom shares by HMSC tonafffiliated third party in an arm’s-length transant We guaranteed all of the obligations
of Vuance Inc. under the SHC Purchase Agreememnin®the fourth quarter of 2007, SHC and its suilasids were merged into Vuance Inc.

In September 2007, we announced that we had entered definitive agreement to acquire, throughdis. subsidiary, Vuance Inc.,
the credentialing division of Disaster Managemesitifons Inc., ("DMS") for approximately $100,000¢ash and up to $650,000 in royalties
that will be paid upon sales of the advanced fesponder credentialing system (named “RAPTOR”)rduthe first twelve months following
the acquisition (the closing was in August 200 HisTacquisition complemented our former incidenhagement solutions business and adde:
the RAPTOR to our former CSMS business (both ofcwhiere sold in 2010).
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On March 25, 2009 we and our subsidiary, Vuance tmmpleted the acquisition of certain of the tssaad certain of the liabilities
Intelli-Site, pursuant to an asset purchase agreedaded March 6, 2009 with Intelli-Site and Intaigd Security Systems, Inc (“ISSI”). On the
date of closing, Vuance Inc. agreed to pay Intgile $262,000 payable in cash and in our sharegljwirere subject to a certain lock up
mechanism) and included a contingent consideratiap to $600,000 based upon certain conditions.

In January 2010, Vuance Inc., our wholly-owned &libsy, completed the sale to OLTIS Security Systénternational, LLC
(“OSSI”) of certain of its assets (including centaiccounts receivable and inventory) and certaitsdifabilities (including certain accounts
payable) related to our electronic access conteskat. OSSI paid Vuance Inc. $146,822 in cashadulition, OSSI paid off a loan that Vuance
Inc. took from Bridge Bank, National AssociatiowWe and Vuance Inc. no longer have any liabilitiesogiated with such loan.

In January 2010, we and our subsidiary, Vuance tmnpleted the sale of certain of the assets andin of the liabilities of Vuance
Inc. related to our Government Services Divisidre (tVuance CSMS Business”), pursuant to a certssetgpurchase agreement between us,
Vuance Inc., WidePoint Corporation (“WidePoint")daAdvance Response Concepts Corporation. WideaidtVuance Inc. $250,000. In
addition, WidePoint agreed to pay Vuance, Inc. aimam earn-out of $1,500,000 over the course crddr years 2010, 2011, and 2012,
subject to the performance of certain financiauiegments of the Vuance CSMS Business during ehtiose years.

On January 21, 2010, we incorporated a new whaollpea subsidiary in the state of Delaware, PureRRid, to focus on marketing
and sales for our active RFID products and solstion

On March 22, 2010, we entered into a SubscriptigreAment with a private investor, Mr. Yitzchak Badpg pursuant to which at a
March 23, 2010 closing we issued 1,538,461 ordisagres of the Company (the “Transaction Sharestpnsideration of a one-time cash
payment in the amount of $200,000. Simultaneoudily execution of the Subscription Agreement, weeeed into a Warrant Agreement with
Mr. Babayov, pursuant to which he received a wartthre “Warrant”) to purchase up to 553,846 of ortdinary shares for an exercise price of
$0.15 per share.

On August 24, 2010, BH entered into an Absoluteigksaent and Transfer of Bond and Warrant (“Assigntfjewith Sigma, our
controlling shareholder. Pursuant to the AssignmigHttransferred to Sigma all of its rights in #BEl Convertible Bonds and warrants. The
Assignment had no impact on our assets or liaddlitr our financial results.

In October 2010, we entered into an agreemenhsale of our entire equity interest in SuperCasiaARacific Ltd., for no
consideration. As part of this sale, we assigndtiequrchaser certain outstanding loans due by ®uperCom Asia Pacific in the amount of
$1.4 million.

At the annual general meeting of our shareholdeld bn September 12, 2010, our shareholders rastdvafford certain of our
creditors and bond holders with the opportunitgagavert the amounts owed to them into our ordirshigres, by means of a set off against the
total outstanding debt to such creditor, at a poic®0.09 per ordinary share, subject to forgivers$0% of our total outstanding debt to such
creditor ("Debt to Equity Conversion proposal”).r@oard of directors was authorized to set all oteems of the Creditor Arrangement,
including, inter alia, its timetable. In May 201dyr shareholders subsequently approved the ineiwsiadditional creditors to be included
under the Creditor Arrangement. As of April 15120all creditors and bond holders, which wereraiéd with the opportunity to convert the
amounts owed to them into our ordinary shares dtadpted our offer, and following the conversiomelbt pursuant to the aforesaid offer, we
allotted to those creditors a total of 29,552,0L.&wr ordinary shares, and 2,544,457 warratsr(more information on the Debt to Equity
Conversion see ITEM 18, NOTE 1.d-Extinguishment oEiabilities . ).

Recent Developmen
At the beginning of 2012, we have decided to legeran our experience in the e-ID market and toeiase our position in the market;

(i) by proposing other new technologies and sohgito our existing e-ID customer, (ii) by securotber e-ID projects and solutions by virtue
of setting joint ventures with partners presentimyldwide presentence, and with companies holdomgmementary theologies and products.
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During 2012 we have elected to broaden our adwitito the following growing vertical markets: &®nic Monitoring for
community and law enforcement, Real Time Healtheawst Homecare, and Livestock and Animal Managemssing its RFID& Mobile
PureRF suite of products.

Principal capital expenditures and divestitur

From January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012, outat@xpenditures totaled approximately $28 ,0@dnpared to $23,000 during
2011 and $4,000 during 2010.

See Item 4 - History of the Companyor information on our sale of SuperCom Asia; thie©f certain assets and liabilities of Vue
Inc., related to our Government Services Divisiamg the sale by Vuance Inc., of certain of its sard liabilities related to our electronic
access control market .

Corporate information

Our headquarters are located in Israel at Noltondddl4 Shenkar Street, Hertzliya Pituach 46725t4el and our telephone number
is +972-9-889-0800. Our Internet website addres$dtp://www.SuperCom.com. The information contdin@ our corporate websites is not a
part of this Annual Report.

Our agent for SEC matters in the U.S. only, is Bienda Gebhardt; the President of our subsidiangRFid Inc., whose address is
10533 W. Manor Park Drive West Allis, WI 53227-122dlephone number (414)301-9435.

B. Business Overvie

From 1988 through 2006, our principal business tivaglesign, development and marketing of advaneedtscard and identification
technologies and products for governmental and cermial customers in Europe, Asia and Africa. Asalioed in Item 4.A (“History and
Development of the Company”) above, we decidectlicosir E-ID Division in 2006 to focus on opporttias for our RFID and former CSMS
businesses (sold in 2010).

Prior to January 2010, we offered three principabtpct suites to our customers: an Active RFID sotuunder the AAID brand
(currently the PureRF Suite), Electronic Accesst@iiSuite and Credentialing & Incident Managem@nite. On January 28, 2010, our wholly
owned subsidiary, Vuance, Inc., completed the shéertain of its assets and certain of its lidigii related to our electronic access control
market, and on January 29, 2010, we and Vuancectmapleted the sale of certain of the assets artdin of the liabilities of Vuance, Inc.
related to our Government Services Division inahgdour Critical Situation Management System andi€néaling suites (see a description of
this transaction under the caption “History of @@mpany” in ltem 4.A).

Following the divestitures indicated above, froni@@ntil 2012, we had been focusing our sales amdeting efforts on our core
competencies, active RFID technology, our PureREeSund existing e-ID projects for an Eastern EespCountry.

During 2012, we had elected to expand our actiwitiethe ID and e-ID market, and to design, develog market, identification
technologies and solutions to governments in Eyrdp@ and Africa. Furthermore we have decidebdraaden our activities into new mark
and to design, develop and market, Tracking anditdong Solutions to selected growing vertical metek (i) Electronic Monitoring for
community and law enforcement,(ii) Real Time Heedite and Homecare, and (iii) Animal Managementr €alutions are empowered by our
propriety RFID & Mobile PureRF suite of hybrid Hardre and software field proven components.

Our Strategy

In 2006, we sold our E-ID division in order to facon opportunities mainly in the U.S. for our aetRFID enabled solutions and
CSMS businesses. The sale was completed on Dec&hp2006 (See a description of this transactioteim 4.A above). In August 2007, we
completed the acquisition of SHC, a Delaware capon engaged in the business of manufacturingdgstdbuting RFID-enabled solutions,
access control and security management systendanbrary 2010, we completed the sale of certaihessets acquired in the acquisition of
SHC, including our Electronic Access Control Saitel our Credentialing & Incident Management Suitéotus on our core competencies,
active RFID technology and solutions and e-ID prb@nd solutions.
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Our sales strategy is to:

« Develop strong strategic relationships with ouribeiss partners, including our systems integratodsdistributors who introduc
our solutions into their respective marke

- Employ dedicated sales personnel to work closetl siich business partners. Our sales personnelngizet and adapt solutions
that can then be installed and supported by thesiedss partner

« Expand our active RFID & Mobile activities into ethgeographical areas such as Europe, Israel arigasa

« Leverage on our reputation, talented personnelpapjgct management capabilities in the e-ID martkesecure additional
project and solutions In the growin-ID and «Government marke!

« Leverage on our customer base, superior PureRFidHgbite of products, and IT management capalslitie secure additional
long terms contracts with governments and comnesiti the community and law enforcement mar

« Develop strong strategic relationships with busingartners in the Healthcare and Home care maikeatsder to introduce our
superior solutions into their designated mark

We have a multi-pronged approach to growth:
« Grow organically:

Increase existing produ’ value (e.g., offer products which are smaller,dretind cost effective

Develop and offer turnkey solutions for the seldatertical markets

Design and build superior applications using oustég products and technologie

Develop new products/solutions that meet our degaghvertical marke’ needs; ani

We are dedicating sales teams, coordinatedigh our U.S. and Israel corporate offices tbraele products/solutions
directly or through our growing number of businpastners

SENSINES

» Increase our activities and sales in the e-ID a@be growing markets, by establishing joint ventuwéth partners worldwide.
» Providing our customer in the e-ID markets, advdrteehnologies and solutions for additional e-1ll @aGOV needs.

« Make synergistic acquisitions. Continue to “leagfrgrowth through strategic acquisitions of comganivith complementary
products/solutions or market activities and experéein our designated vertical marke

Enhancing Our Presence

We have broadened our marketing efforts for oub edhd Electronic Tracking and Monitoring produatsl asolutions and technology
to the Global market.

In order to expand our presence, we may pursuestigns of or joint venture with one or more comfes that have an existing
customer base and proved revenues or that camaskenffer us business synergies in USA, Europeimatige Far East

Identifying New Applications for Our Technologies

Our management and its external advisors had filthtind designated three main vertical market®twrtechnologies in the securi
law enforcement, healthcare and homecare, aninddiastock management. At a time when both govemtrand the private sector are faced
with unprecedented challenges to protect publietgafssets and personal privacy, we expect taidxdar forward-looking technologies and
solutions to the U.S. market and to other geogragbhegions.

Leveraging Knowledge and Experience
We believe that our exposure to the governmentaket@nd experience in customizing solutions inedid group will contribute to
our ability to develop and market solutions in @ireless ID and monitoring vertical markets. Weeird to leverage such knowledge and

experience in order to respond to the needs ofiegiand potential customers in the security, lafoecement, healthcare, homecare, and othe
markets.
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We also believe that our exposure to the governahemdrket and experience in solutions in our e4tBug will contribute to our
ability to market additional solutions in the graygie-ID and e-Gov Markets. We intend to leveragdhdanowledge and experience in order to
provide our existing customer with advanced tecbgiels and solutions for additional e-ID and e-GQ@¢éds, and in order to locate and secure

additional projects in those markets .
Seeking Partnerships with Other Relevant Companies

To bolster our sales and marketing efforts:

« We may seek to partner with distributors that ciierais new relationships within the commercialteeas well as with
government agencies and help us increase our gaugtareadth and penetrate other selected vertiagkets. In addition, w
may seek to partner with system integrators expeeé in handling lar¢-scale security project

« We may seek to enter into strategic partnershipls @@mpanies that offer technologies that compldroars .

« We may seek to enter into joint ventures with ott@npanies in order to secure and operate largegtsan different
countries, where we have no presence or local dadges

Current Businesses

E-ID and e-Gov. (>'-ID)

From 1988 to 2006, our principal business was #gsigih, development and marketing of advanced sraaditand identification
technologies and products for governmental and cermiad customers in Europe, Asia and Africa. Oulaations and solutions included e-
passports, visas and other border entry documeational identification and military, police andnamercial access identification.

In our e-ID Division, we developed a fully autond@oduction line for picture identification contiess smart cards, and offered our
customers raw materials, maintenance and serviezagnts. We provided identification solutions aodtactless smart card production
equipment for governmental and commercial custonfeslescribed above, as of the selling date oténtin e-ID division to OTI, OTI
agreed to act as our subcontractor and providecsesiproducts and materials necessary to carrgrditomplete certain projects that were
transferred to OTI. The customers and contractaioe-ID Division in 2012, 2011 and 2010 includbkd following:

« A contract for a national multi - ID with a Europeeountry - In 2006, we entered into additionalggnent with a European
country which we estimate will generate approxirya®50 million in revenues during the d@ar term of the project. Under t
agreement we will provide the end-to-end systenmafpational multi-ID issuing and control systemefiédncan be no assurance,

however, that we will realize the full estimatedueaof this agreement.

The project, which commenced during the third geraot 2006, involves the implementation of an ema#d national 1D
issuing and control system based on our systeningheies the supply of digital enrollment and preiittn equipment,
software, maintenance and supply of secured rawnmbfor the production of various national 1D dsu

- Biometric Visa system to a European Government
o Automated Smart Card Production System to a Euro@a/ernment
o E-Passport with a European Country

At the beginning of 2012, we have decided to legeran our experience in the e-ID market and hac@&ldd to increase our position
in the market; (i) by proposing other new techn@egnd solutions to our existing e-ID customéy bl securing other e-ID projects and
solutions by virtue of setting joint ventures withrtners presenting worldwide presentence, andamithpanies holding complementary
theologies and products (iii) by retaining an cansiing group of market executives and experts,gbaed us to propose and implement the
best ID and e-ID solutions to the global markets.
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Currently, our e-ID and e-Gov. divisioj{ID ™ offers complete (or partial) End-to-End, Turnkeyl @omprehensive Solutions for
various governmental ID programs, such as:

o Population Registries & Censuses

o National elD/IDs

0 Biometric Passports & Visas

o Smart Driving/Vehicle Licenses

o Biometric Border Control & Immigration
o Voters & Elections

o Internal Revenue & Social Security

0 e-Government services.

Our providedy -ID ™ systems comply with regional and international déads and enhance the usability by using

smartcard applications; our system central seiimetade redundancy capability that provides digasteovery or failover between
sites, all solutions issue financial informatioraccountability, transaction auditing and manag@nnformation reports, which eliminates
the fraud related to people.

Our end-to-end solution covers all that is neededfgovernment to offer the particular servicéh® public: business process
engineering, solution design and integration, hamdwand software implementation, operator and fe@mtraining, and even financing. The
solution covers all the workflows foreseen in thistem, managerial and operational reports, andfatieg to the entire relevant environment
for the government's business.

Security (SBC Aviation)

In 2007, we entered into an agreement (the “Airpanteement”) with an international airport in EueoJEIA") to provide an
integrated perimeter security system and a boraletral system. The establishment of the security @ntrol system began during the third
quarter of 2007. Under the Airport Agreement, otimesystem has been fully implemented and a trasssom and acceptance report is signed
by the EIA, we would enter a ten-year maintenareréop. During the last few weeks our wholly-ownetbsidiary, SBC Aviation Ltd., had
negotiated an additional agreement with EIA, punst@awhich EIA confirmed the final acceptance armhsmission of the system and
committed to make a final payment for the systeecdft change of the management of EIA has ledd&day in the completion and execution
of the agreement. We committed to provide finalrigrto the system within three months after the paiyment. Also, the parties agreed not tc
enter into the ten-year maintenance period. Furiegptiation is undergoing with the new managemémiA, in order to secure the full
payments as was agreed between the parties.

RFEID

Our RFID Division is a RFID Management Solution Rder. With our PureRF™ Suite; RFID hardware-sofvhybrid asset-
tracking management platform, streamlines critieaburces (Asset and personal) Management sceiamesh the introduction of the
integrated platform of Movement Detection Solut{MDS) and a Real Time Locating System (RTLS): Pl#8Renabling to monitor, track,
locate, secure and manage multiple objects/itentsjsaoperated by a secure, proprietary knowledgged, interactive, user-friendly interface.

Our RFID Division features a unique all-in-one bpsicticed active RFID technology accompanied wilkanced complementary
services for the transportation, healthcare anddwame, Security and safety, Building and accesseation SuperCom PureRF™ innovative
solution assists companies in efficiently utilinéherwise ,wasted time and resources and is theaittt solution for remote hands-off
authentication, validation, identification, locatiand real-time monitoring of valuable resourcesspnal and assets.

We listens carefully to its strategic businessmgg and works closely to develop integrated smhstithat meet their exacting
specifications and requirements, and we fully suppor partners and customers from pre-sales ngethrough installation and operation.
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Products

We expect our PureRF Suite; a complete locatioitipngLP) system solution based on active RFIDt&ghnology, to offer
commercial customers and governmental agenciesieaiasset management capabilities. The systefmecdaployed in physical security
applications. The basic components of our PureRte $clude:

- an active tag, which contains a microchip equippadsmitter, an antenna, a capacitor and battéagletd to the item to be
identified, located or tracke:

« aweb-based management system, which capturesacespes the signal from the active tag, and mapbggured to provide
an alert upon the occurrence of a trigger ev

« 0ne or more wireless receivers;

« 0ne or more activators; and

« the tag's initializer, which is used to configune PureRF tags.

The PureRF Suite provides a secure, precise ateffestive means to positively identify, locategdk, monitor, count and protect
people and objects, including inventory and vekiclghe ability to reliably identify and track theowement of people and objects in real time
will enable PureRF Suite customers to detect urmaizthd movement of vehicles, trace packages anthicans, control personnel and vehicle
access to premises, and protect personnel in haraworking environments and disaster managemeattisins.

Customers

Most of our customers are also our business partner, system integrators and distributors whimduce our solutions into their
prospective markets. As part of our decision tosjgl® complete solutions to customers, we anticiplze in year 2013 and on, the number of
direct commercial and governmental customers wiltease.

Market Opportunity

Radio frequency identification, or RFID, is a wigleldopted technology in the auto-identification kedrwhich addresses electronic
identification and location of objects. Typicalpn RFID tag or transponder is attached to or inm@fed into a product or person. A handheld
or stationary device that receives the radio fragyavaves from these tags is used to determine ltheitions. Prior to the adoption of RFID,
users identified and tracked assets manually dsas¢hrough the use of bar code technology. Thek#ions were limited because of the neec
for ongoing human intervention and the lack ofansaneous location capabilities. RFID technologsspsses greater range, accuracy, speed
and lower line—of-sight requirements than bar cedénology.

Our PureRF Suite can track items simultaneoustyyiging an alert when a tagged item is removed feopne-determined area, passe:
through a marked checkpoint or otherwise movesb¥dlieve that potential customers for our PureRREeSamd products include the following:

Civil and Military GovernmentsOur PureRF Suite can provide secure access tamtraestricted areas and map and track visitors
throughout a facility. Many high security faciliigincluding governmental and industrial facilitieeed access monitoring. For
example, nuclear power plants, national reseatmbrédories and correctional facilities need to satly and securely monitor
inbound and outbound activity. Line of sight idéietis, such as identification cards, suffer frorolgems that our RFID technology
readily overcomes, including reliance on human alisgdentification, forgery and tampering. Our PuFeRuite also enables
identification and location of individuals in rested areas in real time.

Airport and Port Security Infrastructure Provider®©ur PureRF Suite can offer solutions for the g¢pamtation sector by enabling
common carriers to monitor, track, locate and mamagltiple baggage items simultaneously, therebycimg risk of lost baggage,
increasing customer service and improving security.

Businesses and Industrial Compani&ur PureRF Suite can be used by businesses.eshippd warehouse operators to manage ant
track cartons, pallets, containers and individteahs in order to facilitate movement, order pickimyentory verification and reduce
delivery time. In addition, industrial companiesicaanage and track their mobile equipment and t&désbelieve that our PureRF
Suite can increase efficiency at every stage adtass/entory and supply chain management by englbding-range identification and
location of products and removing the need forrtheman visual identification. Our products alsarkvim conjunction with existing
bar coding and warehouse systems to reduce thefrleks, theft and slow speed of transfer.

Hospitals and Care HomesThe healthcare sector has successfully utiliZzédDRechnologies for the purposes of infant pratecin
maternity wards and wanders prevention in care Isaimeilar to our asset and personnel location dedtification system targeted at
the secure facility and hazardous business se@orsPureRF Suite can provide solutions for thdtheare sector for asset, staff,
patient and medical record location and identifaratWe believe that as hospitals continue to uggtheir security measures, RFID
technology will be utilized in real time locatiopstems that are designed to immediately locateopsyssquipment and objects within
the hospital.

Livestock OwnersOur PureRF Suite can be used as livestock idestiibn, tracking and safeguarding system
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EM Division

The Electronic Monitoring division was establishearder to provide a set of comprehensive and opgolutions for the Law
enforcement and Resident industries. As a techgatogpvator in the arena of Radio Frequency Idaatfon and Geographical location, we
make use of its proven and solid platforms in otdegeliver a state-of-the-art EM solution.

Being an innovative group, our EM division strivesdesign and provide the best possible productésf@ustomers. We believe in
long term relationship with our customers and padnwhile keeping a transparent and open commtimica

Being who we are, allows us to be fast, flexibld attentive. Equipped with the technological knalge, and with senior personal
from the EM industry on board, we can tailor-madaryEM program, from Tag to servers, and from iltesi@n to monitoring. We make
technology that serves justice

Research and Development

Our past research and development efforts help¢adl aishieve the goal of offering our customers mglete line of products and
solutions. We spent $ 0. 3 million, $0.5 millionda$0.4 million on research and development in 2@021 and 2010, respectively. These
amounts were spent on the development or improveafaur technologies and products, primarily ie ireas of wireless ID. We will
continue to research and develop new technologiépeoducts for the e-ID and wireless ID and mamitp market. There can be no assuranc
that we can achieve any or all of our researchdavelopment goals.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our systems and products worldwide thradigtribution channels that include direct sales taditional distributor or reseller
sales. We currently have 5 employees that arettlirecgaged in the sale, distribution and suppbdus products through centralized
marketing offices in distinct world regions, inclad the employees of PureRFid, Inc., which sell products in the U.S. We are also
represented by several independent distributorgesellers with which we often have distributiomesgments.

Our distributors and resellers sell our systemspmnducts to business enterprises and governmentags and act as the initial
customer service contact for the systems and ptediey sell. We establish relationships with distirors and resellers through written
agreements that provide prices, discounts and atlggrial terms and conditions under which thellesis eligible to purchase our systems
and products for resale. These agreements gendmiipt grant exclusivity to the distributors aedellers and, as a general matter, are not
long-term contracts, do not have commitments farimim sales and could be terminated by the digtsibVe do not have agreements with
all of our distributors.

Sales Analysis
Sales by Geographic Destinatio
The following table provides a breakdown of tomalenue by geographic market (all amounts in thadsahdollars):

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Total Total Total
revenues revenues revenues
Europe $ 8,637 % 7,49¢ % 6,77(
Asia Pacific - - -
United State: 217 344 53¢
Israel 86 80 83

$ 8,94C $ 7,92: $ 7,38¢
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The following table provides a breakdown of tomalenue by product category (all amounts in thousafdlollars):

Year ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Raw materials and equipme $ 3,85¢ $ 582: % 3,822
Maintenance, royalties and project management 5,08¢ 2,10( 3,561

$ 8,94C $ 7,92: $ 7,38¢

Customer Service

We believe that customer support plays a signiticale in our sales and marketing efforts and inahility to maintain customer
satisfaction, which is critical to our efforts tailal our reputation and grow in our existing maskets well as to our efforts to penetrate and
grow in new markets. In addition, we believe that imteraction with our customers and the custohieesiback involved in our ongoing
support functions provide us with information orstmmer needs and contribute to our product devetopmiforts. We generally provide
maintenance services under separate, tailor mademgnts. We provide our service through custoraaring, local third-party service
organizations, our subsidiaries, or our persorineluding appropriate personnel sent from any afadtices in U.S., or Israel. We generally
provide our customers with a warranty for our prtdifor 12 months. Costs incurred annually by ugpfoduct warranties have to date been
insignificant; however, there can be no assuranaethese costs will not increase significantiyhia future.

Manufacturing and Availability of Raw Materials

Our manufacturing operations consist primarily @terials planning and procurement, quality comfatomponents, kit assembly ¢
integration, final assembly, and testing of fulignfigured systems. A significant portion of our mafacturing operations consists of
integration and testing of off-th&helf components. All of our products and systemigther or not manufactured by us, undergo selevals
of testing, including configuration to customer @rsland testing with current release softwarey poiaelivery.

Our manufacturing consists of a range of RFID potsland dD and EM products or systems. We outsource theufaaturing fo
our PCB to a number of different suppliers. We siiimes commit to a longerm relationship with such suppliers in exchangeréceiving
competitive pricing. All PCBs and enclosures ar#tlo our engineering specifications. All PCBs aeeeived in our manufacturing facilities
Israel and then tested, assembled, and retesté@r @toducts are off-thghelf products, which we purchase from a numbedifiérent
suppliers.

All of the activities for elD and EM Projects, such as purchasing, logistidggration, training, installation and testinge alone b
our employees. In cases that we do not have alepatsentative, we use local third parties graupservice providers, who perform accorc
to our instructions and under our supervision.

Competition

We assess our competitive position from our expegeand market intelligence, and from reviewingdtparty competitive reseal
materials.

We believe that Zebra, RF Code, Axcess, Ekahau,efagnd, VT and Aeroscout are potential competjtiorsiche areas, to us w
respect to our wireless ID tracking products aridtgms.

We believe that G4S/Guidanq8GFS: LN), Serco ("SRP: LN"), 3M Monitoring, BuddBU (Geo), iSecureTrac, SecureAler
("SCRA:US") are potential competitors, to us wigéspect to our EM products and solutions.

We believe that 3M/Cogent, Tata, IRIS, Zetes, OAUiehl bauerm, Oberthur, Sagem, Morpho, Gemalto,d@arDrukerei, Nadra ¢
potential competitors, to us with respect to oliDgroducts and solutions

Our management expects competition to intensifhasmarkets in which our products and solutions mete continue to develc
Some of our competitors may be more technologicadighisticated or have substantially greater teahnfinancial, or marketing resour:
than we do, or may have more extensive gsting relationships with potential customersthalgh we believe that our products com
technologies and features that provide custometts ecimplete and comprehensive solutions, we caassdre that other companies will
offer similar products in the future or develop gwots and services that are superior to our predactl services, achieve greater cust
acceptance or have significantly improved functiipaas compared to our products and services.ebs®d competition may result in
experiencing reduced margins, loss of sales oredsed market shares.
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Due to the developing nature of the markets forwiteless ID, EM, dD, products and solutions and the ongoing chamgehis
market, the aboveientioned list may not constitute a full list of af our competitors and additional companies maycbnsidered o
competitors.

Intellectual Property

Our ability to compete is dependent on our abttitylevelop and maintain the proprietary aspectsuotechnology. We rely on a
combination of trademark, copyright, trade secret ather intellectual property laws, employee dnrtitparty nondisclosure agreements,
licensing and other contractual arrangements. Hewehiese legal protections afford only limitedtpation for our proprietary technology and
intellectual property.

In addition, the laws of certain foreign countrieay not protect our intellectual property rightshe same extent as do the laws of
Israel or the U.S. Our means of protecting ourdlietéual property rights in Israel, the U.S. or atkier country in which we operate may not be
adequate to fully protect such rights.

Licenses

We license technology and software, such as operatistems and database software, from third gefdreincorporation into our
systems and products and we expect to continuetés mto these types of agreements for future yetsd Our licenses are either perpetual or
for specific terms.

As part of the OTI Transaction, we received anviomable, worldwide, non-exclusive, non-assignablg @on-transferable license to
use, in connection with the Existing Projects,ititellectual property that we transferred to OTén@rally speaking, the license will be valid
for the duration of all Existing Projects.

Government Regulation

We are subject to certain labor statutes and taiogprovisions of collective bargaining agreemdigtveen the Histadrut (the Gene
Federation of Labor in Israel) and the Coordinaiugeau of Economic Organizations, including thaustrialists’ Association, with respect to
our Israeli employees. In addition, some of ouaédiremployees are also subject to minimum mangatdlitary service requirements. (See the
discussion under the caption “Employees” in Secboof Item 6.)

Generally, we are subject to the laws, regulataomg standards of the countries in which we opematior sell our products, which
vary substantially from country to country. Thefidifilty of complying with these laws, regulationsdastandards may be more or less difficult
than complying with applicable U.S. or Israeli rigions, and the requirements may differ.

Employees

As of December 31, 2012 we had 19 full-time empésyeompared to 14 full-time employees as of Deegr@h, 2011 and 22 full
time employees as of December 31, 2018ee the discussion under the caption “Employeesti item 6D.)

Our ability to succeed depends, among other thimgsn our continuing ability to attract and rethighly qualified managerial,
technical, accounting, sales and marketing pergonne

Seasonality

Our financial and operating results have fluctuareithe past and our financial and operating restould fluctuate in the future. The
period between our initial contact with a potentiastomer and the sale of our products and serisagften long and subject to delays
associated with the budgeting, approval and coniyetevaluation processes that frequently accomgammificant capital expenditures,
particularly by governmental agencies. The typsedés cycle for our government customers has mrdaged from three to 36 months and the
typical sales cycle for our commercial customerstaaged from one to six months. A lengthy sale&tecsnay have an impact on the timing of
our revenue, which may cause our quarterly opagatsults to fall below investor expectations. Védve that a customer's decision to
purchase our products and services is discretipmarglves a significant commitment of resources] & influenced by customer budgetary
cycles or federal and state grants. To successfallyour products and services, we generally radstate our potential customers regarding
their use and benefits, which can require significene and resources. This significant expenditfréme and resources may not result in
actual sales of our products and services.
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The lead-time for ordering parts and materials fauitting many of our products can be many montlsaAesult, we must order parts
and materials and build our products based on ésted demand. If demand for our products lagsfsignily behind our forecasts, we may
produce more products than we can sell, which eanltin cash flow problems and write-offs or wiitewns of obsolete inventory.

C. Organizational Structure

The diagram below shows SuperCom Ltd.'s holdingssigubsidiaries and affiliates as of December2®12 and April 15, 2013:

Lid.
|
100% 100% 100% 68 100%

100

Vuance, Inc. (formerly, SuperCom Inc.)

Vuance, Inc., incorporated in Delaware, is our Wholvned subsidiary, and was responsible for ourdd®vities and operations U.S until
January 2010, the Company discontinued its operatiter the sale of its main operation at Janud®0a&0, and it is presented in the financial
reports as discontinued operations.

Vuance - RFID Inc.

Vuance - RFID Inc. (formerly, Pure RF Inc.) incorgied in Delaware in November 2005. Upon its incosion we owned 80% of its shares.
During January 2006, Vuance - RFID Inc. establish@dolly owned Israeli subsidiary, Vuance RFID .L@fdrmerly, Pure RF Ltd.), which
focuses on new technologies and solutions forrdeking of people and assets. During February 20Q@nce - RFID Inc. became our wholly-
owned subsidiary. In August 2007, all the employaeguance RFID Ltd. were transferred to us, andesember 31, 2007 we purchased all
of the assets and liabilities of Vuance RFID Ltén@nencing year 2008, Vuance RFID Inc. engaged iacéimity to distribute complementary
locks and electronic locks. This activity was tamated in the fourth quarter of 2008.

S.B.C Aviation Ltd.
S.B.C Aviation Ltd., incorporated in Israel in tfoairth quarter of 2006, is our wholly-owned subaigli which commenced operations in 2007
and focused on executing information technology sewlrity projects.

SuperCom Slovakia A.S. (“SuperCom Slovakia”)

SuperCom Slovakia, incorporated in Slovakia, waabdished to implement a national documentatiofgetan the Republic of Slovakia.
SuperCom Slovakia is 66% owned by us and 34% owgeelB Group a.s., a privately held Czech comp&msspite our ownership of almost
two-thirds of the economic interests of SuperCoov&kia, our voting power in SuperCom Slovakia i%650
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PureRFid, Inc.
PureRFid, Inc., incorporated in Delaware, is ouplyhowned subsidiary, and as of January 2010spaasible for our sales and marketing,
and support in the U.S.

SuperCom Asia Pacific Limited (“SuperCom Asia Paciic”)
SuperCom Asia Pacific, incorporated in Hong Koray been our whollypwned subsidiary since November 2003, and had tesponsible fo
our sales and marketing efforts in Asia Pacifictha third quarter of 2009, we began to wind dowarations of SuperCom Asia Pacific. We
sold our entire equity interest in SuperCom AsiaifRg for no consideration pursuant to a purchageeement entered into on or about Octobe
21, 2010.
D. Property, Plants and Equipmer
We do not own any real estate.

We lease approximately 685 square meters of fiesilin Hertzliya Pituach, Israel under a two-yesske contract, currently expiring
on September 3 0, 2013. According to the agreentemimonthly fee (including management fees) maximately $15,000.

The total annual rental fees, net of rent incomenfsubleases, for 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $194 106 ,000 and $121,000,
respectively. The total annual lease commitment2@d.3 are $141,000 .

All assets are held in the name of SuperCom Ltd.isnsubsidiaries.
The following table details our fixed assets aBetember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

December 31
2012 2011 2010
(In thousands of US Dollars)

Cost:
Computers and peripheral equipm $ 274 $ 254 % 262
Office furniture and equipmel 19¢ 194 197
Leasehold improvements 29 24 45
501 472 504
Accumulated depreciation:
Computers and peripheral equipm 253 24¢€ 244
Office furniture and equipmel 142 12¢ 12C
Leasehold improvements 12 2 30
40¢ 37€ 394
Depreciated cost; $ 922 $ 96 $ 11C

Depreciation expenses for the years ended DeceBih@012, 2011 and 2010 were $32,000 $28,000 an@d®d, respectively.

The property & equipment also include intangiblseds in amount of $72,000, which been fully de@an.
ITEM 4A.  Unsolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable.
ITEM 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospects.

A. Operating results

The following section should be read in conjunctigth our consolidated financial statements andrétated notes thereto, which h
been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP andiwéie included in Item 18. Some of the statememtsained in this section constitute
“forward-looking statements.” These statementstedia future events or to our future financial pemiance and involve known and unknown
risks, uncertainties and other factors that mapeawr actual results, levels of activity, perfonceor achievements to be materially different

from any future results, levels of activity, perf@nce or achievements expressed or implied by fewalard-looking statements. (See “Note
Regarding Forward Looking Statements” at the bagmof this report, and “Risk Factors” In Item 3D)

33




Revenues

The Company and its subsidiaries had generatechdij@rity of their revenues from existing e-1D aretwrity long term services
contracts, providing their customers with, suppejntenance, royalties, training and installatiéllowing delivery of such services, usually
revenues from the sale of such services are rezegni

The Company and its subsidiaries had generated sbtheir revenues(less than 10%) from the sakecti¥e RFID & Mobile Based
products. Following delivery of such products,alurevenues from the sale of such products aregmized .

Some of our products and services are tailoreddetitine specific needs of our customers. In oxleatisfy these needs, the terms of
each agreement, including the duration of the ages¢ and prices for our products and servicesrdiften agreement to agreement.

Operating Expenses

Our costs associated with a particular project ey significantly depending on the specific requients of the customer, the terms
of the agreement, as well as on the extent ofdblenlogy licensing. As a result, our gross prdfiisn each project may vary significantly.

Our research and development expenses considaoksaand related, raw material, subcontract@preciation costs and overheads
allocated to research and development activities.

Our selling and marketing expenses consist prigmafikalaries and related costs, commissions edmpedles and marketing
personnel, trade shows , promotional expenses thead costs allocated to selling and marketitigiaes, as well as depreciation expenses
and travel costs.

Our general and administrative expenses consisigpily of salaries and related costs, allocatedtwea@d costs, office supplies and
administrative costs, fees and expenses of ouctdi® human resources, information technologyretz2ation, and professional service fees,
including legal counsel, insurance and audit fees.

Net Income (Loss)

Our operating results are significantly affected dayjong other things, the timing of contract awanad the performance of
agreements. As a result, our revenues and incarss) (inay fluctuate substantially from quarter tartgr, and comparisons over longer per
of time may be more meaningful. The nature of @rtain expenses is mainly fixed or semi-fixed ang fuctuation in revenues will generate
a significant variation in gross profit and netanoe (loss) .

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements require®usake estimates and assumptions that affecefherted amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent lidiids at the date of the financial statements,thedeported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. We evaluate our egi®and judgments on an ongoing basis.

We base our estimates and judgments on historkparzence and on various other factors that westelto be reasonable under the

circumstances, the results of which form the bfsisnaking judgments about the carrying valuesssiess and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Under different assiomgpor conditions, actual results may differ frimse estimates.
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Our discussion and analysis of our financial caadiand results of operations are based on ourotidased financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with gdperadepted accounting principles in the U.S. ('GSAP"). Our significant accounting
principles are presented within Note 2 to our Ctidated Financial Statements. While all the accmgnpolicies impact the financial
statements, certain policies may be viewed to bieal These policies are those that are most itaob to the portrayal of our financial
condition and results of operations. Actual resodtsld differ from those estimates. Our managerhehiéves that the accounting policies wi
affect the more significant judgments and estimatesl in the preparation of our consolidated fiferstatements and which are the most
critical to fully understanding and evaluating ogported results include the following:

« Revenue recognition;

« Allowance for doubtful accounts
o Deferred Taxes

« Debt to Equity Conversion; and
« Contingencies;

Revenue Recognition

We generate the majority of our revenues from agst-1D and security long term services contrgateyiding our customers with, support,
maintenance, royalties, training and installationaddition we generate some of our revenues(less 10%) from the sale of active RFID &
Mobile Based products. We render services andselproducts in the U.S. through distributors andlocal subsidiary, PureRFid, Inc., and
directly throughout the rest of the world.

Services and Products sales are recognized in gaoog with Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, “Rene Recognition” (SAB
No. 10<"), when persuasive evidence of an agreement existécae have been rendered or delivery of the proldas occurred, the fee is fi
or determinable, collectability is reasonably asduand inconsequential or perfunctory performaaigations remain. If the product requi
specific customer acceptance, revenue is defemgbcustomer acceptance occurs or the acceptamsésipn lapses. We are not obligate
accept returned products or issue credit for rewirproducts, unless a product return has been aggbroy the Company in advance
according to specific terms and conditions. As eE@mber 31, 2012, we had an allowance for custoshems in an amount of $6.

We recognized certain long-term contract revennesccordance with ASC Topic 605-3%onstruction-Type and Productiohype
Contracts". Pursuant to ASC Topic 6085, revenues from these contracts are recognizddruhe percentage of completion method.
measures the percentage of completion based omtomtpnput criteria, such as contract milestomEscentage of engineering completiol
number of units shipped, as applicable to eachraohtProvisions for estimated losses on uncomgletatracts are made during the peric
which such losses are first identified, in the antoof the estimated loss on the entire contractoABecember 31, 2012, no such estim
losses were identified.

We believes that the use of the percentage of cetiopl method is appropriate, since the Companythasability, using also :
independent subcontractor's evaluation, to maksoresbly dependable estimates of the extent of pssgmade towards completion, coni
revenues and contract costs. In addition, corstragecuted include provisions that clearly spetiy enforceable rights of the parties to
contract, the consideration to be exchanged anthtver and terms of settlement. In all cases,xypect to perform its contractual obligatit
and the parties are expected to satisfy their abibigs under the contract.

In contracts that do not meet all the conditionstiomed above, we utilized zero estimates of pgpfifgual amounts of revenue
cost are recognized until results can be estimatddsufficient accuracy.

Revenues and costs recognized pursuant to ASC B&385 on contracts in progress are subject to manageestimates. Actu
results could differ from these estimates. As ot@uber 31, 2011 and 2012, all the ldegn contracts were completed and their re
revenues were recognized in full.

Our warranty period is typically 12 months. Baseidharily on our historical experience, we do nadyade for warranty costs when
revenue is recognized, since such costs are nefrialat

Deferred revenues and customer advances includarameceived from customers for which revenue met been recognized.

We are entitled to royalties upon of the issuarfce eertificate. Such royalties are recognized wihensales are reported to us (usu
on a monthly basis).
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Allowance for doubtful accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is determingth wespect to specific amounts the Company hasraéted to be doubtful
collection. In determining the allowance for douwibthccounts, the Company considers, among othagshiits past experience with s
customers and the information available regardirgn <ustomers.

We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our custmshfinancial conditions and we require collat@mive deem necessary. An
allowance for doubtful accounts is determined wétbpect to those accounts that we have determiniee doubtful of collection. If the
financial conditions of our customers were to detete, resulting in an impairment of their abilitymake payments, additional allowances
would be required. The allowance for doubtful acgewas $1,726,000 and $134,000 at December 32, &0d 2011, respectively. The
increase in the allowance for doubtful accounth@amount of $1,592, is based on our assessmentleftability and the substantial effort
and expenses, required to collect payment fromobioeir large European customer, the payment has ppagable upon the completion of
contracts with this customer.

Deferred Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes, in accordauiit the provisions of ASC 740 ("Income Taxeslfifler the liability method
of accounting. Under the liability method, defertages are determined based on the differencesbkattie financial statement and tax basis
of assets and liabilities at enacted tax ratesfacein the year in which the differences are etpd to reverse. Valuation allowances are
established, when necessary, to reduce deferreabtmts to amounts expected to be realized. Exjpectbout realization of deferred tax as
related to losses carried forward are subjecticeraquire estimates of future income in the terié®in which such losses has been generatec
Changes in those estimations could lead to changee expected realization of the deferred taxssand to the increase or decrease in
valuation allowance.

Debt to Equity Conversion

The Company accounts for its debt restructurintgrd@ned to be troubled debt restructuring, in adance with ASC 470-60
("Troubled Debt Restructurings by Debtors"). Theyisions of ASC 470-60 require that assets transfieor shares issued to fully or partially
settle the debt should be measured at fair valghares are issued to fully settle the debt, tfierdnce between the fair value of the shares
issued and the carrying value of the debt wouldelsegnized as a gain on restructuring. Determittiegfair value of the shares issued, if not
traded in active markets, can be highly subjecive any change in those values affecting the gairestructuring to be recorded in the
financial statements.

Contingencies

From time to time, we are the defendant or pldimtifvarious legal actions, which arise in the natrwourse of business. We are
required to assess the likelihood of any adverdgments or outcomes to these matters as well asfeltranges of probable losses. A
determination of the amount of reserves requiredhfese contingencies, if any, which would be chdrp earnings, is made after careful and
considered analysis of each individual action witin legal advisors. The required reserves may ahanthe future due to new developmen
each matter or changes in circumstances, suclelzasnge in settlement strategy. A change in theimredjueserves would affect our earnings in
the period the change is made. Other than as teslainder the heading “Legal Proceedings” in Iteith@&e are no material pending legal
proceedings in which we are a party or of whichmnaperty is subject.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth selected our cortaifed income statement data for each of the treassyended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010 expressed as a percentage of tetaiues.

2012 2011 2010

Revenue: 10C% 10C% 10C%
Cost of revenue 18.1 417 27.¢
Gross profit 81.¢ 58.2 72.2
Operating expenst

Research and developmt S 5.8 5.2
Selling and marketin 34.2 44.7 59.¢
General and administrati 9.€ 9.2 26.€
Other (income) expens 12.1 2.7 (5.9
Total operating expens: 59.k 57.€ 86.2
Operating (loss) incom 22.4 0.7 (14.2)
Financial (expenses) income, | 20.2 12.t (9.2
Income (loss) before income t 42.¢€ 13.2 (23.9
Income tax 11.c 0.3 (0.7)
Loss from discontinued operatio - - (2.6)
Net (loss) incomi 53.¢ 12.€ (26.6)

Operating Results
Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Year Endé&kcember 31, 2011
Revenues

Our revenues from continuing operations in 2012ev$8,940,000, compared to $7,922,000 in 2011, eredse of 13%. The increase
in our revenues from continuing operations is primalue to an increase in revenues from our e+l 8ecurity projects.

Gross Profit

Our gross profits from continuing operations in 2@dere $7,321,000 compared to $4,616,000 in 201iinaease of 58%. The gross
profit margin for the year 2012 was 82% comparefi8% in 2011. The increase in gross profit margiinbated to changes in our mix of
revenues from products, services and royalties damdo reduction of subcontractor provisional ¢éeshe amount of $756,000 upon project
completion

Expenses

Our operating expensefrom continuing operations in 2012 were $5,315,@@0npared to $4,562,000 in 2011, an increase of. 16%
The increase in operating expenses from continopegations was primarily due to large increaselmioexpenses and decrease in selling an
marketing expenses, as discussed below.

Research and development from continuing operagapenses consist primarily of salaries and reletsts, raw material,
subcontractors, depreciation and amortization crstisoverheads allocated to research and develd@ogvities. Our research and
development expenses from continuing operatior2®i? were $313,000, compared to $462,000 in 20ti&ceease of 32%. The decrease in
our research and development expenses from comgirogerations was primarily due to an allocatiolR&D engineers to project related
development which is presented in COGS.
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Sales and marketing expenses from continuing dpesatonsist primarily of salaries and related sosbmmissions earned by sales
and marketing personnel and partners, trade shodiewerheads allocated to selling and marketiniyities, as well as depreciation and
amortization expenses and travel costs. Our sakksmarketing expenses from continuing operatiorZ0it? were $3,060, 000, compared to
$3,505,000 in 2011, a decrease of 13%. The dechedlse sales and marketing expenses from contipojerations was primarily due to a
decrease in commission expenses, arising from timiaation and cost reduction of our distributioepresentatives and dealers networks
worldwide.

General and administrative expenses from continapegations consist primarily of salaries and eglatosts, allocated overheads,
office supplies and administrative, fees and expgnsf our directors, human resource, informatemmology, depreciation and amortization,
and professional service fees, including legal selinnsurance and audit fees. Our general andrastnaitive expenses from continuing
operations in 2012 were $857,000, compared to $882n 2011, an increase of 17%. The increaseriegd and administrative expenses fi
continuing operations was primarily due to an iaseein salaries and related costs.

Other expenses from continuing operations in 2048 $4,085,000, compared to an other income of $087n 2011, The transfer
from other income to other expenses is primarilie tb bad debts expenses based on managememtatEstiwith respect to the collectability
of certain debt, offset by a capital gain attriloite debt to equity conversion related to certaivise providers of the Company.

Financial (Expenses) Income, net

Financial (expenses) incom&om continuing operations consist primarily ofargst related to bank credit line and Bonds, baeg,
gain on bond to equity conversion, and exchanggeeagpenses. Financial incomom continuing operations for the year ended Ddoem31,
2012 was $1,805,000 compared to financial incoroe fcontinuing operations in 2011 of $990,000. THwedase in financial income is mainly
due to an increase in the capital gain on bondjtity conversion as part of the Debt Restructuriegpgnized in 2012 and in 2011.

Income Tax

Income tax benefit from continuing operations fog year ended December 31, 2012 was $ 1,006,00parechto Income tax of $
25,000 for 2011. The transfer to tax benefit is ttua decrease in the valuation allowance in d sotepunt of $ 1,006,000 in respect of defel
tax assets resulting from tax loss carry forwacdsppared to withholding tax at its source expenskeded to our project with a European
country in the year 2011.

Loss from discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations for the yearsdridecember 31, 2012 and 2011 were nil.

Net Income

As a result of the factors described above, oumuetme in 2012 was $4,817,000, compared to aneere of $1,019,000 in 2011.
Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to Year Endé&ecember 31, 2010

Revenues

Our revenues from continuing operations in 201 1ev§t,922,000, compared to $7,389,000 in 2010, erease of 7%. The increase
our revenues from continuing operations is prinyatile to an increase in revenues from our E-idgetoj

Gross Profit
Our gross profits from continuing operations in 2@dere $4,616,000 compared to $5,332,000 in 20@i@ceease of 13%. The gross

profit margin for the year 2011 was 58% compared2® in 2010. The decrease in gross profit margiibated to changes in our mix of
revenues from products and services. Revenuestfrerselling of services have higher gross profinthevenues from selling of products.
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Expenses

Our operating expensefrom continuing operations in 2011 were $4,562,@@0npared to $6,380,000 in 2010, a decrease of 28%.
The decrease in operating expenses from contimpegations was primarily due to a decrease inngeind marketing expenses and a deci
in general and administrative expenses, as disdumdew.

Research and development from continuing operagapenses consist primarily of salaries and reletsts, raw material,
subcontractors, depreciation and amortization crstisoverheads allocated to research and develd@ogvities. Our research and
development expenses from continuing operatior2®il were $462,000, compared to $386,000 in 201thaease of 20%. The increase in
our research and development expenses from comgiroggerations was primarily due to an increasalarges and related costs due to
headcount increase.

Sales and marketing expenses from continuing dpesatonsist primarily of salaries and related gosbmmissions earned by sales
and marketing personnel and partners, trade showewerheads allocated to selling and marketinigities, as well as depreciation and
amortization expenses and travel costs. Our sal@smarketing expenses from continuing operatior0itil were $3,505,000, compared to
$4,405,000 in 2010, a decrease of 20%. The dechedise sales and marketing expenses from continojrerations was primarily due to a
decrease in promotional expenses, arising froninitrease in revenue from raw material and decrisassrenue from royalties and other
services.

General and administrative expenses from continaperations consist primarily of salaries and eslatosts, allocated overheads,
office supplies and administrative, fees and expenaf our directors, bad debts expenses, humannas information technology,
depreciation and amortization, and professionaliserfees, including legal counsel, insurance arditdees. Our general and administrative
expenses from continuing operations in 2011 weB2$00, compared to $1,985,000 in 2010, a deciefa&®%. The decrease in general and
administrative expenses from continuing operatisas primarily due to a decrease in salaries ardea@lcosts, a decrease in legal expenses
and due to a change in management's estimatiorr@sfiect to the collectability of certain debt whigas considered doubtful in 2010 and as
of December 31, 2011, on the basis of communicati@id with the customer, is not considered as tioluls§ collection.

Other income from continuing operations in 2011 ®437,000 and consisted primarily of gain from ékxéinguishment of working
capital related liabilities as part of the Credifarangement, compared to $396,000 in 2010, whaisisted of capital gain from the sale of oul
Hong Kong subsidiary and gain from the Creditorafigement.

Financial (Expenses) Income, net

Financial (expenses) incom&om continuing operations consist primarily ofargst related to our Convertible Bonds, bank fgais
on extinguishment of convertible bonds as parhefG@reditor Arrangement and exchange rate expeRsesicial income from continuing
operations for the year ended December 31, 2011$883,000 compared to financial expenses from naoimg operations in 2010 of $678,0
The transfer from financial expenses to finanaiabime is mainly due to a $2,006,000 capital gaiexdinguishment of debt related to
convertible bonds, recognized in 2011, as pathefCreditor Arrangement, which was maintained bjnarease in financial expenses with
respect to our Convertible Bonds caused by an aserén the interest rate of the bonds and duertbreach of the covenants under the
Convertible Bonds, as amended, which required usciar additional interest of 3% per month on udpainounts. The additional interest
expenses amounted to $271,000 during the year ddelegimber 31, 2011.

Income Tax

Income taxes from continuing operations are maéxjyenses related to withholding tax at sourceedl&d our project with a
European country. Income taxes on income from oairtg operations for the year ended December 3111 206d 2010 were $25,000 and
$50,000, respectively. The decrease is mainly d@edecrease related to withholding tax at its sexpenses.

Loss from discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations for the year dridecember 31, 2010 was $189,000. The loss frooodigued operations is
attributed to the sale of our EAC and CSMS busieesshich were sold in January 2010.
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Net (Loss)Income
As a result of the factors described above, oumuetme in 2011 was $1,019,000, compared to aosstdf $1,965,000 in 2010.
Impact of Inflation and Currency Fluctuations

Because the majority of our revenue is paid irinked to the U.S. dollar, we believe that inflat@md fluctuation in the NIS/dollar
exchange rate has limited effect on our resultspefrations. However, a portion of the cost of ua¢li operations, mainly personnel, is
incurred in NIS. Because some of our costs arel8) Mflation in NIS/dollar exchange rate fluctuats does have some impact on our expe
and, as a result, on our net income. Our NIS castexpressed in dollars, are influenced by thengxo which any increase in the rate of
inflation in Israel is not offset, or is offset andelayed basis, by a devaluation of the NIS iati@h to the dollar.

Historically, the New Israeli Shekel has been deedlin relation to the U.S. dollar and other majanrencies principally to reflect the
extent to which inflation in Israel exceeds averalation rates in Western economies. Such devigng in any particular fiscal period are
never completely synchronized with the rate ofatifin and therefore may lag behind or exceed tldenlying inflation rate.

In 2012 , the rate of appreciation of the NIS agiihe U.S. dollar was 2.3% and the rate of irdlatin Israel, was 1.6%. It is unclear
what the devaluation/evaluation and inflation ratésbe in the future, and we may be materiallyasely affected if inflation in Israel exce:
the devaluation of the NIS against the U.S. dallathe evaluation of the NIS against the U.S. Dplla if the timing of the devaluation lags
behind increases in inflation in Israel.

We do not engage in any hedging or other transasfitended to manage risks relating to foreigmenay exchange rate or interest
rate fluctuations. At December 31, 2012, we didowh any market risk sensitive instruments excepbtir revolving line of credit. However,
we may in the future undertake hedging or otheilaimransactions or invest in market risknsitive instruments if our management detern
that it is necessary or advisable to offset thesbes r

Seasonality

Our quarterly operations are subject to fluctuatidoe to several factors, including the factorsulied under the caption “Risk
Factors—The time from our initial contact with astamer to a sale is long and subject to delayshwiwld result in the postponement of our
receipt of revenues from one accounting periodhéonext, increasing the variability of our resoft®perations and causing significant
fluctuations in our revenue from quarter to quérieitem 3.D. It is our experience that, as agm@hmatter, a majority of our sales are made
during the latter half of the calendar year coesistith the budgetary, approval and order prosesteur governmental agencies customers.
Additionally, the period between our initial contadth a potential customer and the purchase ofppoducts and services is often long and
subject to delays associated with the budgetingraymal and competitive evaluation processes tleafufently accompany significant expenses,
particularly for government and government ageneaigsnizations. A lengthy sales cycle may havergract on the timing of our revenue,
which may cause our quarterly operating resulfaltdelow investor expectations. We believe thatiastomer's decision to purchase our
products and services is discretionary, involvegaificant commitment of resources, and is infleeshby customer budgetary cycles. To
successfully sell our products and services, weigdly must educate our potential customers reggrttieir use and benefits, which can
require significant time and resources. This sigaift expenditure of time and resources may nafitrésactual sales of our products and
services, which could have an adverse effect omesuits of operations.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting pronouncements adopted in 2012

ASC Topic 220, “Comprehensive Income”

In June 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standaodilte (ASU) 2011-05, “Comprehensive Income (Tofi@)2 Presentation of
Comprehensive Income” (ASU 2011-05). ASU 2011-0mielates the option to present the componentsteratomprehensive income as part
of the statement of equity and requires an entifgreésent the total of comprehensive income, timgpoments of net income, and the
components of other comprehensive income eitharsimgle continuous statement of comprehensiveniiecor in two separate but consecutive
statements.
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ASU 2011-05 will be effective for fiscal years, anterim periods within those years, beginningrallecember 15, 2011 (fiscal year
2012 for us) and should be applied retrospectively.

In December 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Stahdadate (ASU) 2011-12, which defers certain psmrnis contained in ASU
201195 requiring the requirement to present componehtsclassifications of other comprehensive incaméhe face of the income staten
or in the notes to the financial statements. Howethés deferral does not impact the other requéets contained in the new standard on
comprehensive income as described above. ASU 2014 dffective during interim and annual periodgibaing after December 15, 2011
(fiscal year 2012 for us). The impact of the adaptvas not significant

Accounting pronouncements not yet effective:

ASC Topic 210, “Balance Sheet”

In December 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Stahdadate (ASU) 2011-11, “Balance Sheet (Topic 21Djsclosures about
Offsetting Assets and Liabilities” (ASU 2011-11)SHA 201111, enhance disclosures about financial instrumamdsderivative instruments tl
are either offset in accordance with the Accounstandards Codification or are subject to an eefalote master netting arrangement or sin
agreement.

The amended guidance will be effective for annapbrting periods beginning on or after January0l,32 and interim periods within
those annual periods (fiscal year 2013 for us)siralild be applied retrospectively to all comparaperiods presented.

We are currently evaluating the impact that theptida of ASU 2011-11 would have on our consoliddiadncial statements, if any.
B. Liquidity and Capital Resource

Net cash provided by operating activities for tearyended December 31, 2012 was $24,000, compareét cash used by operating
activities of $189,000 during the period ended Daloer 31, 2011, a transfer from negative to positiagh flow from operation activities of
$213,000. This transfer was primarily due to nebme of $4,817,000 in 2012 compared to $1,019,00dg 2011, which was maintained b
decrease in trade payables of $659 ,00 0, andraatexin accrued expenses and other liabiliti€¢688,000 during 2012.

Net cash used by investing activities during thaeryended December 31, 2012 was $3,000, compareat ttash provided by investi
activities of $116 ,000 during the period endedéeber 31, 2011, a transfer from positive to negatvash flow from investing activities of
$119 ,000. This transfer was primarily due to n@eBtment activities in 2011 .

Net cash used by financing activities during tharyended December 31, 2012 was $11,000 , compafgdttcash provided by
financing activities of $91,000 during the year etiddecember 31, 2011 , a decrease of $102,000 .

As of December 31, 2012, our cash and cash eguitsatotaled $225,000, compared to $215,000 agoé@ber 31, 2011.
We have accumulated net losses of approximatelys$83000 from our inception through December 31,220

In November 2006, we raised $3,156,500 throughstheance of units consisting of convertible bormtighe Convertible Bonds and
warrants. Units valued at $2,500,000 were issudgtéoan Howard Master Fund Limited or “BH” and tsn¥alued at $656,500 were issued to
Special Situation Funds (SSF). According to thegioal terms the Convertible Bonds matured threarg from the date of issuance and bore
interest at an annual rate of 8%. The Convertildad® provided that any withholding and other tepaagable with respect to the interest will
grossed up and paid by us (approximately 3% optheipal of the bonds); and payment of interedt @ net of any tax. Subject to certain
redemption provisions, the Convertible Bonds magdmeverted at any time, at the option of the haderto our ordinary shares at an original
conversion price of $5 per share. The holders &k® granted warrants entitling them to acquiretal bf 134,154 ordinary shares at an
original exercise price of $5 per share duringrtbet five years.
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In November 2007, due to a breach of certain canditof the Convertible Bonds, the holders haditdat to accelerate the repaym
of the principal with all the interest payable littie maturity date of the bonds. However, we sigae amendment to the agreement with the
holders under which we were required to pay toafrtbe holders interest in the amount of $276,a68dther with any withholding and other
taxes payable with respect to the interest (appratély 3% of the principal of the Convertible Bojjdnd with respect to the other holder we
changed the conversion ratio of the Convertibleddaio $4.25. In a consideration the holders wathed right to accelerate the repayment of
the Convertible Bonds.

In June 2008, following a breach in the amendemidasf the Convertible Bonds, we reached an agreewitnBH, pursuant to whic
among other things, BH waived the requirementWeatomply with certain covenants under its Conbé&tBonds, in exchange for:

1. Increasing the interest rate to 10% stamtiiagch 31, 2008. Any withholding and other taxeggide with respect to the interest
will be grossed up and paid by us (approximately@%e principal of the bonds

2. Reducing the exercise price of the bond and theants to $3 and $2.8, respective

3. Our undertaking to place a fixed charge lbmeome and/or rights in connection with a cert&iuropean Airport Project. This
charge shall be senior to any indebtedness antlier pledge and encumbrance, but shall, howevesubject to certain rights
us to use part of the incorr

4. Our granting of certain ardilution rights with respect to the warrants heydBH.

In addition, it was agreed that under certain e¢irstances BH may demand an early payment in pamtfatl of the principal amount
of its Convertible Bond.

On August 12, 2009, we entered into an agreem#htBiH to make additional amendments to certaimteof its Convertible Bond,
(the “Amendment Agreement”), pursuant to whichekthange for security in certain of our assetduding all incomes and/or rights in
connection therewith to which we and our Subsidigre and shall be entitled to as a result ocicelegal proceedings involving our
Slovakian subsidiary SuperCom Slovakia, and all@m®in connection with the project related tolégal proceedings, BH agreed to (a)
waive the requirement that we comply with and (mead certain provisions of, its Convertible Bondiling, (i) increasing the applicable r
of interest to 12% and by 0.5% every 180 days\&ted, (ii) releasing us from certain payments ugfencompletion of certain payments of
principal and interest due under the Convertibladdiii) making monthly payments of $41,000 agathe total amount due under the
Convertible Bond over an eight (8) year period, @adincreasing the number of warrants grante@®8,375 and amend their exercise price of
all the warrants to $0.40 per share. The modificatvas determined to be a debt extinguishnfémt more information on the legal
proceedings involving SuperCom Slovakia, see ltem-8Legal Proceedings.

On November 9, 2009, we entered into an amendnggaement with Special Situation Funds or “SSF” ttbiler of the Convertible
Bond in the amount of $623,565, pursuant to whittexchange for a security in certain of our ass®8 agreed to (a) waive its requirement
that we comply with and (b) amend certain provisiof, its Convertible Bond including, (i) increagithe applicable rate of interest to 12%
and by 0.5% every 180 days afterward, (ii) relegqsis from certain payments upon the completioredfain payments of principal and interest
due under its Convertible Bond, (iii) making mogtphyments of $10,000 against the total amountehger the Convertible Bond over an
eight (8) year period, (iv) reducing the exercisegof the Convertible Bond and the warrants t@f8 $0.4, respectively and, (v) increase the
number of warrants granted to 31,238. The modificatvas determined to be a debt extinguishment.

In January 2010, we have received the investorssent to sell our EAC and CSMS businesses (asideddn Item 4). In addition,
we created a specific (fixed) charge in favor & itvestors on the intellectual property rightsobeing to our remaining RFID business.

On March 22, 2010, we entered into a SubscriptigreAment with a private investor, Mr. Yitzchak Batpa (the “Investor”) pursuan
to which at a March 23, 2010 closing we issued 8,831 ordinary shares of the Company (the “Tramsa&hares”) in consideration of a one-
time cash payment in the amount of $200,000. Caantvith the issuance of the Transaction Sharegmtered into a Warrant Agreement
with the Investor, pursuant to which the Investraived a warrant (the “Warrant”) to purchase up38,846 of our ordinary shares at an
exercise price of $0.15 per share. The Warranthasm of five (5) years and contains standardsadijants for stock dividends, stock splits,
reclassification and similar events.

On August 24, 2010, BH entered into an Absoluteigksaent and Transfer of Bond and Warrant (“Assigntfjewith Sigma, an

Israeli company and our controlling shareholdersBant to the Assignment, BH transferred to Sigthafdts rights in the BH Convertible
Bonds and warrants. The Assignment had no impaciuo assets or liabilities or our financial result
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At the annual general meeting of our shareholdeis bn September 12, 2010, our shareholders restdvafford certain of our major
creditors with the opportunity to convert the amtsunwed to them into our ordinary shares, by medmasset off against the then total
outstanding debt to such creditor, at a price 0d$@er ordinary share, subject to forgivenes8b ®f our total outstanding debt to such
creditor. Our board of directors was authorizedeball other terms of the Creditor Arrangemertluding, inter alia, its timetable ("Debt to
Equity Proposal").

On November 3, 2010, the Company filed an appbeatvith the District Court in Israel, in order tpmove our Debt to Equi
Proposal with all our creditors (including convielgi bond holders) in accordance with Section 35theflsraeli Companies Law. On July
2011, the District Court decided not to approve @mpanys application, mainly due to an objection to thepmsed arrangement filed
SSF. Following the assignment of the Convertibbe@held by SSF to Mr. Eliyahu Trabelsi, we hawached the agreement of all of our b
holders to the original Debt to Equity arrangemémt-ebruary 2012, following the approval of theatmb of directors, the Company decide
continue with the original Debt to Equity proposathout further proceeding in the District Court.

During 2010-2013, certain of our major creditordakhwere afforded with the opportunity to convés amounts owed to them into
our ordinary shares, had accepted our offer, alhalfimg the forgiveness and conversion of debt pars to the aforesaid offer, we allotted for
those certain creditors a total of 2,544,457 wds,eand 29,552,011 of our ordinary shard=or more information on the Debt to Equity
Conversion see ITEM 18, NOTE 1.d-Extinguishment oEiabilities . ).

During the period from January 1, 2012 to Decen®igr2012, our capital expenditures totaled appragéhy $28, 000 , (compared to
$23,000 during 2011 and $4,000 during 2010, of thipproximately $28,000 (compared to $23,000 dw2ibiyl and $4,000 during 2010) was
expended at or upon our facilities in Israel, apgraximately $ 0 (compared to $0 during 2011 andi$dng 2011) was expended upon the
various facilities of our subsidiaries outside srfakel.

C. Research and Development, Patents and Licenses,

Our past research and development efforts havetielp to achieve our goal of offering our custonaecemplete line of products and
solutions. As of December 31, 2012 the number gfleyees in our research and development activites 6. We focus on our new
technology and products of our wireless ID, e-1l anr electronic monitoring solutions, and expeatiaintain our current research and
development efforts. We spent $0.31 million, $0viion and $0.39 million on research and developtrie 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. These amounts were spent on the al@went or improvement of our technologies and petgjyprimarily in the area of wireless
ID and electronic monitoring. We will continue tesearch and develop our wireless ID, e-ID and mleitt monitoring solutions and products.
There can be no assurance that we can achiever atiyob our research and development goals.

D. Trend Information
See — “Results of operations” in Item 5.A for aghitl information.
Industry Trends

The increased demand for better security systemhsanvices has positively affected trends withmitidustry. Personnel and asset
management are now leading security concerns immgial and governmental enterprises. This hasenesn increasing demand for secure,
precise and cost-effective means to positivelytifigriocate, track, monitor, count and protect pkeoand objects, including inventory and
vehicles. Our wireless ID-enabled security sohgiprovide an optimal solution to these problemguassolutions reliably identify and track
the movement of people and objects in real timdkmgour customers to detect unauthorized moveraenthicles, trace packages and
containers, control personnel and vehicle accepsetmises.

Market and Operational Trends

Our quarterly operations results may be subjesignificant fluctuations due to several factorsmeoof these factors are based
primarily on the timing of large orders, which repent a significant percentage of our revenue$ores budget cycles and impact on the
timing for buying decisions, as well as competitpressures and the ability of our partners, digtals and system integrators to become
effective in selling and marketing our productsyasl as other factors.

We expect to benefit from marketing programs aadsegenerated by partnerships, distributions astés)s integration network, as
well as sales opportunities identified by them. ¥tend to expand our marketing and implementatipecity through these third parties,
including vendors of complementary products andvigiers of service applications. By employing thirarties in the marketing and
implementation process, we expect to enhance bylesking advantage of their market presence.
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A significant portion of our 2012 revenues was dedifrom our governmental projects and the remainges derived from
commercial customers. Historically, our revenuegehaeen concentrated in a few large orders andétatively small number of customers.
We expect this trend to change and we expect tiiatef revenues will come from larger number of esdd customers.

For more information about our expectations regaydiuture cost of revenues, future operating expeasd liquidity and capital
resources, please refer to the section captionesk ‘fRactors” in Item 3.D., the sections captionB@sSults of Operations” in Item 5.A and the
section captioned “Liquidity and Capital Resourciesitem 5.B.

Our development and marketing efforts for the sofutind product platforms are aimed at addressngral systems and service
trends that we see developing in the industry.

In December 2006, we concluded the sale of our Bildsion to OTI. The sale allowed management wutprimarily on the market
opportunities we identified for our former CSMS aaative RFID solutions. Following the events of &epber 11, 2001 and other major
disasters it has become increasingly importanaf@ncies to track personnel, assets, and othestslgje a local positioning basis. Prior to
January 2010, we offered our CSMS and RAPTOR swiatio fulfill critical homeland security requirents for public safety and emergency
services agencies and local counter-terrorismftasles. In January 2010, we completed the saleioEtectronic Access Control business and
our CSMS business to focus our sales and marketfogs on our core competencies, our wirelesseHID and our electronic monitoring
solutions.

As of the date of this Annual Report, we expect tha 2013 revenues will be primarily derived from:

« e-ID and e-Gov projects; and
« Wireless ID products and solutions .
« Electronic Monitoring

Recent Developments and Outlook

We expect revenues to continue to be derived froetone sales and recurring fees, sales of highsehdions, sales of products,
consumables and technology. Sales are expectaxhtmge through OEM partnerships and continual aggs, maintenance and support will
continue to be provided to customers. For morermé&dion see the section captioneRécent Developmeritsn Item 4.

E. Off Balance Sheet Arrangemen

We do not have any off-balance sheet transactlwatstave or are reasonably likely to have a mateffect on our current or future
financial condition, changes in financial conditioevenues, expenses, results of operations, liguhpital expenditures or capital resources.

F. Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations
Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our material corttratobligations and commitments as of DecembefB812:

Less than 1 More than 5
Contractual Obligations Total year 1-3 years 3-5 years years

Long-term debt obligation = = = - -
Capital (finance) lease obligatio - --
Bank loan and credit lin $ 101,00 $ 101,00C -- -- -
Operating lease obligatiol $ 141,00 $ 141,00C - - -
Total contractual cash obligatio $ 242.00C $ 242 .,00(C -- - -

Operating lease obligations represent commitmemdgulease agreement for our facility and the itéesl of certain subsidiaries. Purchase
obligations represent purchase orders to an acgayatble. Total contractual cash obligations remmesignificant outstanding commitments
for loans from banks, convertible bonds, purchdsgyations and lease agreements for facilities.alMenot a party to any capital leases.
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ITEM 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees.
A. Directors and Senior Managemel
Board of Directors

We are managed by our Board of Directors. Purswaotir Articles of Association, the number of digers may be determined from
time to time by the Board of Directors, and unlegrwise determined, the number of directors casing the Board of Directors will be
between four and ten. Directors are elected fareay@ar term ending at the following annual generetting of shareholders, except for our
external directors, who are elected for three yeams in accordance with the Israeli Companies Lld@wever, if no directors are elected at an
annual meeting, then the persons who served agtalissmmediately prior to the annual meeting shaldeemed re-elected at the same
meeting. The General Meeting may resolve thatectbr be elected for a period longer than the #maing at the next annual meeting but not
longer than that ending at the third next annuating. The Board of Directors elects one of its rhers to serve as the Chairman.

The Board of Directors is composed as follows fab® date of this Annual Report):

Name Age Position

Tsviya Trabels 55 Director, Chairman of the Boa
Menachem Mirsk 57 Director (2)(3)

Avi Ayash 42 External Director (1) (2) (3
David Mimon 52 Director

Shlomit Sarus 55 External Director (1) (2) (3

(1) “External Directc” as defined in the Israeli Companies Li
(2) Member of the Audit Committe
(3) Member of the Compensation Commit

Mrs. Tsviya Trabelsi has served as a director since November 15, 20d,20amnsuant to the approval of our shareholderth@€hairperson of
our Board since December 27, 2012. Prior to that. Mirabelsi has acted as our Chairperson from24y until December 2011Mrs.
Trabelsi is a Certified Public Accountant with eng&/e financial management experience in IsraelthedJnited States. Mrs. Trabelsi is
currently the CFO of Sigma Wave Ltd, ("Sigma")wiaeless and internet based company and our ctingahareholder, and also President
and Director of Klikot Inc., an internet based c@amyp. Mrs. Trabelsi holds a BA in Economics and Agting from the University of Tel-
Aviv. Mrs. Trabelsi is the wife of Mr. Arie Tratslour CEO.

Mr. Menachem Mirski has served as a director of the Company sinceRByh 2010 and is the founder and a partner of-Rd4.td., a
software and system development company locatéstael. He has more than 26 years of significapeeence and expertise as a software
developer and project manager for embedded realsintems, including RF-based systems. Mr. Mirskifra Bachelor of Science in
Computer and Electrical Engineering from Ben-Gutigmiversity.

Mr. David Mimon has served as a director of the Company sin¢eJ2fly, 2010 and is an Advocate and Notary with esitenexperience in
providing legal representation and consulting sswito individuals and companies in various aréésn He is the owner of a legal practice
with offices in Netanya and Haifa, Israel. Mr. Mimholds a LLM from the University of Tel-Aviv. MMimon is the brother of Mrs. Tsviya
Trabelsi, the Chairperson of our Board.

Shlomit Sarusihas served as an external director and as a meyhbar audit committee since December 27, 2012,iStiee founder and the
CEO of HCC Ltd, an e-Commerce and Smart e-Paynadutiens provider, Mrs. Sarusi has more than 13geéextensive experience in
development and deployments of advanced e-Commefeayments & CRM - Mobile and internet based smhst Mrs. Sarusi has led
research, development and implementation of salstifor various IDF' departments of for over 14rgeddrs. Sarusi holds a BA degree in
Statistics and an MBA degree from Ben Gurion Ursitgr

Avi Ayash has served as an external director and as a meyhbar audit committee since December 8, 2011.Ayash is the owner of
Inbarim, a consulting firm for corporations and doyees in the area of actuarial compensation, pessand insurance, and serves as a me
of the board of directors of the ROM fund, as atemal director and as the chairman of its audimittee and a member of its investment
committee. Mr. Ayash has more than 16 years ofnsk¢e experience in financial, pension and insueasunsulting. Mr. Ayash holds a BA
degree and MA degree in Economics from The HebreweJsity, a degree in Actuarial Studies from Halfiaiversity and a pension consult
license.
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Executive Officers and Key Employees

As of the date of this Annual Report, our execubfficers and certain key employees who are nat diectors are:

Name Age Position

Arie Trabelsi 55 President and Chief Executive Offic

Meira Zade 36 Chief Financial Office

Igor Merling 55 Chief Technology Office

Mark Riaboy 74 Vice President, National Proje

Amir Shemest 40 Vice President, Electronic Monitorir
President and Chief Operations Officer of

Brenda Gebharc 49 PureRFid Inc

Arie Trabelsi , President and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Trab@ined us in November 2010. Mr. Arie Trabelsalso the CEO of PureRF
Inc. Has more than 28 years of extensive experienttee Global wireless, Internet and Communicatimtustries. Prior to Joining SuperCom,
led Sigma Wave group, providers of innovative Ingtrand Wireless Technologies & Solutions. Mr. Btabholds BSc degree in Electrical &
Computer Engineering from Ben Gurion University &ffic. degree in Computer Engineering from DrexeVersity in PA USA

Brenda Gebhardt, PureRFid, Inc. President and Chief Operations Officer. With ol/@tyears of experience in the fire and securityigti,
Ms. Gehhardt has managed projects at Vuance IIiET, &nd Cintas. She has experience in operatiomgdimg) the integration of RFID
technologies and facility management applicationsantrol space and assets. Ms. Gehhardt holdd@ntk in nursing.

Meira Zada , Chief Financial Officers, Ms. Zada joined us imé 2012, Prior to SuperCom, Ms. Zada served fogrsgears, as the Finance
Controller of Elspec Ltd. Ms. Zada holds a B.AEoonomics and Accounting, from the Ruppin Univetdgrael and is a Certified Public
Accountant in Israel

Igor Merling , Chief Technology Officer, Prior to Re-joining ins2012, Igor served for 6 years, in On Track Instan-Smart ID Division, as
the Chief Technology Officer. Igor served SuperCoom 1991 until 2006, as Software developer anchiect for national ID systems. Igor
holds B.SC Electrical Engineering at Technion fri@nael Institute of Technology

Mark Riaboy , Vice President, National Project, Mr. Riaboynjd us in November 1995, Prior to SuperCom , mak @hief of Laboratory
of new semiconductor’s devices at USSR, Speciak@uoctor Bureau, Moscow during 20 years and inelsnaorked as Artificer of factory,
chief of sector

Mark holds a degree of Physics, Engineer of eleatrtechniques, Moscow, USSR and a degree fromédisity of Steels and Alloys, Faculty
of semiconductors materials and devices.

Amir Shemesh, Vice President, Electronic Monitoring, Joinedimganuary 2013, with over 13 years of experienaaustomer facing
managerial positions. Mr. Shemesh brings vastrpee in Law Enforcement and Electronic Monitoringrkets, as well as extensive
understanding of customers’ needs. Prior to Supar@®dr. Shemesh was the Director of Customer SupgmitValue Added Services at 3M
EM for nearly 5 years. Prior to 3M EM, he servedi@mious Global Telecommunication companies (Vétavorks, ECI Telecom, VocalTec).
Mr. Shemesh holds Master’s Degree (M.A) in Law, BhnAMlanagement and P.E in Electronics.

B. Compensatior
The aggregate amount of compensation paid by aartboard members and executive officers (colletyivthe “Named Executive

Officers”) as a group for the year ended Decemlief812 was approximately $465,000. This sum iretuamounts paid for salary and social
benefits. In addition, we have provided automohitesur certain executive officers at our expense.
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As of the date of this Annual Report the montldg bf a director (other than our Chairman of thafpis $1,500 and the monthly
of an external director is approximately $642 @pproximately $490 for every board or audit comeeitineeting.

As of December 31, 2012 , we had set aside appaiglgn$44 to provide pension, retirement or similanefits for our certain
executive officers.

Option/SAR Grants during the Year Ended December 3012

No options were granted during the year 2012. deleafer to the Section captioned “Share Option'Riader Item 6.E below for a
description of our Share Options Plan.

C. Board Practices

Our Board of Directors and senior management cengjdod corporate governance to be central to fiecteve and efficient
operations. The following table lists our directdige positions they hold with us and the dategltrectors were first elected or appointed:

Name Position Period Served in Office  Date of Expiration of Current Term
(if applicable)
Tsviya Trabelsi Director November 15, 2012 — Next annual general meeting
Chairman of the Board present
Avi Ayash External Director December 8, 2011 - December 8, 2014
present
Shlomit Sarusi . December 27, 2012 — December 27, 2015
External Director
present
David Mimon Director July 25, 2010 — present  Next annual general meeting
Menachem Mirski Director July 25, 2010 — present  Next annual general meeting

Our Articles of Association provide that the numbédirectors may be determined from time to tigate Board of Directors, and
unless otherwise determined, the number of direatomprising the Board of Directors will be betwéeur and ten. The Board of Directors is
presently comprised of five members, two of whomenadected as external directors under the pravisad the Israeli Companies Law
(discussed below). Our Articles of Association pdevfurther that the majority of the directors aipped to the Board of Directors will be
independent directors. Mrs. Sarusi, Mr. Ayash andNMrski satisfy the applicable requirements fodépendence under our Articles of
Association.

All directors hold office until their successore alected at the next annual general meeting eékblders, except for our external
directors Mrs. Shlomit Sarusi, who shall hold ddfientil December 2015, and Mr. Ayash, who shalthaifice until December 2014.

External directors. The Israeli Companies Law requires Israeli comgmwith shares that have been offered to theipirbbr outside of Isra

to appoint at least two external directors. Thads Companies Law provides that a person mayaappointed as an external director if the
person, or the person’s relative, partner, employemn entity under that person’s control, hasaat tluring the two years preceding the date of
appointment any affiliation with the company, oy amtity controlling, controlled by or under commewntrol with the company. The term
“relative” means a spouse, sibling, parent, grareitachild or child of spouse or spouse of anthefabove as well as a sibling, brother, sistel
or parent of the foregoing relatives. In gendtad, term “affiliation” includes an employment rétatship, a business or professional
relationship maintained on a regular basis, cornal service as an office holder. Furthermorthdéfcompany does not have a controlling
shareholder or a shareholder holding at least 26%teovoting rights, “affiliation” also includesralationship, at the time of the appointment,
with the chairman of the board, the chief executiffecer, a substantial shareholder or the mosiosdimancial officer of such company.
Regulations promulgated under the Israeli Compdréesinclude certain additional relationships thatuld not be deemed an “affiliation”

with a company for the purpose of service as aeraat director. In addition, no person may servarasxternal director if the persarpositior

or other activities create, or may create, a cohdf interest with the person’s responsibilitissdirector or may otherwise interfere with the
persons ability to serve as director. If, at the timeeaaternal director is appointed, all current mershsrthe board of directors are of the s
gender, then that external director must be obther gender. A director of one company may naiygointed as an external director of
another company if a director of the other compiargcting as an external director of the first campat such time
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At least one of the elected external directors rhase “accounting and financial expertise” and atier external director must have
“accounting and financial expertise” or “professabgualification,” as such terms are defined byutations promulgated under the Israeli
Companies Law. However, Israeli companies listedeartain stock exchanges outside Israel, includimg NASDAQ Global Market, such as
our company, are not required to appoint an extalinector with “accounting and financial expertisea director with accounting and
financial expertise who qualifies as an independéeictor for purposes of audit committee membegrsimder the laws of the foreign countn
which the stock exchange is located serves orosdoof directors. All of the external directofssach a company must have “professional
qualification.”

The external directors are elected by shareholtesgyeneral meeting. The shareholders votinguvaorfof their election must include at least
simple majority of the shares voted by sharehold#rer than controlling shareholders or sharehslddro have a personal interest in the
election of the outside director (unless such pwabimterest is not related to such persons relakip with the controlling shareholder). This
majority requirement will not be required if theaabnumber of shares of such non-controlling shaldgrs and disinterested shareholders who
vote against the election of the outside direatpresent 2% or less of the voting rights in the gany.

In general, under the Israeli Companies Law extetinactors serve for a three-year term and masebé&cted to two (2) additional three-year
terms. However, Israeli companies listed on cersédck exchanges outside Israel, including The NAQ Global Market, such as our
company, may appoint an external director for aolditl terms of not more than three years subjecettain conditions. Such conditions
include the determination by the audit committed board of directors, that in view of the directoprofessional expertise and special
contribution to the company’s board of directord &8 committees, the appointment of the exterirakctbr for an additional term is in the best
interest of the company. External directors canepeoved from office only by the same special patiage of shareholders that can elect themr
or by a court, and then only if the external dicestcease to meet the statutory qualifications vésipect to their appointment or if they violate
their fiduciary duty to the company.

Pursuant to the Israeli Companies Law the ternffafeoof an external director may be extended lgyghareholders following the initial three
year term for two additional three years termshatnomination of either the board of directorswoy shareholder(s) holding at least 1% of
voting rights in the company. If the board of diars proposed the nominee, the reelection muappeoved by the shareholders in the same
manner required to appoint external directors fointial term, as described above. If such re@eds proposed by shareholders, such
reelection requires the approval of the majorityhaf shareholders voting on the matter, excludiegvibtes of any controlling shareholder and
other shareholders having a personal interesteimtatter as a result of their relationship with¢batrolling shareholder(s), provided that, the
aggregate votes cast by shareholders who are ntbtlimg shareholders and do not have a persaonetdst in the matter as a result of their
relationship with the controlling shareholder(s)omoted in favor of the nominee constitute moretB% of the voting rights in the company.

Each committee of the board of directors that ibaized to exercise powers vested in the boadirettors must include at least one external
director and the audit committee and the Finar&fatements Review Committee must include all thereal directors. An external director is
entitled to compensation as provided in regulatahspted under the Israeli Companies Law and isratise prohibited from receiving any
other compensation, directly or indirectly, in cention with such service.

Audit Committee

Under the Israeli Companies Law, the board of dinescof any public company must establish an aatitmittee. The audit
committee must consist of at least three direa@osmust include all of the external directors, rtiegority of which must be independent
directors. Such independent directors must méef #he standards required of an external direatat may not serve as a director for more
than consecutive nine years (a cessation of seagi@director for up to two years during any rjiear period will not be deemed to interrupt
the nine year period). The audit committee mayimzdtide the chairman of the board of directory, dinector employed by the company or
providing services to the company on an ongoingsbascontrolling shareholder or any of the coritmgl shareholder’s relatives; and any
director who rendered services to the controllingreholder or an entity controlled by the contngjlshareholder. Any person who is not
permitted to be a member of the audit committee naybe present in the meetings of the audit cotemitinless the chairman of the audit
committee determines that such person’s presenmerisssary in order to present a specific mattewever, an employee who is not a
controlling shareholder or relative of a contralishareholder may participate in the audit commiteiscussions but not in any vote, and at
the request of the audit committee, the secretittyeocompany and its legal counsel may be predenihg the meeting.

The responsibilities of the audit committee inclualmong others, identifying irregularities in theamagement of the company’s
business, approving related party transactione@gined by law, review of the internal controlgsttod company, the internal auditor’s audit plar
and the independent auditor’s engagement and caapen. The audit committee is also required taldish and monitor whistleblower
procedures. Under Israeli law, an audit committ&sy not approve an action or a transaction witbrarolling shareholder, or with an office
holder, unless at the time of approval two extediactors are serving as members of the audit dtiewrand at least one of the external
directors was present at the meeting in which gmeay@l was granted.
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Mrs. Sarusi, Mr. Ayash and Mr. Mirski are the memsbef the Audit Committee.
Compensation Committee

Pursuant to a new amendment to the Israeli Compéauaie, effective as of December 12, 2012, eachiglylitaded company is required to
establish a compensation committee which shouldemagommendations to the board of directors andthesholders with respect to
compensation policy of directors and officers af tompany. The compensation committee also hasighe authority over the actual term:
employment of directors and officers and may ma&ao®mmendations to the board of directors and theeblolders (where applicable) with
respect to deviation from the compensation poliat tvas adopted by the company. We have establslecempensation committee that is
currently composed ofMrs. Sarusi, Mr. Ayash and Mr. Mirski

Management Employment Agreements

We maintain written employment agreements with tariglly all of our key employees. These agreespnbvide, among other
matters, for monthly salaries, our contributiondanagers’ Insurance, an Education Fund and sevetaenefits. All of our agreements with
our key employees are subject to termination dyeeiparty upon the delivery of notice of terminatas provided therein.

Internal Auditor

Under the Israeli Companies Law, theraa Directors must appoint an internal auditoggmsed by the Audit Committee. The role of
the internal auditor is to examine, among othertenst whether the company’s activities comply wfite law and orderly business procedure.
Under the Israeli Companies Law, the internal auwditay not be an interested party or office holder relative of any interested party or
office holder, and may not be a member of the cawiisandependent accounting firm, or its represewvga Our Board of Directors appointed
Shmuel Naiberg, who is a partner at Shiff HazenféatCo., as our internal auditor.

D. Employees

As of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we had4%nd 17 fultime employees, respectively (not including senyceviders)
The following table describes our employees andethployees of our subsidiaries by department.

Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31,
2012 2011 2010
Research, Development & Manufactur 12 7 9
Marketing and Sale 2 2 3
Administration 5 5 5
Total 19 14 17

Over the past three years, the number of our empy geographic area was as follows:

Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31,
2012 2011 2010
Israel & Europe 17 10 11
United states 2 4 6
Total 19 14 17

From time to time, we have engaged temporary enggleyo fill open positions. These temporary empsybowever, historically
have not comprised a material number of our emgsye

SuperCom'’s Israeli employees are not part of acblle bargaining agreement and none of themegmesented by labor unions.
However, in Israel we are subject to certain laiatutes and national labor court precedent ruliagsvell as to certain provisions of collective
bargaining agreements between itfistadrut, which is the General Federation of Labor in Ikraed the Coordinating Bureau of Economic
Organizations, including the Industrialistsssociation. These provisions of collective bargairagreements are applicable to our employe
virtue of expansion orders issued in accordanclke reievant labor laws by the Israeli Ministry ofda and Welfare and which apply such
agreement provisions to our employees even thdughdre not directly part of a union that has sigaeollective bargaining agreement.
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The labor statutes and labor court rulings thatyafmpour employees principally concern the minimwage laws , procedures for
dismissing employees, determination of severangelpaves of absence (such as annual vacation @rniig leave), sick pay and other
conditions for employment. The expansion ordersctviaipply to our employees principally concern thguirement for mandatory pension
schemes, transportation allowance, and annualatgneallowance, the lengths of the workday andiweek, and periodic automatic
adjustment of wages relative to increases in thesGmer Price Index in Israel. We provide our emeésywith benefits and working conditic
that comply with the required minimums. Israglipfoyees and employers are also required to paggermined sums which include a
contribution to national health insurance to tltrads National Insurance Institute, which providesrge of social security benefits.

Generally, all nonexempt adult male citizens antna@ent residents of Israel, under the age of é6lder for reserves officers or
citizens with certain occupations, as well as ¢erfiamale adult citizens and permanent residentsraél, are obligated to perform annual
military reserve duty and are subject to beingethfbr active duty at any time under emergencyuanstances. Some of our officers and
employees are obligated to perform annual reseutse WVhile we have operated effectively under thesgiirements since we began
operations, no assessment can be made as toltiregatt of such requirements on our workforce wsibess if conditions should change, and
no prediction can be made as to the effect on aspfexpansion of such obligations.

Most of our employees have entered into confidétjtiagreements. We have also granted certain eyep®options to purchase
shares of our ordinary shares under our option. Méconsider our relationship with our employeebé good and we have never experience
a general strike or work stoppage.

E. Share Ownershig

The following table sets forth the ordinary shaveseficially owned by each of our directors whoédfegially owned more than 1%
our issued ordinary shares as of April 1, 2013.0R8pril 1, 2013, we had 37,184,961 ordinary skavetstanding.

% of
Ordinary Outstanding Number of
Shares Ordinary outstanding
beneficially Shares as of  convertible Exercise Expiration
Name held April 1, 2013 securities price date
TsviyaTrabelsi(1) 16,982,65 (2) 45.61%
Menachem Mirsk 673,31 (3) 1.81% - - -
Directors and Named Options:
Executive Officers as a December
Group 17,665,97 47.51% 10,00( (4) 0.2C 2017

(1) Consists of securities beneficially held byrBaggWave Ltd., or Sigma. Sigma is controlled by dred her family members of Mrs. Tsviya
Trabelsi, our Chairman of the Board. As such, Mrabelsi may be deemed to beneficially own theehheld by Sigma.

(2) Includes (i) 8,957,654 ordinary shares heldigma, and (ii) 8,025,000 ordinary shares held byD&vid Mimon as trustee for Sigma. Mr.
Mimon is one of our directors and the brother oEMrsviya Trabelsi.

(3) Consist of 692,660 ordinary shares held by Hantk Security Capital Corporation (“HSCC"), whickagted an irrevocable power of
attorney to our Chairman of the Board to exercig® 817 shares voting rights relating to our ordirerares until the sale or transfer of such
shares by HSCC to an unaffiliated third party iraam’s-length transaction, which, according to Board resolution from March 29, 2011,
were transferred to Mr. Menachem Mirski.

(4) Includes options to purchase 10, 000 ordinaares which are currently exercisable

(5) See notes 1 and 2 for the beneficial ownershirs. Tsviya Trabelsi, our Chairman of the Boardl Note 3 for the beneficial ownershig
Mr. Menachem Mirski, our director. Each of the diars and executive officers not separately idettiin the above table beneficially owns
less than 1% of our outstanding ordinary shareduding options held by each such party, and whighexercisable) and has therefore not
been separately disclosed.

All of our ordinary shares have identical votinghis.
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Share Option Plans

In 2003, we adopted the SuperCom Ltd. 2003 Isftedire Option Plan, a new stock option plan undectwive now issue stock
options (the “Option Plan”). The Option Plan iseintled to provide incentives to our employees, efficdirectors and/or consultants by
providing them with the opportunity to purchase ordinary shares. The Option Plan is subject tqtiogisions of the Israeli Companies Law,
administered by the Audit Committee, and is desigii@ to comply with Section 102 of the Israelixi@rdinance or any provision which may
amend or replace it and the rules promulgated timeler and to enable us and grantees thereundengdibfrom Section 102 of the Israeli Tax
Ordinance and the Commissioner’s Rules; and (i@rtable us to grant options and issue shares eutsdcontext of Section 102 of the Israeli
Tax Ordinance. Options granted under the Option Rl become exercisable ratably over a periothoée to five years or immediately in
certain circumstances, commencing with the datganfit. The options generally expire no later thauydars from the date of grant. Any opt
which are forfeited or canceled before expiratisecome available for future grants. As of Decen®igr2012; 393,047 options were
exercisable and 548,047 options were outstanding.

As a result of an amendment to Section 102 ofsheeli Tax Ordinance as part of the 2003 Israglrédiorm, and pursuant to an
election made by us thereunder, capital gains dériby optionees arising from the sale of sharee@pursuant to the exercise of options
granted to them under Section 102 after Janua2@d3 will generally be subject to a flat capitaingatax rate of 25%. However, as a result of
this election, we will no longer be allowed to ateas an expense for tax purposes the amountseniddisuch employees as a benefit when tt
related capital gains tax is payable by them, abaekpreviously been entitled to do under Sectiaih 1

On June 27, 2007, our Compensation Committee antdhrd of directors approved a new option plareumdich we may grant
stock options to our U.S. employees and our sudisedi. Under this new option plan, we may granhloptalified (for preferential tax
treatment) and non-qualified stock options. On Asidib, 2007, the new option plan was approved bysbareholders at the general
shareholders meeting.

On August 9, 2011, we issued fully vested optiangurchase up to 150,000 of our ordinary sharémtoPeer, a former Chief
Executive Officer as part of his employment agreetm€he options (the fair value of which was estiedato be $6,000 based upon the Black-
Scholes option pricing model) have an exerciseeic$0.11 per share, and will expire five yeaosrfithe date of grant. Also, 300,000 ordir
shares were issued to Mr. Peer as consideratisettie liability to the said former Chief Executi@dficer.

On August 11, 2011, we issued fully vested optimngurchase up to 300,000 of our ordinary sharesftwmer officer as part of the
Creditor Arrangement (see also Iltem 4.A). The optitthe fair market value of which was estimateld®36,000, based upon the market |
of our shares onthe date when the extinguishment was determined) ha exercise price of $0.00. All the 300,000 @pgiwere exercised in
December 2012, by the former officer.

On August 24, 2011, we issued options to purchpste 385,000 of our ordinary shares to our certanployees. The options (the fair
value of which was estimated to be $18,000 based the Black-Scholes option pricing model) havesrercise price of $0.20, 230,000 of
them vested during 2012, and the remaining 155/0®est on January 1, 2013. The options have & ten years from the date of grant.

No options were issued during the year 2012.

A summary of our stock option activity and relabefibrmation is as follows:

Year ended December 3.

2012 2011 2010

Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average average

Number of exercise Number of exercise Number of exercise

options price options price options price
$ $ $

Outstanding at Beginning of ye 2,163,85 0.7¢ 1,404,21! 1.2 1,489,17 1.34
Grantec - - 835,00t 0.11 - -
Exercisec (342,12) 0.0c (10,007 0.0z (11,007 0.01¢
Canceled and forfeited (1,273,68) 1.61 (65,35%) 1.74 (73,950 3.52
Outstanding at end of year 548,04 0.97 2,163,85 0.7¢ 1,404,271 1.2
Exercisable at end of year 393,04 1.27 1,778,85 0.92 1,404,211 1.2
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The weighted average fair value of options grawligihg the reported periods (excluding options eisable for 300,000 of our
ordinary shares granted in 2011 as part of thexguishment of liabilities) was $0.05, per optioor, the years ended December 31,
2011. No options were granted in 2010 and 2012

In 2011, the fair value of these options was edtthan the date of grant using the Black-Scholé®opricing model. The following
weighted average assumptions were used for the @@hts: riskfree rate of 0.76%, dividend yield of 0%, expectethtility factor of
176.54%, and expected term of 4.64 years.

The expected volatility was based on the histonicddtility of our stock. The expected term wasdshen the historical experience ¢
based on management estimate.

We recognized Compensation expenses recognizdtebd@dmpany related to its share-based employeeamsapon awards were $7,
$10, and $14 for the years ended December 31, 2014, and 2010, respectively.

The following table summarizes the allocation @& #tiock-based compensation charge

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
$ $ $
Cost of revenue iLE 2 3
Research and development expet 4 5 2
Selling and marketing expens - - 3
General and administrative expenses 1.t 3 6
7 10 14
The options outstanding and exercisable as of Dbeeil, 2012, have been separated into rangesafisg prices as follows:
Options Weighted Options
outstanding average exercisable
as of remaining Weighted as of Weighted
Range of December contractual average Aggregate December average Aggregate
exercise price 31, 2012 life (years) exercise price intrinsic value 31, 2012 exercise price intrinsic value
$
$0.00- 0.20 445,99 6.74 0.1t - 290,99 0.1z -
$2.47- 3.38 14,45( 1.24 3.0¢ - 14,45( 3.0¢ -
$4.12- 4.64 42,40( 3.94 4.4¢ - 42,40( 4.4¢ -
$5.00 - 5.24 45,20( 2.08 5.1(C - 45,20( 5.1C -

548,04 0.97 393,04 1.2i
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The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrthe years ended December 31, 2012 2011 andv2@d 80, $1, and $1,
respectively, based on the Company’s average stock of $ 0.14, $0.10, and $0.14, during the yeaded on those dates
respectively.

A summary of the status of the Entity’s non-vesiptions granted to employees as of December 32, 286d changes during the year
ended December 31, 2012 is presented below:

Weighted-
average
grant-date
Options fair value
Non-vested at January 1, 20 385,000 $ 0.0
Grantec
Vested (including cancelled and exercis (230,000 0.0t
Forfeited - -
Non-vested at December 31, 2012 155,000 ¢ 0.0t

As of December 31, 2012, there was $3 of unreceghiompensation cost related to non-vested shaedlmmpensation
arrangements granted under the stock option plans.

ITEM 7.  Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions.
A. Major shareholders

The following table lists the beneficial ownersbijpour securities as of April 1, 2013 by each perkoown by us to be the beneficial
owner of 5% or more of the outstanding shares pfcdass of our securities. As of April 1, 2012,7,834,961 of our ordinary shares were
outstanding.

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordandd wie rules of the SEC and generally includesngptir investment power with
respect to securities. All information with resptcthe beneficial ownership of any principal sielder has been furnished by such
shareholder or is based on the most recent Sch&é@Dble®r 13G filed with the SEC. We believe thatpglsons named in the table have sole
voting and sole investment power with respect ksteres beneficially owned by them. All figureslirde ordinary shares issuable upon the
exercise of convertible bonds, options and warrerescisable within 60 days of April 1, 2013, ameohed to be outstanding and beneficially
owned by the person holding those bonds, optiongaorants for the purpose of computing the peraggntavnership of that person, but are nof
deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of comgtitie percentage ownership of any other personeNéthe following major shareholders
have different voting rights from the other holdef®ur ordinary shares.

Number of
Shares Percentage
Beneficially  of Shares

Name of Beneficial Owner Owned Outstanding
Sigma Wave Ltd. (1 16,982,65 45.61%
Eliyahu Trabelsi(2 3,393,05: 9.12%

(1) Sigma is controlled by family members ofdMfsviya Trabelsi, our Chairman of the Board apdhdr. As such, Mrs. Trabelsi may be
deemed to beneficially own the shares held by Sidntdudes (i) 8,957,654 ordinary shares held lgn$i, and (ii) 8,025,000 ordina
shares held by Mr. David Mimon as trustee for Sigia Mimon is one of our directors and the brotb&Mrs. Tsviya Trabels

(2) Includes (a) 3, 393, 052 ordinary shares.HBliyahu Trabelsi is the brother of Mr. Arie Tedbi and is disclaiming beneficial
ownership of Mr. Arie Trabelsi' share¢

As of April 1, 2013, based on the information azhlé to us, we had in the United States approximatregistered holders of our
ordinary shares, representing approximately 15%uoftotal ordinary shares registered at that date.
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B. Related Party Transaction

It is our policy to enter into transactions withated parties on terms that, on the whole, areess favorable than those that would be
available from unaffiliated parties. Based on agperience in the business segments in which weatpaind the terms of our transactions with
unaffiliated third parties, we believe that alltbé transactions described below met our policydsteds at the time they occurred.

On July 8, 2010, the Board of Directors acceptedrésignation from the board of directors of th@@han of the Board of Directors,
effective July 25, 2010. We recorded during 201@gpense of $75 related to the former consultimgement. In addition, on July 8, 2010, we
entered into a Services Agreement with the fornteai@nan of the Board of Directors and as of tha¢ dme of the Company’s major
shareholders (the “Service Provider”), effectiverigdiately, pursuant to which the parties termingedformer consulting agreement and
agreed that the Service Provider will provide tlmrpany with ongoing consulting services as mayelsanably required by the Company, fol
a consideration of 2% of the Company’s gross résdipm a major customer and indemnification osble costs and expenses incurred b
the Service Provider.

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, we recorded an expei8&4, $130 and $83, respectively, in accordaritie the Services Agreement,
which was terminated On July 7, 2012

On July 8, 2010, the Board of Directors acceptedréisignation from the board of directors of themher of the Company's Board of
Directors, effective immediately. The Company releat during 2010 an expense of $53 related to ttmefioconsulting agreement. In addition,
on July 8, 2010, we entered into a Services Agre¢mih the former member of the Board of Directargl as of that date one of the
Company’s major shareholders (the “Service Provjdeffective immediately, pursuant to which thetpes terminated the former consulting
agreement and agreed that the Service Provideprallide the Company with management services rehect to the Company’s certain
project for a consideration of (i) a monthly fee$@ (ii) indemnification of reasonable costs arpgenses incurred by the Service Provider, an
(i) the Company will provide the Service Provideith a cellular phone and an automobile. We sdlabh grant the Service Provider options to
purchase up to 50,000 ordinary shares of the Coynperording to terms to be determined by the Bo&idirectors, which terms have not yet
been determined by the date of approval of thenfife statements.

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company recordezkpanse of $18, $63 and $38, respectively, inrdecme with the Services
Agreement, which was terminated On July 7, 2012.

The Company recorded during 2010 an expense ofe§&fed to the former consulting agreement. On 8uB010, the Company
entered into a Services Agreement with the co-feaind the Company and as of that date one of thregaoy’s major shareholders (the
“Service Provider”)effective immediately, pursuant to which the partierminated the former consulting agreement anekealgthat the Servi
Provider will provide the Company with ongoing coltimg services as may be reasonably required &yCibmpany for a consideration of a
monthly fee of $3 and indemnification of reasonatdets and expenses incurred by the Service Prowid®nnection with the services. The
Company shall also grant the Service Provider optio purchase up to 100,000 ordinary shares dEtmpany according to terms that will
determined by the Board of Directors, which terragennot yet been determined by the date of appfthke financial statements.

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company recordezkpanse of $19, $39 and $21, respectively, inrdecwe with the Services
Agreement which was terminated On July 7, 2012

As part of the Debt to Equity Conversion plan af tbompany and in accordance with their Servicegément, the abovementioned
Service Providers agreed to a partial forgivenésseodebts due to them under the former consuligngements accrued from October 1, 200
until July 8, 2010 which total amount was $245 agcdeed to repayment in 1,083,071 warrants to psecbadinary shares of the Company as
consideration for the entire debts due. The fdueaf the warrants was estimated as $130. Therdifice between the carrying amount of the
amounts due and the fair value of the warrantsreeegnized as a capital gain. During 2012, 712y888ants were exercised.

On July 25, 2010, the Board of directors of thenpany elected Mrs. Tsviya Trabelsi to serve aha&rman of the Board of
Directors. Mrs. Trabelsi is an officer at Sigma Waud., which is the controlling shareholder of @empany; and is also the wife of the
Company’s chief executive officer and the sisteoiné of the members of the Company’s board of threcOn May 12, 2011, the special
general meeting approved the Service Agreememteo€ompany’s chairman of the board of directorsretmg her monthly fee will be
calculated every month at 60% of the Company’sfaxecutive officer's monthly cost. In additionttte above consideration, the Company
shall bear all reasonable costs and expenses étchyrthe chairman in connection with her servarses provide her with an automobile. On
December 12, 2011, Mrs. Tsviya Trabelsi resignethfthe board effective immediately and the boardikctors of the Company approved
the appointment of Mr. Arie Trabelsi as its new iDinan, effective December 12, 2011. The generakiddy on December 27, 2012,
approved the appointment of Mrs. Tsviya Trabeldtaeew Chairman, Her management services feesufijected to the approval of the next
general meeting and are expected to be the sathesesapproved by the general assembly on May 2011
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Mr. Trabelsi has served as the chief executiveeffof the Company from November 1, 2010 until Noler 12, 2011, and from Ju
1, 2012, and has served as the chairman of the @uyigboard from December 12, 2011. Mr. Arie Trabil a director of Sigma Wave Ltd.,
which is the controlling shareholder of us; His éosgment agreement is subjected to the approvdi@hext general meeting.

As of December 31, 2012, we accrued $226 as expemigng from all related parties providing cotisig services.

On April 29, 2012, our board of directors approteel recording of a floating charge on all of ouseds in favor of Mrs. Tsviya
Trabelsi and Mr. Arie Trabelsi, unlimited in amouimt order to secure personal guarantees grantéaely in favor of us, such as to a bank
Item 4.A. under the caption “Recent Developmenrasifl in order to secure short-term loans that arengby them from time to time to us

Regarding transactions with a convertible bond égl8igma, see Items 4A and 5B
C. Interests of Experts and Couns
Not applicable.
ITEM 8. Financial Information.
A. Consolidated Statements and Other Financial Informan
See Item 18.
Export Sales

Sales in Israel during each of the years 2012, 2012010 was $86,000, $80,000 and $83,000, résplyctExport sales during each
of the years 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $8,854,00% (¥@he total sales volume), $7,842,000 (99% eftttal sales volume) and $7,306,000
(99% of the total sales volume), respectively.

Legal Proceedings

We are party to legal proceedings in the normaftsmof our business. Other than as described béhane are no material pending
legal proceedings to which we are a party or ofolwidgur property is subject. Although the outcomelaims and lawsuits against us cannot be
accurately predicted, we do not believe that anhefclaims and lawsuits described in this pardgraggividually or in the aggregate, will ha
a material adverse effect on our business, finAnoiadition, results of operations or cash flowsday quarterly or annual period.

(A) In April 2004, the Department for Resources fymf the Ministry of Ukraine (the “Departmentfdd with the International
Commercial Arbitration Court at the Ukrainian Chambf Commerce and Industry (the “Arbitration C&Let claim to declare Contract No.
10/82 (the “Contract”), dated April 9, 2002, betwaes and the Ministry of Internal Affairs of Ukrairfthe “Ministry”) void due to defects in
the proceedings by which we were awarded the CamntraJuly, 2004, the Arbitration Court declarée Contract void. On April 27, 2005, we
appealed the decision in the High Commercial Cotidkraine. In May, 2005, the Department filed witle Arbitration Court a new statement
of claim for restitution of $1,047,740, paid tolusthe Department under the Contract. On Septe2ihe2005, we received a negative award
issued by the Arbitration Court in the second cléine “Award”). On December 12, 2005, we were informed that theedag Court of Ukrair
had dismissed our appeal regarding the July, 2@@#&idn. On June 29, 2006, the Supreme Court ofid&rheld that the Arbitration Court
award was valid and legal under applicable law.
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On September 28, 2008, the Department filed aipetfthe “Petition”) in the Central District Cowt Israel (the “Court”), under
which the Department requested the approval oAtlard as a valid foreign arbitral award under thed of the State of Israel.

During November 2008, we filed with the Court arjealion to the Petition and a petition to decldre Award null and void. Our
objection and petition rely on what we believe ¢oviell-based evidence that we have against the enamuder which the arbitration
proceedings were conducted by the Arbitration Cand against their validness and legality. We kelihat the arbitration proceedings were
conducted partially and jeopardized our basic ggBwr claims are also corroborated by a conteggllopinion written in the arbitration
decision by one of the arbitrators (“Arbitrator”).

On February 16, 2009 the Department filed its raspdo our claims (the “Response”). The Departrmased in its Response
procedural and other claims, including a claim thatfiled in Ukraine a monetary claim which is béiem the Award and the filing of such
claim basically affirms our acknowledgment that #veard is valid. On March 25, 2009, we filed a resge to the Departmesttesponse anc
requisition to order the Arbitrator to testify imet scope of the Petition proceedings.

On June 6, 2009, a preliminary court session wlksregarding the Petition. During the session,Repartment counsel claimed th
one of the two machines that we previously suppbiecsuant to the Contract (which machine is pricigther than the amount of the
Department’s claim), was not supplied to the Deparit and was transferred by us to another Ukraigéar@rnmental authority. It is noted that
we have documents that evidence that, contratye®@epartment’s claim, we supplied both of the mreehdirectly to the Department.

At a hearing held on September 23, 2009, the Gmagpted our application to summon the Arbitratoa avitness. At the hearings
which took place on November 29 and November 3002the Arbitrator testified in Court. In his testiny the Arbitrator described procedt
flaws which occurred, in his view, during the arsiion and also related to threats which were naa@gnst him by the Secretary of the
Ukrainian Chamber of Commerce and Industry in therse of the arbitration session.

Following the testimony of the Arbitrator, the Dejpaent asked the Court to summon the other two ldlema arbitrators as witnesses.
The Court accepted the request and scheduled geddntheir testimonies in 2011. However, the Dapant’s witnesses (including the other
two Ukrainian arbitrators) did not appear in catrthe times scheduled for their testimonies.ightlthereof, the Court ordered that
summations be submitted in writing without havihg tvithesses of the Department testify.

On December 5, 2011 we submitted a summation itingriHowever, the Department has not submittedutamation and its counsel
even notified the Court that his appointment agibpartment’s counsel had been cancelled. In thiesemstances we filed a petition for
judgment due to the absence of summations by tipafreent. On February 26, 2012, the Court ruletlitteccepts our petition to giv
judgment due to the lack of summations on behatfiefDepartment and that the file will be assigfeedvriting a judgment on the basis of 1
evidence that had been presented to the Coureindbrse of the proceeding.

On April 15, 2012, the Court dismissed the DeparntrsePetition and also declared the Award null soiti.

(B) On October 30, 2003, SuperCom Slovakia, a sidryi (66%) of SuperCom Ltd., received an awardnftbe International Arbitral
Centre of the Austrian Federal Economic Chambe&@™), in a case against the Ministry of Interiortbe Slovak Republic relating to the
agreement on delivery of Technology, Cooperatiath &@rvices signed on March 17, 1998. Upon the rabiward, the Ministry of Interior c
the Slovak Republic was ordered to pay SuperComaRla the amount of SKK 80,000,000 (approximatedy488,000 as of December 31,
2011) plus interest accruing from March, 1999.ddition, the Ministry of Interior of the Slovak Relplic was ordered to pay the costs of
arbitration in the amount of EUR 42,716 (approxieha$55,000 as of December 31, 2011) and Superdowalda’s legal fees in the amount
of EUR 63,611 (approximately $82,000 as of Decen®ie2011). We have begun an enforcement proce¢dicgllect the arbitral award. The
Ministry of Interior of the Slovak Republic fileddaim with the Commercial Court in Vienna, Austoa February 10, 2004, whereby it
challenged and requested to set aside the arbitiald. During September, 2005, the commercial aafvienna dismissed the claim. On
October 21, 2005, the Ministry of the Interior bétSlovak Republic filed an appeal. On August ZB6? the Austrian Appellate Court rejected
the appeal and ordered the Ministry to reimburggegtom Slovakia's costs of the appellate proceeditige amount of EUR 6,688 within 14
days. On October 3, 2006, we were informed thaMhestry had decided not to file an extraordinappeal to the Austrian Supreme Court’s
decision rejecting its appeal. To date, our efftotenforce the Commercial Court’s decision havenbensuccessful.
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(C) On December 16, 1999, Secu-Systems Ltd. (“Sgstems”) filed a lawsuit with the District Count Tel-Aviv-Jaffa jointly and
severally against us and InkSure Ltd. (“InkSur@)r(former subsidiary, which became a subsidiatnkSure Technologies, Inc.) seeking a
permanent injunction and damages arising from thgipg method applied to certain products devetbpg Inksure. In its lawsuit, Secu-
systems asserted claims of breach of a confidégtagreement between Secu-systems and us, umtshment by us and InkSure, breach of
fiduciary duties owed to Secu-systems by us an8uin&, misappropriation of trade secrets by us akflure, and damage to Secu-systems’
property. On March 15, 2006, the Court denied tteadh of contract claim, but upheld the claim fasappropriation of trade secrets and
ordered InkSure and us to cease all activity inmgithe use of the confidential knowledge and/orficiential information of Secu-systems. In
addition, the Court ordered us and Inksure to glew report certified by an accountant settinghfartfull the income and/or benefit received
by InkSure and us as a result of the misappropriattivity through the date of the judgment, ardkoed us and Inksure, jointly and severe
to pay to Secu-systems compensation in the sumM®fLR0,000 ($26,000 as of December 31, 2011) agal kxpenses as well as attorney’s
fees in the sum of NIS 30,000 ($8,000 as of Decer@be2011). Secu-systems has filed an appealwarahd InkSure filed a counter-appeal,
on the ruling above.

During the years thereafter several Court sessi@ne held, judgments were made and appeals wetkHij each of the parties.

On December 15, 2009, the Court suggested thataties attempt to resolve this dispute throughiatiesh. All of the parties agreed
to mediate the matter.

In the course of the mediation process, during 28hGgreement in principle was reached, accotdinghich the mediator will be
authorized to determine the sum, within the rangtfevben NIS 750,000 (approximately $196,000 as aeDwer 31, 2011) and NIS 1,000,000
(approximately $262,000 as of December 31, 201hjctvwe shall pay to Secu-Systems. Pursuant to agkement in principle, the amount
determined by the mediator will be paid by us dy@011 in 10 equal, consecutive monthly installrment

Following the said agreement in principle, a bigdinediation agreement was signed by the partiesparSeptember 1, 2010, a
mediation session was held. On November 30, 20Omiediator determined that the sum we will haveatpto Secu-System is NIS 893,000
(approximately $239,000 as of December 31, 2018)J&nuary 30, 2012, the parties submitted to thetGorequest to approve the mediation
agreement. The mediation agreement was approvétel@ourt on February 5, 2012. During 2011 and 20&ave paid in full our obligation
in total amount of NIS 893,000 (approximately $28®), as of December 31, 2012).

As of December 31, 2012 there is no liability rethto this litigation, and the litigation is closed

(D) On May 7, 2012, a supplier of us filed a lavtsuith the Magistrate Court in Tel Aviv in the amdwof NIS 360,199
(approximately $96 as of December 31, 2012) clainmrainly for payments of products which were sugpliluring 2011 and for payments for
products which were purchased by the supplier arewefused to be received by us due to our défaation in respect of the supplied
products. We are denying the supplier’s claimstane our own claims against the supplier in respktite quality of the products supplied by
him. We had filed with the Court an objection te @laim and a petition for a recovery by the swgf the Company direct loses due to the
supplier lack of performance. Our objection andtjoet rely on what we believes to be well-basedence which we have against the Supplie
lack of performance, major delays in delivery adgucts, and poor workmanship with some of the preglmanufactured by the supplier. A
preliminary court session was held regarding thé#i&e, and additional court sessions are schedigeduly 2013. The balance of accounts
payable with respect to the supplier as of DecerBlieP012 is approximately $46, which represergsvéiiue of the supplied products during
2011. No additional provision has been recognizil mespect to the supplier's claim.

Dividend Policy

Under the Israeli Companies Law, dividends may draypaid out of profits legally available for ambyided that there is no
reasonable concern that such payment will prevefitaim satisfying our existing and foreseeablegations as they become due. In additic
competent court may approve, as per a motion fddzeby a company in accordance with the Israelimpanies Law requirements, a payment
which does not meet the profits test, provided thatcourt was convinced that there is no reasenadicern that such payment will prevent
company from satisfying its existing and foreseeattiligations as they become due. If we do notdagends, our ordinary shares may be
less valuable because a return on your investmidirdmly occur if our share price appreciates.

In accordance with our Articles of Association, ®&aard of Directors may from time to time declangl @ause the Company to pay to

the shareholders such interim or final dividendthasBoard of Directors deems appropriate considetie profits of the Company and in
compliance with the provisions of the Israeli Comiga Law.
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Subject to the rights of the holders of share®aliidends, and to the provisions of our ArtickdAssociation, dividends, whether in
cash or in bonus shares, shall be paid or distihugs the case may be, to shareholders pro rtta tomount paid up or credited as paid up on
account of their shares, without taking into coasidion any premium paid thereon.

B. Significant Changes

There are no significant changes that occurrecedirecember 31, 2012, except as otherwise disciaghis Annual Report and in the
annual consolidated financial statements includetiis Annual Report.

ITEM 9. The Offer and Listing .
A. Offer and Listing Detalils

The tables included below set forth informationameting the price history of the ordinary sharestenEuronext Brussels stock mat
and the OTC Bulletin Board/NASDAQ/ OTC Market fbietperiods indicated.

We commenced trading on the NASDAQ Europe stockeatayn April 19, 1999. On October 23, 2003, follagithe closing of the
NASDAQ Europe stock market, we transferred thénigsbf our shares to Euronext Brussels stock mavketre we traded under the sym
“VUNC.” We applied for delisting of our shares frahe Euronext Brussels stock market, and our agjidic was approved on May 6, 2008,
effective August 4, 2008.

Our ordinary shares were quoted on the OTC BulBtard Market under the symbol “VUNC.OB,” from Naber 5, 2004 until
August 22, 2007.

Our ordinary shares were approved for listing aWNIASDAQ Capital Market and began trading effectugyust 23, 2007. The sha
were traded on NASDQ Capital Market under the syft\dodNC.”

On September 29, 2009 we received a NASDAQ Stafitiid@nation letter indicating that we failed to quisnwith the minimum
stockholders’ equity requirement of $2.5 millionsas forth in Listing Rule 5550(b) (formerly Markéice Rule 4310(c)(3)). As a result, our
securities were delisted from The Nasdaqg Stock ktaakd trading in our shares was suspended eféeatithe open of business on October 1,
20009.

Following the delisting from the NASDAQ, as of thpen of business on October 1, 2009, we had begsealdby OTC Markets Inc.,
which operates an electronic quotation servicesémurities traded over-the-counter, that our sgeanvere immediately eligible for quotation
in the OTC. Our ordinary shares are currently cdioteder the ticker symbol “SPCBF”, after a tickbanged approved on March 18,2013.

The following table shows, for the periods indichtihe high and low closing prices of our ordinglnares in U.S. dollars as reported
on the NASDAQ Europe stock market or the EuronextsBels stock market, as applicable until Augug008 (conversion to U.S. dollars is
based on the exchange rate published by the Balskasfl). The following table also shows, for thegipds indicated, the high and low closing
prices of our ordinary shares on the OTC MarkeD®C Bulletin Board Market or NASDAQ, as applicable.

The Company has not issued any securities in caéiomewith a pre-emptive issue.
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Period European Market US Market

Per share ($) Per share ($)
High Low High Low
Annual
2008 3.90(1) 2.40(2) 4.69 0.29
2009 N/A N/A 0.68 0.20
2010 N/A N/A 0.29 0.05
2011 N/A N/A 0.14 0.04
2012 N/A N/A 0.20 0.01
Financial quarters

2011
First quartel N/A N/A 0.13 0.06
Second quarte N/A N/A 0.14 0.04
Third quartel N/A N/A 0.12 0.04
Fourth quarte N/A N/A 0.12 0.05
2012
First quarte! N/A N/A 0.17 0.02
Second quarte N/A N/A 0.20 0.04
Third quartel N/A N/A 0.20 0.01
Fourth quarte N/A N/A 0.17 0.01
2013
First quartel N/A N/A 0.4 0.05
Most recent six months
March 2013 N/A N/A 0.44 0.06
February 201: N/A N/A 0.11 0.06
January 201 N/A N/A 0.14 0.05
December 201 N/A N/A 0.15 0.01
November 201. N/A N/A 0.15 0.03
October 201: N/A N/A 0.17 0.01

On April 5, 2013, the last reported sale price wf ardinary shares on OTC was $0.32 per share.
Lack of Liquidity

The delisting of our ordinary shares from the NASDAarket significantly affects the ability of invess to trade our securities and
negatively affects the liquidity of our ordinaryashs. In addition trading in our ordinary sharey imecome subject to the "penny stock"
regulations adopted by the SEC. These regulatiensrglly define a "penny stock" to be any equityusity that has a market price of less than
$5.00 per share, subject to certain exceptionsy asdf the issuer of the security has net tangibkets in excess of $2,000,000. The market
price of our ordinary shares is currently less tha0 per share and our net tangible assetsBesagfmber 31, 2012 were approximately
$3,743,000. While we believe that our ordinary skare currently exempt from the definition of pestock, there is no assurance that they
will continue to be exempt from such definitionolfir ordinary shares become subject to the “petogk$rules of the SEC, it will make
transactions in our ordinary shares cumbersomeraydreduce the value of our shares. This is bedausay transaction involving a penny
stock, unless exempt, Rule 15g-9 generally requires

« that a broker or dealer approve a person's acdéoutransactions in penny stocks; and
« the broker or dealer receive from the investor iétew agreement to the transaction, setting fdréhidlentity and quantity of the
penny stock to be purchast
In order to approve a person's account for traimmsacin penny stocks, the broker or dealer must:
« obtain financial information and investment expecie objectives of the person; and

« make a reasonable determination that the transacitiopenny stocks are suitable for that persontlaagerson has sufficient
knowledge and experience in financial matters tedgable of evaluating the risks of transactionsenny stocks
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The broker or dealer must also deliver, prior tg ansaction in a penny stock, a disclosure sdeqaiescribed by the SEC relating
the penny stock market, which, in highlight form:

« sets forth the basis on which the broker or deakede the suitability determination; and
« that the broker or dealer received a signed, writatement from the investor prior to the trarisact

Disclosure also has to be made by the brokdealer about the risks of investing in pentogiss in both public offerings and in second
trading and about the commissions payable to tatlbtoker-dealer and the registered representaiivesnt quotations for the securities and
the rights and remedies available to an investoases of fraud in penny stock transactions. Binaibnthly statements have to be sent
disclosing recent price information for the pentgck held in the account and information on thdtkeh market in penny stocks.

Generally, brokers may be less willing to exectdegactions in securities subject to the "penngidtailes. This may make it more difficult -
investors to dispose of our ordinary shares andecawdecline in our market value if we were to beegubject to the said "penny stock" rules.

B. Plan of Distribution

Not applicable.

C. Markets

Our ordinary shares were listed for trade on theiext Brussels stock market, from October 23, 20@er the symbol “SUP,”
which became “VUNC?” after our corporate name chamg®lay 14, 2007. We applied for delisting of obaes from the Euronext Brussels
stock market, and our application was approved ay B 2008, effective August 4, 2008.

Since November 5, 2004, our ordinary shares haetedded on the OTC Bulletin Board under the syi®BCBF.OB," which,
following our then name change became “VUNCF.OBuic8 August 23, 2007, our ordinary shares wereaygat for trading on NASDAQ
under the symbol “VUNC” and the trade on the OTQl&in Board ceased. On October 1, 2009 our orgisheares started being quoted undel
the ticker symbol “VUNCF” on the OTC Market. whide)lowing our recent name change became “SPCBF"

D. Selling Shareholder:
Not applicable.
E. Dilution
Not applicable.
F. Expenses of the Issu
Not applicable.
ITEM 10. Additional Information.
A. Share Capital

Not applicable.

B. Memorandum and Articles of Associatic

Our Memorandum of Association and Articles of Asation are attached hereto as noted in Iltem 19.

We are a public company organized in the Staterakl under the Israeli Companies Law. We are tergid with the Registrar of
Companies of the State of Israel as a publiclyadacbrporation and we have been assigned publipaoynnumber 52-00-4407-4. Set forth
below is a summary of certain provisions of our Meamdum of Association (the "Memorandum"), the &ets of Association (the "Articles")
and the Israeli Companies Law as it applies tadGbmpany. This description does not purport to baplete and is qualified in its entirety by

reference to the full text of the Memorandum anticdes and by Israeli law. The Memorandum and tiigckes are filed as exhibits to this
Annual Report.
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OBJECTS OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to Section 2 of the Memorandum, the gralabject for which we were established is to giega the development,
manufacture, implementation and marketing of compzied systems in general and computerized sydmmpsoducing tags, computerized
photograph databases for the purpose of ideniificand for issuing various certificates in par&yconsultation in the above fields;
development, manufacture, implementation and meudef any product based on the knowledge and ¢ispenf the parties; and the purchase
sale, import, export and implementation of anyactiequired to realize the above objectives.

We are authorized to issue 52,000,000 ordinaryeshaar value NIS 0.0588235 per share, of which8K261 ordinary shares were
outstanding as of April 1, 2013.

DIRECTORS

Our Articles provide that the number of directoraynbe determined from time to time by the Boar®wéctors, and unless otherwise
determined, the number of directors comprisingBbard of Directors will be between four and tentiWthe exception of our external
directors, who are elected for three year ternmacoordance with the Israeli Companies Law, ourctiirs are elected for a one year term en
at the following annual general meeting of shareééd. However, if no directors are elected atratual meeting, then the persons who serve
as directors immediately prior to the annual megsinall be deemed reelected at the same meetieggdreral meeting may resolve that a
director be elected for a period not longer thantttird next annual meeting. Directors may resigimaertain circumstances be removed by
our general meeting prior to the expiration oftieisn.

The board may appoint additional directors (whetbdill a vacancy or create a new directorshipy¢ove until the next annual
shareholders meeting. In case an office of a dirdws been vacated, the remaining directors magneee to act in every matter so long as the
number of its members is not less than the quorguired at the time for meetings of the boardhéf humber of members of the board
decreases below said quorum, the board will n@rtitled to act except in case of emergency oafipointing additional directors in order to
fill vacant positions on the board or to call a gexh meeting of the shareholders. The Board ofdbins elects one of its members to serve as
the Chairman.

The Board of Directors may meet and adjourn itstings as it deems fit, provided, however, thattibard must meet at least once in
every three months period. A meeting of the boaay bre called at the request of each director. Tioeum required for a meeting of the board
is not less than 30% of the number of directorsiarahy event not less than two directors. Issuising at any Board of Directors’ meeting are
decided by a majority of votes cast at the meetimg§jeu of a board meeting a resolution may bepaeld in writing if signed by all directors or
to which all of the directors have agreed in wgtior by telephone or facsimile, and a meeting msgy e held through telephone conferenc
other communications means, provided however thpaeticipants may hear each other simultaneousigesolution in writing signed by all
the Directors, shall be as valid and effectivedibpurposes as if passed at a meeting of the Baiabirectors duly convened and held, and for
the purpose of this Article "Director” shall incledf duly appointed therefore, a Substitute Dioect

FIDUCIARY DUTIES OF OFFICERS

The Israeli Companies Law codifies the fiduciaryielsithat "office holders," including directors aexecutive officers, owe to a
company. An office holder's fiduciary duties cohsia duty of care and a duty of loyalty. The dofyoyalty includes avoiding any conflict of
interest between the office holder's position | ¢bhmpany and his personal affairs, avoiding amypetition with the company, avoiding
exploiting any business opportunity of the compangrder to receive personal advantage for himmetithers, and revealing to the company
any information or documents relating to the conymaffairs which the office holder has receiveé tlu his position as an office holder.

APPROVAL OF CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with Office Holders; Extraordinary isactions

Under the Israeli Companies Law, all arrangemesttoacompensation of office holders who are notalors or controlling parti
require approval of the audit committee or a conspinn committee to the extent that it complieshwtite statutory requirements which aj

to the audit committee, and the Board of Directédngsangements regarding the terms of employment@mdpensation of directors reqt
approval by the audit committee, the Board of Divexand the shareholders.
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The Israeli Companies Law requires that an officlelér of the company promptly disclose any persartatest that he or she may
have and all related material information knowmito or her, in connection with any existing or ppepd transaction by the company. In
addition, if the transaction is an extraordinagnsaction as defined under Israeli law, the officleler must also disclose any personal interest
held by the office holder's spouse, siblings, p@regrandparents, descendants, spouse's descersilalitigs and parents of the office holder's
spouse, and the spouses of any of the foregoingddition, the office holder must also disclose emgrest held by any corporation in which
the office holder is a 5% or greater shareholdeectbr or general manager or in which he or sketha right to appoint at least one director ol
the general manager. An extraordinary transacfiatefined as a transaction other than in the orgioaurse of business, otherwise than on
market terms, or that is likely to have a matdrigdact on the company's profitability, assets abilities.

In the case of a transaction which is not an exdliaary transaction, after the office holder coraplith the above disclosure
requirement, only board approval is required unieesarticles of association of the company prowatherwise. The transaction must not be
adverse to the company's interest. Furthermotbeifransaction is an extraordinary transactiosn tin addition to any approval stipulated by
the articles of association, it also must be apptdwy the company's audit committee and then btaed of Directors, and, under certain
circumstances, by a meeting of the shareholdettseofompany.

An individual who has a personal interest in a erattat is considered at a meeting of the Boatdigctors or the audit committee
may not be present at the deliberations or votthisrmatter. However, with respect to an officédeo, he/she may be present at the meeting
discussions if the chairman determines that thieeffolder has to present the matter. If a majaritthe directors has a personal interest in a
transaction with us, such directors may be preaktite deliberations and vote in this matter, drateholder approval of the transaction is
required.

Under the Israeli Companies Law and as long af\digles are not amended to determine otherwisgaireresolutions, such as
resolutions regarding liquidation, require approsfethe holders of 75% of the shares representéteaneeting and voting thereon.

Approval of a Compensation Policy for Office Holsl

In accordance with recent amendments to the Coraparaw, a public company, such as our companggsired to adopt a
compensation policy setting forth the principlegtwern the terms of office and employment (inahgdéash and equity-based compensation,
exemption from liability, indemnification, D&O insance and other benefits and payments relatecetsdtvice and employment) of the Office
Holders of the company. These amendments to thep@oies Law also define the criteria to be consilerencluded in such compensation
policy. The compensation policy needs to be apmiowelater than September 2013 by the board ottdire, after consideration of the
recommendations of the compensation committee gridebmajority of the company's shareholders predithat either: (i) such majority
includes a majority of the total votes of sharebotdvho are not controlling shareholders and ddagé a Personal Interest in the approval of
the compensation policy and who participate invbiéng, in person, by proxy or by written ballot,the meeting (abstentions not taken into
account); or (ii) the total number of votes of @fmiders mentioned in (i) above that are votedresgaine approval of the compensation policy
do not represent more than 2% of the total votiglgts in the company.

Under certain circumstances and subject to ceetateptions, the board of directors may approvetimepensation policy even if not
approved by the shareholders as described abawadpd that the compensation committee and thedbafadirectors determine, following an
additional discussion and based on detailed reauensit is for the benefit of the company to adeych compensation policy. We intend to
comply with these new requirements of the Israelnpanies Law within the required time frame.

Commencing as of December 2012, any changes toamsafion terms of Officers are to be approved aoatance with the
principles set forth in such amendments to thesls@ompanies Law as if a compensation policy weesagdy in force. In accordance with the
Companies Law, as amended, the compensation pulisy be re-approved every three years, in the mateseribed above. The board of
directors is responsible for reviewing from timeitoe the compensation policy and determining whietr not there are any circumstances
require adjustments to the current compensatioicypdSee also Item 6. Directors, Senior ManageraadtEmployees - Board Practices -
Compensation Committee.)
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Disclosure of Personal Interests of a Controllinga&holder; Approval of Transactions with Controlii Shareholders

The Israeli Companies Law applies the same dispbomquirements to a controlling shareholder ofilalip company, which includes
a shareholder that holds 25% or more of the vaiigigts if no other shareholder owns more than 56%@voting rights in the company.
Extraordinary transactions with a controlling shenléer or in which a controlling shareholder hamesonal interest, and the terms of
compensation of a controlling shareholder who isféine holder (including the provision of servidesthe company), require the approval of
the audit committee or the compensation commitie@pplicable, the Board of Directors and the stadders of the company by simple
majority, provided that either such majority voteshinclude at least one-half of the shareholdérs ave no personal interest in the
transaction and are present at the meeting (wittaddirig into account the votes of the abstainirgrsholders), or that the total shareholding
those who have no personal interest in the traimsaatho vote against the transaction represent aiethan two percent of the voting rights
in the company.

Agreements and extraordinary transactions withra &xceeding three years are subject tapproval once every three years by
audit committee, board of directors and the shddehs of the company. Certain types of extraordin@ansactions may be approvec
advance for a period exceeding three years if ikt aommittee determines such approval reasonaider the circumstances.

Under the Companies Regulations (Relief from Rédl&tarty Transactions), 5760-2000, promulgated utidelsraeli Companies Law, as
amended, certain extraordinary transactions betagmmlic company and its controlling shareholdet(snot require shareholder approval.
addition, under such regulations, directors’ conga¢ion and employment arrangements in a public emypo not require the approval of the
shareholders if both the audit committee and tredof directors agree that such arrangementsoéely $or the benefit of the company. Also,
employment and compensation arrangements for &edfblder that is a controlling shareholder ofublc company do not require
shareholder approval if certain criteria are méie Toregoing exemptions from shareholder approvhiwat apply if one or more shareholders
holding at least 1% of the issued and outstandiagescapital of the company or of the company’sngptights, objects to the use of these
exemptions provided that such objection is subuhititethe company in writing not later than fourtelays from the date of the filing of a reg
regarding the adoption of such resolution by thapgany. If such objection is duly and timely subgdttthen the transaction or compensation
arrangement of the directors will require sharebrdtlapproval as detailed above.

The Israeli Companies Law provides that an acqarsibf shares in a public company must be made &g of a special tender offer
if as a result of the acquisition the purchaserlditiie control 25% or greater of the company'sngtights. This rule does not apply if there is
already another such shareholder which controls @6¢6eater of the company's voting rights. Sinhjlathe Israeli Companies Law provides
that an acquisition of shares in a public compamogtbe made by means of a special tender offer af result of the acquisition the purchaser
would hold greater than a 45% voting rights in ¢benpany, unless there is another shareholder lpidiore than a 45% voting rights in the
company. These requirements do not apply to: é)ttquisition of shares in a private placementyigea that such private placement was
approved by the general meeting of the companysettolders as a private placement purporting téecda the offeree the control of 25% or
greater of the company's voting rights if the themo other holder of such a block of shares,uspprting to confer to the offeree 45% of the
voting rights in the company if there is no othergon holding forty-five percent of the voting riglin the company; (i) was from a
shareholder which controls 25% or greater of themany's voting rights which resulted in the acquirecoming a a shareholder of the
company shareholder which controls 25% or gredtd#teocompany’s voting rights, or (iii) was fronslaareholder holding a 45% of the voting
in the company which resulted in the acquirer bengra holder of a 45% of the voting rights in tleergpany. A special tender offer will only
be considered accepted if: (i) the number of shiamedered in the offer exceeds the number of sivalnese holders objected to the offer
(excluding the shares of controlling shareholdéthe offeror and excluding the holders of a 25%nare block of the voting rights in the
company); and (i) at least 5% of the voting rigintshe company are purchased in the tender offer.

If, as a result of an acquisition of shares, thguaer will hold more than 90% of a public compangutstanding shares or a clas
shares, the acquisition must be made by meansterider offer for all of the outstanding shares alass of shares. If less than 5% of
outstanding shares are not tendered in the terftbar and more than half of the shareholders witteopersonal interest in accepting the ¢
tendered their shares, then all the shares thaadbeirer offered to purchase will be transferredhte acquirer. The Israeli Companies |
provides for appraisal rights if any shareholdessfia request in court within six months followitigg consummation of a full tender offer,
the acquirer will be entitled to stipulate thatdering shareholders forfeit their appraisal righitsnore than 5% of the outstanding share:
not tendered in the tender offer, then the acquiray not acquire shares in the tender offer thitoauise his shareholding to exceed 90% @
outstanding shares; provided, however, that ifdissenting shareholders constitute less than 2#eofssued and outstanding share capit
the company then the full tender will be accepted all of the shares that the acquirer offereduxcipase will be transferred to the acquire
operation of law.
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DUTIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

Under the Israeli Companies Law, a shareholdealdgy to act in good faith and in a customary voayards the company and other
shareholders and to refrain from abusing his omplogrer in the company including, among other thingsen voting in a general meeting of
shareholders on the following matters:

« any amendment to the articles of association;

- anincrease of the company's authorized shareatapit

e amerger; or

« approval of interested party transactions whichluiregshareholder approval.

Furthermore, the Israeli Companies Law requiresahshareholder refrain from acting in a discrinbdmg manner towards other
shareholders.

The Israeli Companies Law does not describe thstanbe of the aforementioned duties of sharehqglbatprovides that laws
applicable to a breach of contract, adjusted adegri the circumstances shall apply to a breacuoh duties. With respect to the obligation
to refrain from acting discriminatorily, a sharethel that is discriminated against can petitiondbiert to instruct the company to remove or
prevent the discrimination, as well as providerinstions with respect to future actions.

In addition, the Israeli Companies Law dictates #rgy controlling shareholder, any shareholder winmws that it possesses power to
determine the outcome of a shareholder vote andlaaseholder who, pursuant to the provisions arapany's articles of association, has the
power to appoint or prevent the appointment of fic@holder in the company, is under a duty towith fairness towards the company.

The Israeli Companies Law does not describe thstanbe of the aforementioned duty to act with fsmbut provides that laws
applicable to a breach of contract, adjusted adegr the circumstances and taking into accoumstatus within the company of such
shareholder, shall apply to a breach of such duty.

EXEMPTION, INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTO RS AND OFFICERS
Exemption of Office Holders

Under the Israeli Companies Law, an Israeli compaay not exempt an office holder from liability foreach of his duty of loyalty,
but may exempt in advance an office holder frorility to the company, in whole or in part, for eelach of his duty of care, provided the
articles of association of the company allow itlso. Our Articles allow us to exempt our offia@dersfrom liability towards us for breach
duty of care to the maximum extent permitted by.law

Office Holder Insurance

Our Articles provide that, subject to the provis@f the Israeli Companies Law, we may enter intoratract for the insurance of the
liability of any of our office holders for any agbne by him or her by virtue of being an officedwq, in respect of any of the following:

« abreach of duty of care towards us or any othesqoe

« abreach of fiduciary obligations towards us, pded that the office holder acted in good faith had reasonable grounds to
assume that his or her act would not be to ouirdett,
« afinancial liability imposed on him or her in favaf another person, or

« any other event for which insurance of an offickdbois or may be permitted.

Indemnification of Office Holders

Our Articles provide that we may indemnify an offibolder for the following cases of liability andpenses incurred by him or her as
a result of an act done by him or her by virtudeihg an office holder:

- financial liability imposed upon said office holdarfavor of another person by virtue of a decidigra court of law, including a
decision by way osettlement or a decision in arbitration which hasrbconfirmed by a court of la
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« reasonable expenses of the proceedings, includimgelrs’ fees, expended by the office holder or isgabon him by the court
for:

(1) proceedings issued against him by or on beidfdalie Company or by a third par!
(2) criminal proceedings in which the office holaeais acquitted; c
(3) criminal proceedings in which he was coracin an offense, which did not require proof afménal intent; or

« any other liability or expense for which the indéfization of an officer holder is not precluded layv.

We have obtained directors and officers liabilitgurance for the benefit of our office holdersadidition, we have sometimes grantec
indemnification letters to our office holders.

Limitations on Exemption, Insurance and Indemnifi¢ceon

The Israeli Companies Law provides that a compaay not exempt or indemnify an office holder, orezribto an insurance contract,
which would provide coverage for any monetary ligbincurred as a result of any of the following:

« abreach by the office holder of his or her dutyogflty towards the company unless, with respe@s$urance coverage, the
office holder acted in good faith and had a reastenbasis to believe that the act would not prejedhe company

« abreach by the office holder of his or her dutgarfe if the breach was done intentionally or resgly;

« any act or omission done with the intent to deawdllegal personal benefit; or

« any fine levied against the office holder.

Required Approvals

In addition, under the Israeli Companies Law, axgneption of, indemnification of, or procurementim§urance coverage for, our
office holders must be approved by our audit con@miand our Board of Directors and, if the benaficis a director, an additional approva
our shareholders is required.

RIGHTS OF ORDINARY SHARES

Our ordinary shares confer upon our shareholdersigit to receive notices of, and to attend, dhalder meetings, the right to one
vote per ordinary share at all shareholders' mgefior all purposes, and to share equally, on alpare basis, in such dividends as may be
declared by our Board of Directors; and upon ligtiwh or dissolution, the right to participate e tdistribution of any surplus assets of the
Company legally available for distribution to shasklers after payment of all debts and other liadd of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank pari passu in all respects with each other.

MEETINGS OF SHAREHOLDERS

An annual general meeting of our shareholdersheilheld at least once in every calendar yearatet than 15 months after the last
annual general meeting at such time and at sucie gither within or without the State of Israehaey be determined by our Board of
Directors.

Our Board of Directors may, whenever it deemsfihvene a special general meeting. Special gemeralings may also be convened
upon requisition in accordance with the Israeli @ames Law. Our Board is obligated to convene aiapgeneral meeting if it receives a
written request from any of (a) two Directors of25f the total number of Directors; (b) one or m8tareholders, holding at least 5% of our
outstanding share capital and at least 1% of theelolders’ voting power; or (c) one or more shaladrs holding no less than 5% of the our
outstanding voting shares.

MERGERS
A merger of the Company shall require resolutioopdd by a simple majority vote cast at a genessting, not taking into account
abstentions provided, however, that if the tranieads an extraordinary transaction with a coningjlshareholder or in which a controlling
shareholder has an interest, then the approvalsreggwill be the corporate approvals under thadrCompanies Law for such extraordinary
transaction.
C. Material Contracts

Except for the material contracts described in lfemRecent Developments, in Item biguidity and Capital Resources and in Iter
- Compensation, we are not a party to any otheer@icontracts outside of the ordinary courseugibess.

65




D. Exchange Controls

Pursuant to a general permit issued in 1998 bysttaeli Controller of Foreign Exchange under ther€ucy Control Law, 1978 (the
"Currency Control Law"), there are virtually no tiéstions on foreign exchange in the State of Israxecept for certain reporting obligations.

E. Taxation

To the extent that the following discussion is loese new or existing tax or other legislation thas not been subject to judicial or
administrative interpretation, there can be no i@ssie that the views expressed herein will be @eddpy the tax or other authorities in
qguestion. This discussion is not intended, noukhit be construed, as legal or professional thice and it is not exhaustive of all possible
tax considerations.

Israeli Taxation

The following is a summary of the current matelsaaeli tax laws applicable to companies in Isaith special reference to its effect
on us. This summary does not discuss all the ddssaeli tax law that may be relevant to a pattcinvestor in light of his or her personal
investment circumstances or to some types of iovesubject to special treatment under Israeli Beme parts of this discussion are based ol
new tax legislation that has not been subjectdicjal or administrative interpretation. Accordiggive cannot assure you that the views
expressed in the discussion will be accepted byathauthorities in question. The discussion isintended and should not be construed as
legal or professional tax advice and does not callgrossible tax considerations.

POTENTIAL INVESTORS AND HOLDERS OF OUR SHARES ARE URGED TO CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX
ADVISORS AS TO THE ISRAELI OR OTHER TAX CONSEQUENCE S OF THE PURCHASE, OWNERSHIP AND DISPOSITION
OF OUR ORDINARY SHARES, INCLUDING, IN PARTICULAR, T HE EFFECT OF ANY FOREIGN, STATE OR LOCAL TAXES.

The following discussion describes the materiadtirtax consequences regarding ownership and slispoof SuperCom'’s ordinary
shares applicable to non-Israeli shareholdersydéiicy U.S. shareholders.

General Corporate Tax Structure

Israeli companies are generally subject corpoeat®h their taxable income at the rate of 25%lier2012 and 2013 tax years.
Following an amendment to the Israeli Income Tadi@ance, 1961 (the "Tax Ordinance"), which came é&ftect on January 1, 2012, the
corporate tax rate is scheduled to remain at tteeafa25% for future tax years.

Taxation of Capital Gains Applicable to Israeli Sha@holders and Non-Israeli Shareholders
General

Israeli law generally imposes a capital gains tathe sale of any capital assets by residentsaéllsas defined for Israeli tax
purposes, and on the sale of assets located il lgraluding shares in Israeli companies, by beiidents and non-residents of Israel, unless .
specific exemption is available or unless a taatyrédetween Israel and the shareholder’s countrgsiflence provides otherwise. The law
distinguishes between real gain and inflationanplsis. The inflationary surplus is a portion of ti¢al capital gain which is equivalent to the
increase of the relevant asset’s purchase pricehaifiattributable to the increase in the Isragtisumer price index or, in certain
circumstances, a foreign currency exchange rateigdes the date of purchase and the date of saéerélah gain is the excess of the total capite
gain over the inflationary surplus.
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Israeli residents:
Individuals:

Commencing in January 1, 2012, a real capital daitving to an individual will be taxed at a rafe26%, on condition that the
income is not classified as business income fragnvtintage point of the individual. This will apptythe entire real capital gain accrued since
the date of purchase, or since January 1, 200@ iptrchase preceded that date.

Notwithstanding the above, the real capital gailhlvé taxed at a rate of 30% in the following instes:

1. The individual deducts interest expenses and lialdifferentials

2. The seller is a "significant shareholderthat date of the sale of the securities or at ang tluring the 12nonth period precedil
the sale. A "significant shareholder" is definedjaneral as shareholder who holds, either dir@astindirectly, alone or together
with another, at least 10% of any form of a medn=atrol in a company. The term "together with #res" means together with
a relative, or together with someone who is nalative with which the individual, either directy indirectly, has a regular
cooperative agreement regarding the affairs ottmpany.

Companies:

The real capital gain on the sale of securitiea lopmpany will be taxed at the corporate tax rpfdieable during the year of sale
6 for the tax year onwards).
(25% for the 2012 ds)

Non-Israeli residents:

In general, Non-residents of Israel will be exeffinpin capital gain tax in relation to the sale adioary shares traded on a recognized
stock exchange as long as (a) the capital gaintigwrhis permanent establishment in Israel, (B)dhdinary shares in relation to which the
capital gains are derived were acquired by theesident after the initial listing of the ordinafyases and (c) neither the shareholder nor the
capital gain is subject to certain sections ofltinaeli income tax ordinance.

However, non-Israeli corporations will not be detitto such exemption if Israeli residents (i) haveontrolling interest of 25% or
more in such non-Israeli corporation, or (ii) ane beneficiaries or are entitled to 25% or morthefrevenues or profits of such non-Israeli
corporation, whether directly or indirectly.

In addition, pursuant to the Income Tax Treaty leetwlisrael and the U.S. (the “Tax Treatygjains derived from the sale, exchang
disposition of our ordinary shares by a person ghalifies as a resident of the U.S. within the niieguof the Tax Treaty and who is entitled to
claim the benefits afforded to US residents unkerTtax Treaty, referred to as a Treaty US Residemijd not be subject to Israeli capital
gains tax, unless such US Resident owned, directigdirectly, shares representing 10% or morénefuoting power of our company at any
time during the 12-month period preceding such, sdehange or disposition.

In some instances where our shareholders may lile ki@ Israeli tax on the sale of their ordinararss, the payment of the
consideration may be subject to the withholdindsodeli tax at the source. However, under the Tigally, such U.S. resident would be
permitted to claim a credit for such taxes agaimstU.S. federal income tax imposed with respesutth sale, exchange or disposition, subjec
to the limitations in U.S. laws applicable to fameitax credits. The Tax Treaty does not relate.®. State or local taxes.

Tax on Dividends

Non-residents of Israel are subject to income tainoome accrued or derived from sources in IsiEese sources of income include
passive income such as dividends. On distributidriividends other than bonus shares, or stoclddivds, income tax is applicable at the rate
of 25%, or 30% for a shareholder that is considersjnificant shareholder at any time during tReribnth period preceding such distributi
A different rate may be provided in a treaty betwésrael and the shareholder’s country of residedoeler the Tax Treaty, the maximum tax
on dividends paid to a holder of our ordinary skavbo is a US resident is 25%; however if not ntbhem 25% of our gross income consists of
interest or dividends, then the maximum tax is 42f6r a shareholder who is a US corporation holdihtgast 10% of our issued voting power
during the part of the taxable year preceding tite df payment of the dividend and during the wiadlthe prior taxable year (and additional
conditions under the Tax Treaty are met).
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U.S. Federal Income Taxation
General

The following is a summary of the material U.S.d&al income tax consequences of the ownership spasition of our ordinary
shares and warrants. The following discussion iserbaustive of all possible tax considerationgs Bammary is based upon the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”)|atgs promulgated under the Code by the U.S.singaDepartment (including
proposed and temporary regulations), rulings, ctraéministrative interpretations and official pooimcements of the Internal Revenue Ser
(the “IRS"), and judicial decisions, all as curignn effect and all of which are subject to diffey interpretations or to change, possibly with
retroactive effect. Such change could materially adversely affect the tax consequences descrigdlesvbNo assurance can be given that the
IRS would not assert, or that a court would notansa position contrary to any of the tax consgmes described below.

This discussion does not address state, locaireigh tax consequences of the ownership and dtaposf ordinary shares and
warrants (see “Israeli Taxation” above).

This summary is for general information only aneéslaot address all aspects of the U.S. federalriadaxation that may be import
to a particular holder in light of its investmenmttax circumstances or to holders subject to sp&tarules, such as: banks; financial
institutions; insurance companies; dealers in stpos&curities, or currencies; traders in securitiaselect to use a mark-to-market method of
accounting for their securities holdings; tax-exéomganizations; real estate investment trustsjleggd investment companies; qualified
retirement plans, individual retirement accounts] ather tax-deferred accounts; expatriates obtise; persons subject to the alternative
minimum tax; persons holding ordinary shares orar#s as part of a straddle, hedge, conversiosdrion, or other integrated transaction;
persons who acquired ordinary shares or warramgipat to the exercise of any employee stock omtiastherwise as compensation for
services; persons actually or constructively h@di®@% or more of our voting stock; and U.S. Holdasdefined below) whose functional
currency is other than the U.S. dollar.

This discussion is not a comprehensive descripifall of the U.S. federal tax consequences that bearelevant with respect to the
ownership and disposition of our ordinary shareswarrants. We urge you to consult your own taxsatwegarding your particular
circumstances and the U.S. federal income andeastatconsequences to you of owning and dispodingroordinary shares and warrants, as
well as any tax consequences arising under the dhamny state, local, or foreign or other tax jditsion and the possible effects of changes in
U.S. federal or other tax laws.

This summary only addresses ordinary shares andmtarthat are held as capital assets within thening of Section 1221 of the
Code, which generally means as property held fegstment, and were acquired upon original issuahtieeir initial public offering price. For
purposes of this discussion, the term “U.S. Holde€ans a beneficial owner of our ordinary sharesvearrants that is any of the following:

« acitizen or resident of the U.S. or someone tckatea U.S. citizen or resident for U.S. federabme tax purposes;

« acorporation (or other entity taxable as a corpamefor U.S. federal income tax purposes) createdrganized in or under the
laws of the U.S., any state thereof, or the DistifdColumbia;

» an estate, the income of which is subject to Ue8efal income taxation regardless of its source;

« atrustifaU.S. court can exercise primary suigém over the trust administration and one or more U.S. personsiieezed
to control all substantial decisions of the trast

« atrustin existence on August 20, 1996 that heaid election in effect under applicable TreasRiBgulations to be treated as a
U.S. person

The term “Non-U.S. Holder” means a beneficial owokour ordinary shares and warrants that is i Holder. As described in
“Taxation of Non-U.S. Holders” below, the tax cogeences to a Non-U.S. Holder may differ substdgtfadbm the tax consequences to a U.S
Holder.

If a partnership (including for this purpose antitgrireated as a partnership for U.S. federal medax purposes) is a beneficial ow
of our ordinary shares and warrants, the U.S. Bddecome tax consequences to a partner in thegrattip will generally depend on the status
of the partner and the activities of the partngrshiholder of our ordinary shares and warrantsigha partnership and the partners in such
partnership should consult their own tax advisegmarding the U.S. federal income tax consequerfdbe @wnership and disposition of our
ordinary shares and warrants.
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Taxation of U.S. Holders

The discussion in “Distributions on Ordinary Shamsd “Dispositions of Ordinary Shares or Warrariiglow assumes that we will
not be treated as a passive foreign investment anyn@PFIC”) for U.S. federal income tax purposésr a discussion of the rules that apply if
we are treated as a PFIC, see the discussion ssitRaForeign Investment Company” below.

Distributions on Ordinary Share:

General.Subject to the discussion in “Passive Foreign Itnmeat Company” below, if you actually or construety receive a
distribution on ordinary shares, you must incluae distribution in gross income as a taxable divitlen the date of your receipt of the
distribution, but only to the extent of our curremtaccumulated earnings and profits, as calculateir U.S. federal income tax principles.
Such amount must be included without reductiorafoy Israeli tax withheld. Dividends paid by us gaifig will not be eligible for the
dividends received deduction allowed to corporatiamith respect to dividends received from certai.l¢orporations. Dividends paid by us
may or may not be eligible for preferential ratpplacable to qualified dividend income, as desalibelow.

To the extent a distribution exceeds our curredtastumulated earnings and profits, it will be teddirst as a non-taxable return of
capital to the extent of your adjusted tax basih@ordinary shares, and thereafter as capital §aeferential tax rates for long-term capital
gain may be applicable to non-corporate U.S. Halder

We do not intend to calculate our earnings anditgrahder U.S. federal income tax principles. Tfene you should expect that a
distribution will generally be reported as a dividesven if that distribution would otherwise beatesd as a non-taxable return of capital or as
capital gain under the rules described above.

Qualified Dividend Income.With respect to non-corporate U.S. Holders (irelividuals, trusts, and estates), for taxableyea
beginning on or before December 31, 2012, divideéhdsare treated as qualified dividend income (FQRre taxable at a maximum tax rat
15%. Among other requirements, dividends generaillybe treated as QDI if either (i) our ordinaryases are readily tradable on an
established securities market in the U.S., om@)are eligible for the benefits of a comprehengieeme tax treaty with the U.S. which
includes an information exchange program and whsicketermined to be satisfactory by the U.S. Trgadtor example, it is expected that our
ordinary shares will be “readily tradable” if asesult of being listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market

In addition, for dividends to be treated as QDI,muast not be a PFIC (as discussed below) for eftteetaxable year in which the
dividend was paid or the preceding taxable yeardé/aot believe that we will be a PFIC for our emntrtaxable year.However, please see t
discussion under “Passive Foreign Investment Cogidaglow. Additionally, in order to qualify for QDreatment, you generally must have
held the ordinary shares for more than 60 daysduthie 121-day period beginning 60 days prior toek-dividend date. However, your
holding period will be reduced for any period dgrimhich the risk of loss is diminished.

Moreover, a dividend will not be treated as QDthe extent you are under an obligation (whethesyamt to a short sale or otherw
to make related payments with respect to positiossibstantially similar or related property. Sirtiee QDI rules are complex, you should
consult your own tax advisor regarding the avalighof the preferential tax rates for dividendsgan ordinary shares.

Exercise or Lapse of Warrant

Upon the exercise of our warrants, a U.S. Holddéirnit recognize gain or loss and will have a tasib in the ordinary shares recei
equal to the U.S. Holder's tax basis in the warpns the exercise price of the warrant. The hagiariod for the shares purchased pursuant 1
the exercise of a warrant will begin on the dajofwing the date of exercise and will not include fieriod during which the U.S. Holder held
the warrant. If a warrant lapses unexercised, a HaBler will recognize a capital loss in an amoeqtial to its tax basis in the warrant. Such
loss will be long-term if the warrant has been Heldmore than one year. See “Disposition of Ordjrtéhares or Warrants” below for a
discussion of capital gains tax rates and limitagion deductions for losses. The loss will gengtadl from U.S. sources, but the loss may be
from a non-U.S. source under some circumstancesruhd U.S.-Israel Tax Treaty. U.S. Holders shaaldsult their own independent tax
advisors regarding the sourcing of any losses ditieet lapse of our warrants before exercise.
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Dispositions of Ordinary Shares or Warran

Subject to the discussion in “Passive Foreign Itnaeat Companybelow, you generally will recognize taxable gairass realized ¢
the sale or other taxable disposition of ordindrgres or warrants equal to the difference betweetS. dollar value of (i) the amount reali
on the disposition (i.e., the amount of cash phesfair market value of any property received), @)dour adjusted tax basis in the ordinary
shares or warrants. Such gain or loss will be ahgéin or loss.

If you have held the ordinary shares or warrantsrfore than one year at the time of dispositioshstapital gain or loss will be long-
term capital gain or loss. Preferential tax rateddng-term capital gain (currently, with a maximuate of 15% for taxable years beginning
before December 31, 2012) will apply to non-corpetd.S. Holders. If you have held the ordinary sbasr warrants for one year or less, such
capital gain or loss will be short-term capitalrgar loss taxable as ordinary income at your matgimcome tax rate. The deductibility of
capital losses is subject to limitations.

Passive Foreign Investment Compa

We generally will be a PFIC under Section 1297hef Code if, for a taxable year, either (a) 75% orevof our gross income for such
taxable year is passive income (the “income test(p) 50% or more of the average quarterly peasmtgenerally determined by fair market
value, of our assets either produce passive inaomaee held for the production of “passive incorie (‘asset test”). Passive income includes,
for example, dividends, interest, certain rents ianyalties, certain gains from the sale of stoctt s@curities, and certain gains from
commodities transactions.

Certain “look through” rules apply for purposegtod income and asset tests described above. linmedirectly or indirectly, 25% or
more of the total value of the outstanding shafeshother foreign corporation, we will be treatedfave (a) held directly a proportionate share
of the other corporation’s assets, and (b) recedliexttly a proportionate share of the other camion’s income. In addition, passive income
does not include any interest, dividends, rentspgalties that are received or accrued by us fadimelated person” (as defined in Section 954
(d)(3) of the Code), to the extent such items aopgrly allocable to income of such related pettbat is not passive income.

Under the income and asset tests, whether or nareva PFIC will be determined annually based upercomposition of our income
and the composition and valuation of our assetsfalhich are subject to change. In determiniraf thie are not a PFIC, we are relying on our
projected revenues and projected capital experdituf our actual revenues and capital expenditdoasot match our projections, we may
become a PFIC. For example, if we do not spendgmoiithe cash (a passive asset) we raise fronfiagycing transactions we may
undertake, the relative percentage of our passisets will increase. In addition, our determinat®hased on a current valuation of our assets
including goodwill, if it exists. In calculating gdwill, we should value our total assets basedwmuarket capitalization, determined using the
market price of our ordinary shares. Such markieepnay fluctuate. If our market capitalizationass than anticipated or subsequently
declines, this will decrease the value of our gaticdwd we may become a PFIC. Furthermore, we malgara number of assumptions
regarding the amount of value allocable to goodwitbwever, it is possible that the IRS will chaliensuch valuation of goodwill, which may
result in our being a PFIC.

We do not believe that we are currently a PFIC. elav, because the PFIC determination is highlyifaetsive and made at the end
of each taxable year, there can be no assurance¢haill not be a PFIC for the current or any fietiaxable year or that the IRS will not
challenge our determination concerning our PFI@stdf we determine that we are a PFIC, we whktaeasonable steps to notify you.

Default PFIC Rules under Section 1291 of the Ctfdee are a PFIC, the U.S. federal income tax cqueaces to a U.S. Holder of 1
ownership and disposition of ordinary shares andamss will depend on whether such U.S. Holder rsak®election to treat us as a qualified
electing fund (“QEF”) under Section 1295 of the €dd “QEF Election”) or a mark-to-market electiamder Section 1296 of the Code (a
“Mark-to-Market Election”). A U.S. Holder owning dinary shares and warrants while we were or arel@ Ehat has not made either a QEF
Election or a Mark-to-Market Election will be refed to in this summary as a “Non-Electing U.S. Hold

If you are a Non-Electing U.S. Holder, you will bebject to the default tax rules of Section 129thefCode with respect to:
« any “excess distribution” paid on ordinary shaned warrants, which means any distribution receiwggou which, together
with all other distributions received in the cuttréaxable year, exceeds 125% of the average disimitis received by you during

the three preceding taxable years (or during yoldihg period for the ordinary shares and warrahthorter); anc
« any gain recognized on the sale or other taxalsieodition (including a pledge) of ordinary shaned warrants.
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Under these default tax rules:

« any excess distribution or gain will be allocatathbly over your holding period for the ordinanasts and warrants;

« the amount allocated to the current taxable yedraauy period prior to the first day of the firskadble year in which we were a
PFIC will be treated as ordinary income in the entiyear,

« the amount allocated to each of the other yeatswitreated as ordinary income and taxed at thleesit applicable tax rate in
effect for that year; an

« the resulting tax liability from any such prior yeavill be subject to the interest charge applieablunderpayments of tax.

In addition, notwithstanding any election you magk®, dividends that you receive from us will notdtigible for the preferential tax
rates applicable to QDI (as discussed above inttiDigions on Ordinary Shares”) if we are a PFI@ei in the taxable year of the distribution
or the preceding taxable year, but will insteadeb@ble at rates applicable to ordinary income.

Special rules for Non-Electing U.S. Holders willbpto determine U.S. foreign tax credits with resipto withholding taxes imposed
on distributions on ordinary shares.

If we are a PFIC for any taxable year during whioln hold ordinary shares or warrants, we will coué to be treated as a PFIC with
respect to you for all succeeding years during tvigimu hold ordinary shares or warrants, regardiésghether we actually continue to be a
PFIC. You may terminate this deemed PFIC statuslésting to recognize gain (which will be taxed enthe default tax rules of Section 1291
of the Code discussed above) as if your ordinaayeshor warrants had been sold on the last dayedbst taxable year for which we were a
PFIC.

If we are a PFIC in any year with respect to yaw will be required to file an annual return on IR@&m 8621 regarding distributions
received on ordinary shares and any gain realipetth® disposition of ordinary shares or warrants.

QEF Election. If you make a QEF Election, you generally wiltfo@ subject to the default rules of Section 12Bthe Code
discussed above. Instead, you will be subject toeott U.S. federal income tax on your pro rata sledirour ordinary earnings and net capital
gain, regardless of whether such amounts are &ctliatributed to you by us. However, you can mak@EF Election only if we agree to
furnish you annually with certain tax informati@nd we currently do not intend to prepare or prexadch information.

Mark-to-Market Election. U.S. Holders may make a Mark-to-Market Electiout, only if the ordinary shares are marketablelstoc
The ordinary shares will be “marketable stock”@syl as they listed on NASDAQ, and are regularlgerh Stock is “regularly traded” for any
calendar year during which it is traded (other thade minimis quantities) on at least fifteen ddysing each calendar quarter. There can k
assurances, however, that our ordinary sharedwilleated, or continue to be treated, as reguiatied.

If the ordinary shares are marketable stock andmyake a Mark-to-Market Election, you generally witit be subject to the default
rules of Section 1291 of the Code discussed ativather, you generally will be required to recogrozginary income for any increase in the
fair market value of the ordinary shares and wasréor each taxable year that we are a PFIC. Ydiualgio be allowed to deduct as an ordinary
loss any decrease in the fair market value to xiené of net marked-to-market gain previously imigd in prior years. Your adjusted tax basis
in the ordinary shares and warrants will be adjistereflect the amount included or deducted.

The Mark-to-Market Election will be effective fane taxable year for which the election is madeahsubsequent taxable years,
unless the ordinary shares and warrants ceasen@betable stock or the IRS consents to the reigtaf the election. You should consult
your own tax advisor regarding the availability afid procedure for making, a M-to-Market Election.

Since the PFIC rules are complex, you should coysuir own tax advisor regarding them and how timay affect the U.S. federal
income tax consequences of the ownership and digposf ordinary shares and warrants.
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Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Generally, information reporting requirements \&jliply to distributions on ordinary shares or pralseen the disposition of ordinary
shares and warrants paid within the U.S. (andeitat cases, outside the U.S.) to U.S. Holdersrdtian certain exempt recipients, such as
corporations. Furthermore, backup withholding (ently at 28%) may apply to such amounts if the WH&8der fails to (i) provide a correct
taxpayer identification number, (ii) report interasd dividends required to be shown on its U.8erfal income tax return, or (iii) make other
appropriate certifications in the required mankk§s. Holders who are required to establish theénept status generally must provide such
certification on IRS Form W-9.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Amtawithheld as backup withholding from a paymengda may be credited against
your U.S. federal income tax liability and you natain a refund of any excess amounts withheldlimgfthe appropriate claim for refur
with the IRS and furnishing any required informatia a timely manner.

Taxation of Non-U.S. Holders
Distributions on Ordinary Share:

Subject to the discussion in “Information Reportargl Backup Withholding” below, as a Non-U.S. Hold@u generally will not be
subject to U.S. federal income tax, including wiltling tax, on distributions received on ordinamaies, unless the distributions are effecti
connected with a trade or business that you coridube U.S. and (if an applicable income tax yest requires) attributable to a permanent
establishment that you maintain in the U.S.

If distributions are effectively connected with aSUJtrade or business and (if applicable) attriblgt#do a U.S. permanent establishm
you generally will be subject to tax on such digitions in the same manner as a U.S. Holder, asibed in“Taxation of U.S. Holders —
Distributions on Ordinary Shares” above. In additiany such distributions received by a corporaia-N.S. Holder may also, under certain
circumstances, be subject to an additional “brarofits tax” at a 30% rate or such lower rate ay @ specified by an applicable income tax
treaty.

Dispositions of Ordinary Shares and Warran

Subject to the discussion in “Information Reportamgl Backup Withholding” below, as a Non-U.S. Hold@u generally will not be
subject to U.S. federal income tax, including wilding tax, on any gain recognized on a sale oerdidixable disposition of ordinary shares
and warrants, unless (i) the gain is effectivelgroected with a trade or business that you conauttd U.S. and (if an applicable income tax
treaty so requires) attributable to a permaneitdishment that you maintain in the U.S., or (duyare an individual and are present in the
for at least 183 days in the taxable year of tispaBition, and certain other conditions are present

If you meet the test in clause (i) above, you galhewill be subject to tax on any gain that iseeffively connected with your conduct
of a trade or business in the U.S. in the same araama U.S. Holder, as described in “Taxation &. Wolders — Dispositions of Ordinary
Shares and Warrants” above. Effectively connectad gealized by a corporate Non-U.S. Holder mag,aleder certain circumstances, be
subject to an additional “branch profits tax” @8G@26 rate or such lower rate as may be specifieginbgpplicable income tax treaty.

If you meet the test in clause (ii) above, you gelhewill be subject to tax at a 30% rate on theoant by which your U.S. source
capital gain exceeds your U.S. source capital loss.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Payments to Non-U.S. Holders of distributions arpmmceeds from the disposition of, ordinary shames warrants are generally
exempt from information reporting and backup witlliag. However, a Non-U.S. Holder may be require@dgtablish that exemption by
providing certification of non-U.S. status on apagpriate IRS Form W-8.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Amawithheld as backup withholding from a paymengda may be credited against

your U.S. federal income tax liability and you natain a refund of any excess amounts withheldlimgfthe appropriate claim for refur
with the IRS and furnishing any required informatia a timely manner.
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Medicare Tax

In addition to the taxes on dividends and dispasgtiof our shares or warrants described aboventtg@nacted legislation requires certain (
Holders that are individuals, estates or trusisay up to an additional 3.8% tax on net investniedme, which may include dividends and
capital gains, for taxable years beginning aftecddeber 31, 2012.

F. Dividends and Paying Ager
Not applicable.

G. Statements by Exper
Not applicable.

H. Documents on Displa

We are subject to the informational requirementhefExchange Act, applicable to foreign privasuers. We, as a “foreign private
issuer,”are exempt from the rules under the Exchange Astquibing certain disclosure and procedural requergts for proxy solicitations, a
our officers, directors and principal shareholdees exempt from the reporting and “short-swingfijpn@covery provisions contained in
Section 16 of the Exchange Act, with respect tdr fhgrchases and sales of shares. In additionreveat required to file annual, quarterly and
current reports and financial statements with tBE &s frequently or as promptly as U.S. compantesse securities are registered under the
Exchange Act. However, we will file with the SE@nemencing with the fiscal year ending December281,1 within four months after the
end of each fiscal year, an annual report on Fdi#f 2ontaining financial statements audited byralependent accounting firm. We also
expect to furnish quarterly reports on Form 6-Ktedgring unaudited interim financial information fibre first three quarters of each fiscal year
within 90 days after the end of such quarter.

You may read and copy any document we file or Bhrmiith the SEC at reference facilities at 450nF8treet, NW, Washington, DC
20549. You may also obtain copies of the documanpsescribed rates by writing to the Public RefeeeSection of the SEC at 450 Fifth
Street, NW, Washington, DC 20549. Please call th€ &t 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on tiperation of the public reference
facilities. You can review our SEC filings and tiegistration statement by accessing the SEC’sriatesite at http://www.sec.gov.

I.  Subsidiary Information
Not applicable.
ITEM 11. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MakRisk.
Quantitative and Qualitative Information about MatkRisk

The primary objective of our investment activitidsany, is to preserve principal while at the saime maximizing the income we
receive from investments without significantly ieasing risk. Some of the securities in which we imagst may be subject to market risk.
This means that a change in prevailing interessranhd foreign currency rates against the NIS magesthe value of the investment to
fluctuate. For example, if we purchase a secuhiy tvas issued with a fixed interest rate and teggiling interest rate later rises, the value of
our investment will probably decline. To minimizad risk, we may maintain our portfolio of cash eglents and short-term investments in a
variety of securities, including U.S. dollars, Nd@nk deposits, money market funds and governmehhan-government debt securities. In
general, money market funds are not subject to etaisk because the interest paid on such fundsuftes with the prevailing interest rate.

Our financial market risk includes risks relatedrtternational operations and related foreign qwies. We anticipate that sales
outside of North America will continue to accouot & significant portion of our consolidated revernin 2012. To date, most of our sales have
been valued in dollars. In future periods, we expec sales to continue to be principally valuedatiars, narrowing foreign currency
exchange risk.

We value part of our expenses in some of our iatéwnal operations, such as Israel, in each colsnigal currency, and therefore are
subject to foreign currency exchange risk. Howetlequgh December 31, 2011 , we have not experitang significant negative impact on
our operations as a result of fluctuations in fometurrency exchange rates; we have incurred amia®f $56,000 in the year ended Decen
31, 2012 due to fluctuations in foreign exchandesaWe do not use financial instruments to heggraiing expenses in Israel that are valuec
in local currency. We intend to continue to assheseed to utilize financial instruments to hedgeency exposures on an ongoing basis.
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We do not use derivative financial instrumentssjpeculative trading purposes, nor do we hedgearaign currency exposure to
offset the effects of changes in foreign exchardgest

Our exposure to market risks for changes in inteass relates primarily to our credit facilityt Becember 31, 2011, our financial
market risk related to this debt was immaterialr @eneral policy is to limit the risk of principlalss and ensure the safety of invested funds b
limiting market and credit risk.

Foreign currency risk

Most of our sales are denominated in U.S. dolkansg, we incur most of our expenses in U.S. dollacslaraeli Shekels. According to
the salient economic factors indicated in ASC T@386, “Foreign Currency Mattersgur cash flow, sale price, sales market, expemsanding
and inter-company transactions and arrangemertatals are predominantly denominated in U.S. dallar addition, the U.S. dollar is the
primary currency of the economic environment inebhive operate, and thus the U.S. dollar is ourtfanal and reporting currency.

In our balance sheet, we remeasure into U.S. dadlhmonetary accounts (principally cash and eaglhivalents and liabilities) that
maintained in other currencies. For this remeasargnve use the foreign exchange rate at the bakirest date. Any gain or loss that results
from this remeasurement is reflected in the statgrmkEincome as financial income or financial expenas appropriate.

We measure and record non-monetary accounts ihalance sheet (principally fixed assets, prepapkrges and share capital) in
U.S. dollars. For this measurement we use the dbifar value in effect at the date that the assétbility was initially recorded in our balan
sheet (the date of the transaction).

Interest Rate Risk

Our cash borrowing from Israeli bank is subjednterest rate changes, and therefore our interkgEnses are sensitive to changes in
interest rates. The interest rate on our borrowarigpked to LIBOR, which fluctuates. However, tAmount of borrowings that we have that is
linked to LIBOR is not material to us as a wholed @aherefore our exposure to fluctuations in LIB@i® is not material as well.

ITEM 12 . Description of Securities Other than Equity Secues.
Not applicable.

PART II
ITEM 13 . Defaults, Dividend Arrearages and Delinquencies.

A. None

B. None.
ITEM 14. Material Modifications to the Rights of Security Hders and Use of Proceeds
None.
ITEM 15. Controls and Procedures.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management has evaluated the effectiveneas afisclosure controls and procedures (as definétuie 13a-15(e) under the
Exchange Act) as of December 31, 2012. Our disodosantrols and procedures include components ioindernal control over financial

reporting. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Exige Officer and Chief Financial Officer have ctuded that our disclosure controls and
procedures, as of December 31, 2012, were effective
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Disclosure controls and procedures are our conaidisother procedures that are designed to ertsatrenformation required to be
disclosed by us in the reports that we file or sitlumder the Exchange Act is recorded, processednsarized and reported, within the time
periods specified in the SEC's rules and formscldsure controls and procedures include, withauitéition, controls and procedures designe:
to ensure that information required to be discldsgds in the reports that we file or submit unither Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our praiexecutive and principal financial officers,aspropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Management believes that the consolidated finastééments included in this report present fain\gll material respects, our
financial position, results of operations and cisivs for the period presented.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over ourriiial reporting (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act) to provide oeeble assurance regarding the reliability of auarfcial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with U.S. GAAP, and includes policies andcpdures that:

« pertain to the maintenance of records that in re@lsie detail accurately and fairly reflect our sactions and asset dispositions;

« provide reasonable assurance that transactionmse@aled as necessary to permit the preparationrdinancial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

« provide reasonable assurance that receipts ande@itpes are made only in accordance with authtoma of our management
and Board of Directors (as appropriate); .

« provide reasonable assurance regarding the preventitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose or disposition of assets
that could have a material effect on our finanstatements

Our management assessed the effectiveness ofahtemntrol over financial reporting as of DecemBgr 2012, the end of our fiscal
year. In making this assessment, management useditbria set forth by the Committee of Sponsofrganizations of the Treadw.
Commission (COSO) in the report entitled “Inter@aintrol — Integrated Framework.”

Based on that assessment, our Chief Executiveéffiod Chief Financial Officer have concluded thathad maintain effective
internal control over financial reporting.

Inherent limitations on effectiveness of contr

Internal control over financial reporting has indr@rlimitations. Internal control over financiaprting is a process that involves
human diligence and compliance and is subjectgsds in judgment and breakdowns resulting from mufaidures. Internal control over
financial reporting also can be circumvented byusibn or improper management override. Becauseicii limitations, there is a risk that
material misstatements will not be prevented oedtetd on a timely basis by internal control oveaficial reporting. However, these inherent
limitations are known features of the financialagjmg process. Therefore, it is possible to de@igm the process safeguards to reduce, thoug
not eliminate, this risk.
Attestation Report of Registered Public Accountind=irm
Not applicable
Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reportng

During the period covered by this Annual Reportchanges in our internal control over financialoemg have occurred that
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenally affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

ITEM 16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert
Our Board of Directors has determined that MegsvsAyash and Shlomit Sarusi, both members of adibcommittee, are audit

committee financial experts, as defined under thehBnge Act Rules, and are independent in accoedaitb applicable Exchange Act
rules. The relevant experience of each of thermansnsarized in Item 6A-"Directors and Senior Managethe
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ITEM 16B. Code of Ethics

Our Board of Directors adopted a code of ethicsdpalies to our chief executive officer, chiefdircial officer (if any), director of
finance, controller, and other persons performingjlar functions a copy of which is previously filend incorporated by reference to this
Annual Report. A copy of our code of ethics will pp@vided, without charge, upon written requesamf person delivered as follows: Nolton
House, 14 Shenkar Street P.O.B 12190, HertzliyazaPht 46725 Israel.

ITEM 16C. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Deloitte Brightman Almagor Zohar & Co. a membenfiof Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu serves as our praidipdependent registered pul
accounting firm for the financial year 2012 anchikaKanne & Co., a member of Grant Thornton, hagsesk as our principal independ
registered public accounting firm for the FY 20%dnd.

The following table presents the fees to our exteanditors for professional services renderethényears ended December 31, 2012 and 201

2012 2011
Audit Fees 40,00( 61,00(
Audit-Related Fee - -
Tax Fees 5,00( 5,00(
Total 45,00( 66,00(

“Audit Fees” are the aggregate fees billed for the audit ofasunual financial statements. This category alsludes services that
generally the independent registered public acdogtitrm provides, such as statutory audits inahgdaudits required by Israeli government
institutes, consents and assistance with and resiel@cuments filed with the SEC.

“Tax Fees” are the aggregate fees billed for professionaliseswendered for tax compliance and tax advidegrdhan in connection
with the audit. Tax compliance involves preparatiémriginal and amended tax returns, tax planming tax advice.

Pre-Approval Policies for Non-Audit Services

The audit committee has adopted policies and proesdelating to the approval of all audit and @amclit services that are to be
performed by our independent auditors. These gdigenerally provide that we will not engage odejrendent auditors to render audit or not
audit services unless the service is specificgllyraved in advance by the Audit Committee or thgagiement is entered into pursuant to the
pre-approval procedure described below.

From time to time, the audit comnétteay pre-approve specified types of servicesateexpected to be provided to us by our
independent auditors during the next 12 months. gutgh pre-approval is detailed as to the particsgavice or type of services to be provided
and is also generally subject to a maximum dolaoant.

ITEM 16D. Exemptions from the Listing Standards for Audit Caomnittees
None.

ITEM 16E. Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer afffiliated Purchasers
None.

ITEM 16F. Change in Registrant’s Certifying Accountant
Not applicable.

ITEM 16G. Corporate Governance

Not applicable.
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ITEM 16H. Mine Safety Disclosure

Not applicable.

PART IlI
ITEM 17. Financial Statements.

Not applicable.

ITEM 18. Financial Statements.
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Deloitte

Brightman Almagor Zohar
REPORT OF INDE PEN DENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders of
SuperCom Ltd. (formerly Vuance Itd.)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of SuperCom Ltd and subsidiaries (thenflany") as of December 31, 2012,
and the related consolidated statements of opemstahanges in shareholders’ equity and cash flonthe year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Compangisagement. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to havewere we engaged to perform, an audit of iterimal control over financial reportir
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for desigrénglit procedures that are appropriate it
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssin opinion on the effectiveness of the Compsuripternal control over financ
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinidn audit also includes examining, on a test hasigdence supporting the amounts
disclosures in the financial statements, assedsi@gaccounting principles used and significantnestés made by management, as we
evaluating the overall financial statement pres@maWe believe that our audits provide a reastmbasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits, the consddidafinancial statements referred to above presainly,fin all material respects, t
consolidated financial position of SuperCom Ltdd aubsidiaries as of December 31, 2012, and thétsesf their operations, and their ¢
flows for the year then ended, in conformity witttaunting principles generally accepted in the &bhibtates of America.

/sl Brightman Almagor Zohar & Co.
Certified Public Accountants
A member firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Tel Aviv, Israel
March 21, 2013
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE S HEETS

SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

U.S. dollars in thousands

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel
Trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtfucamts
of $ 1,726 and $ 134 as of December 31, 2082811, respectively
Deferred tax short ter
Other accounts receivable and prepaid expenses @Y
Inventories, net (Note 4)

Total current assets

Severance pay fur
Deferred tax long terr

Property and equipment, net (Note 6)

Total assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdinsolidated financial statements.
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2012 2011
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SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share data

December 31

2012 2011
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Shor-term bank credi $ 101 $ 11z

Trade payable 1,78C 2,43¢

Employees and payroll accrui 13¢ 13¢

Accrued expenses and other liabilities (Nott 777 2,16¢

Convertible bonds (Note 1. - 2,51¢

Short-term loan and others - 45€
Total current liabilities 2,79¢ 7,82¢
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:

Accrued severance pay 23€ 221
Totallong-term liabilities 23€ 227
SHAREHOLDERS",

Share capital:

Ordinary shares of NIS 0.0588235 par ve-
Authorized 52,000,000 shares as of December 32;.
Issued and outstanding: 36,769,757 and 12,035/24f2s as of December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively 574 192

Additional paic-in capital 43,51¢ 41,71

Amount of liability extinguished on account of sbs 127 81¢

Accumulated deficit (43,509 (48,324
Total shareholders' equity (deficiency) 711 (5,607
Totalliabilities and shareholders' e quity $ 3,74: $ 2,45k

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢imsolidated financial statements.
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SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OP ERATIONS

U.S. dollars in thousands, except per share data

Year ended
December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Revenue: $ 8,94C $ 7,92 $ 7,38¢
Cost of revenues 1,61¢ 3,30¢€ 2,05i
Gross profit 7,321 4,61¢ 5,33:
Operating expense

Research and developmt 31z 462 38¢

Selling and marketin 3,06( 3,50¢ 4,40¢

General and administrati\ 857 732 1,98t

Other expenses (income) 1,08t (137) (39€6)
Total operating expenses 5,31F 4,56 6,38(
Operating income (los: 2,00¢ 54 (1,049
Financial income (expenses), net 1,80t 99C (67¢€)
Income (loss) before income t 3,811 1,04¢ (1,726
Income tax 1,00¢ (25) (50)
Net income (loss) from continuing operatic 4,817 1,01¢ (1,77¢
Loss from discontinued operations - - (189)
Net income (loss) $ 4817 $ 1,01¢ $ (1,96%)
Earnings (loss) per share from continuing operati
Basic $ 0.1¢ $ 0.11 $ (0.29)
Diluted $ 0.1 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.29)
Loss per share from discontinued operations basladduted: - - $ (0.09)
Net earnings (loss) per sha
Basic $ 0.1t $ 0.11 $ (0.32)
Diluted $ 0.1: $ 0.0¢ $ (0.32)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares usedmmputing basic earnings (loss)

share 27,475,44 9,126,32 6,177,86;
Weighted average number of ordinary shares usedrirputing diluted earnings (loss)
share 34,664,45 11,710,25 6,177,86;

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdinsolidated financial statements.

F-5




SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAR EHO LDERS' EQUITY

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share data

Balance as of January 1, 2C
Issuance of shares in connection witl
acquisition of Intel-Site (see Note 1:
Issuance of shares (Note 1

Exercise of option

Warrants issued in connection with
extinguishments of liabilities (see No
1d)

Stoclk- based compensatic

Net loss

Total comprehensive lo:

Balance as of December 31, 2(
Exercise of option

Shares, options and warrants issued
connection with extinguishments of
liabilities (see Notes 1d and 12
Stoclk- based compensatic

Net income

Balance as of December 31, 2011

Exercise of option

Shares, options and warrants issued
connection with extinguishments of
liabilities (see Notes 1d and 12
Stoclk- based compensatic

Net income

Balance as of December 31, 2012

*Less than $1.

Ordinary shares

Amount of
liability

extinguished Total
Number of Additionalpaid- onaccount Accumulated shareholders

Shares Share capita in capital of shares deficit equity

$ $ $ $

5,724,42 89 41,01¢ (47,379 $ (6,277)
6,93 * - - - o
1,538,46: 24 17€ - - 20C
11,007 -* - - - -*
- - 147 - - 147
- - 18 - - 18
- - - - (1,96%) (1,96%)
7,280,82 113 41,36( - (49,349 $ (7,87))
10,00 -* - - - -*
4,744,44. 79 343 81¢ - 1,241
- - 10 - - 1C
- - - - 1,01¢ 1,01¢
12,035,27 192 41,71 81¢ (48,32%) $ (5,601)
342,12: 5 (5) - - 0
24,392,36 377 1,81( (692) - 1,49t
- - - - - 0
i . - - 4,817 4,817
36,769,75 574 43,51¢ 127 (43,509 711

The accompanying notes are an integral part o€dinsolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH F LOW S

SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

U.S. dollars in thousands

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities $ $ $
Net income (loss 4,817 1,01¢ (1,965
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to @eshcused in operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 31 28 53
Accrued severance pi 9 (27) (47)
Stocl-based compensatic 10 18
Amortization of discount on convertible bor - 2C
Deferred tay (1,039
Capital loss on disposal of property and equipn - 6 -
Capital gain on sale of subsidie - - (272)
Capital gain on extinguishments of liabiliti (2,230 (2,149 (129
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables (55) (790 10t
Decrease (increase) in other accounts receivablg@rapaid expenst (20€) 283 (10%)
Decrease (increase) in inventories, (11 (72 (132)
Increase (decrease) in trade paya (659) 1,46¢€ 2
Increase (decrease) in employees and payroll asc (2) 3 (31))
Increase (decrease) in advances from cust - (1,010 973
Increase (decrease ) in accrued expenses andiatyigties (63€) 1,04¢ 577
Net cash used in operating activit 24 (189) (1,212)
Cash flows from investing activitie:
Purchase of property and equipm (28) (23 4)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn - 3 -
Proceeds from sale of operations net of cash #qigdndix B) - - 397
Sale of subsidiary net of cash s - - ©)]
Decrease in severance pay fi 25 6 49
Restricted cash deposits, net - 13C 20C
Net cash provided by investing activiti 3) 11€ 63¢
Cash flows from financing activitie:
Shor-term bank credit, ne (11 112 -
Principle repayment of convertible bor - (21) (86)
Issuance of share capital, net of issuance - - 20C
Proceeds from exercise of options and warrants -* -* -*
Payment of liability to a former owner of an acg - - -
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (112) 91 114
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivz 10 18 (459
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofébe y 21F 197 65€
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22E 21E 197

*Less than $1.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢imsolidated financial statements.
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SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Cont.)

U.S. dollars in thousands

Year ended
December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information $ $ $
Appendix A:
Sale of operations net of cash s¢

Assets and liabilities of the operations, as oédsdtsale

Working capital (excluding cash and cash edaivs) - - (209¢)

Property and equipment, t - - 88

Intangible assets, net - - 517

- - 397

Appendix B:
Sale of subsidiary net of cash sc

Assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, as oedatsale

Working capital (excluding cash and cash edaiva) - - (27€)

Property and equipment, t - - 4

Lon¢-term liability - - ©))

Capital gain on sale of subsidiary - - 272

- - ©)

Cash paid during the year f:
Interest 5 6 -
Income taxes, net 27 25 5C
Supplemental disclosure of norcash investing and financing activities:
Extinguishments of liabilities credited to sharetesls equity ( Note 1d) 1,492 1,22( 147
Issuance of shares to service providers and officer - 21 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢imsolidated financial statements.
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SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)

NOTE 1:- GENERAL

a.

S upercom Ltd. (the “Company") was incorpeatain 1988 in Israel. The Comparyordinary shares have been listec
trade on the OTC Market, which operates an eletrgnotation service for securities traded overthanter, sinc
October 1, 2009, under the ticker symbol “SPCBPBi. January 24th, 2013 the Company has returndd tiginal nam
SuperCom Ltd. from the name Vuance L

Until January 2010 (the date of the sale of théviiets as described below in Note 1b), the Compeayeloped ar
marketed security solutions for viewing, trackihggating, credentialing, and managing essentiadtasand personn
which encompassed electronic access control, usbaurity, and critical situation management systamsvell as long-
range Active RFID for public safety, commercial,dagovernment sectors. Following the sale of certaitivities ir
January 2010, the Company is focusing on its wsel® products and solutions, e-1D projects andtgwis.

The Company is headquartered in Israel.
The Company sells its products through centralimadketing office in U.S and Israel.

The Company's subsidiaries includes: Vuance Incorjporated in the United States (see b below réuyarthe
presentation of certain activity of Vuance Inc &cdntinued operations), Vuance RFID Inc., (incogped in Delawart
(see b below regarding the presentation of cedativity of Vuance RFID as discontinued operatioigsB.C. Aviatiol
Ltd., (incorporated in Israel) which began openadian 2007, and focused until 2009 on executingvpeer security ar
a border control project at a European Internatiégoort, PureRFid, Inc. (incorporated in Delawpwmehich focuses ¢
the marketing and selling of the Compayctive RFID solutions and until October 21, 2@i{perCom Asia Pacil
Limited incorporated in Hong Kong which focused worarketing (see ¢ below). As of December 31, 2012tha
Company’s activities were concentrated mainly tgfoGupercom Ltd. and PureRFid, Inc.

Regarding the sale of certain assets and liakslagfe/uance Inc in January 2010, see b below.

On March 25, 2009, the Company, through its subsidiVuance Inc., completed the acquisition of aerssets ai
liabilities of Intelli-Site, Inc. (“Intelli-Site”).The purchase price was $262 payable in cash asdares of the Compa
(which were subject to a certain lock up mechaniang included a contingent consideration of up@6t5based upc
certain conditions.

The results of operations of Intefite were included in the consolidated financiatesnents of the Compa
commencing April, 2009. However, during the firstagter of 2010, this activity (including the corgént consideratic
related to it) was sold, see b below.

Discontinued operatior

On January 28, 2010 (the “Closing Daté¢lle Company and its subsidiary Vuance, Inc. corefi¢ihe sale of certain
the assets (including certain accounts receivabteiaventory) and certain of the liabilities (inding certain accour
payable) of Vuance Inc. (the “Sale”) related to thempany's electronic access control market (t¥iaatice EA(
Business”), pursuant to a certain Agreement focRase and Sale of Business Assets (the “Purchasemgnt”),datec
as of January 9, 2010 between Vuance Inc. and OISE&urity Systems International, LLC (“OSSIOQn the Closin
Date, as consideration for the Sale of the Vuank€ Business, OSSI paid Vuance Inc. $147 in caslduition, OS<
paid off (the “Bridge Bank Payment”) a certain Bwess Financing Agreement (the “Loafig¢tween Vuance Inc. a
Bridge Bank, Natione




SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)

NOTE 1:-

GENERAL (Cont.)

b.

Discontinued operations (con

Association in an amount of $290. Further to thade Bank Payment, the Loan was released, an€t¢mepany an
Vuance Inc. no longer have any liabilities assadatith the Loan. The Purchase Agreement includaagemnificatiol
clause pursuant to which, Vuance Inc. agrees tenmmfy and hold OSSI harmless from and againstciaiyn or liability
of Vuance Inc. or the Company, which may be asdatminst OSSI, excepting only to the extent of langiness dek
and other liabilities which OSSI expressly agreepay or assume at the closing date.

On January 29, 2010 (the “Closing Datdle Company and its subsidiary, Vuance, Inc., cebtepl the sale of certain
the assets and certain of the liabilities of Vuaimze (the “Sale”yelated to the Company's Government Services DR
(the “Vuance CSMS Business”), pursuant to a certmnet purchase agreement (the “Purchase Agre@nmoait
January 29, 2010 between the Company, Vuance WitePoint Corporation (“WidePoint"and Advance Respor
Concepts Corporation.

On the Closing Date, as consideration for the SalielePoint paid Vuance Inc. $250. In addition, WRd@t agreed !
pay Vuance Inc. a maximum earn out of $1,500 owercburse of the calendar years 2010, 2011, ang, 20bject to th
performance of certain financial requirements & Yfuance CSMS Business during each of those y&aes Purchas
Agreement includes an indemnification clause pursta which, each of the parties shall indemnifyl drold harmles
the other party in the event of the existence dfbge circumstances stipulated in the Purchase égemt.

Each of the activities sold meets the definitioracdfomponent under ASC Topic 205-20 biscontinued Operation’,
and accordingly, the results of operations of thmsaponents were presented as discontinued opesatio

Following the sale of the activities, the Compangslnot have any involvement with respect to thigities sold.
The results of the discontinued operations ar®lksis:
Year endec

December
31,2010

$

Revenue:

Cost of revenue

Research and developmt

Selling and marketin

General and administrati

Financial expense

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets

Net loss

541
(497)
(9€)
(108)
(28)
(4)

$ (18




SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)

NOTE 1:-

GENERAL (Cont.)

C.

Sale of subsidiary

During October 2010, the Company sold its entineitggnterest in its wholly owned Hong Kong subsidi, SuperCol
Asia Pacific Limited (the “Subsidiary”jor no consideration. As part of this sale, the @any assigned to the purche
certain outstanding loans due to the Company bySthasidiary in the amount of $1,400. As resulthe sale of th
Subsidiary, the Company realized a capital gai®2312 in the fourth quarter of 2010.

Extinguishment of liabilitie:

On November 3, 2010, the Company submitted to tisriEt Court in PetacHdkva, Israel, a request to sumn
meetings of creditors of the Company, in ordergprave a proposed arrangement between the Compahiysacreditor
(including convertible bond holders) in accordandiéh Section 350 of the Israeli Companies Law 57999. Th
proposed arrangement involved an allotment of emgirshares or warrants to purchase ordinary sludite® Company |
certain of its creditors, at a price of $0.09 petimary share against 40% of the total outstandieigt to the creditors,
the effect of total satisfaction of the entire delated to the Compang’creditors (thus forgiving and waiving 60% of
total outstanding debt of the Company). The propamgangement was based on the one which was apioy thi
general meeting of the shareholders dated Septetr#he2010. The Company convened the meetings afréditors t:
approve the proposed debt arrangement during Fgbarad March 2011. On March 15, 2011, the Compaleyd far
application with the Petach-Tikva District Court,Israel, for the approval of the creditor arrangam

On July 18, 2011, the Discrict Court decided noapprove the Comparg/application, mainly due to an objection to
proposed arrangement filed by one of the Compasgcured creditors, Special Situations Funds ("SS¥ich late
assigned its bond on November 8, 2011 to Mr. Eliy@tabelsi (see also Notes 11 and 13f). In Febr@a@?, following
the approval of the board of directors, the Compaegided to proceed with the arrangement which apgsoved by i
general meeting without further proceeding in th&tiirt Court subject to its creditors agreements.

As of December 31, 2010, certain creditors withotalt outstanding debt of $271 had accepted the @ogip det
arrangement proposal. The Company allotted forettoestain creditors a total of 1,206,142 warraotgurchase ordina
shares of the Company (see also Note 12f2). Inrdacae with ASC Topic 470-50-4the Company recorded an amc
of $124 as a gain from extinguishment of debts dase the difference between the carrying amourthefliabilities
extinguished ($271) and the fair value of the watsallotted ($147), which was credited directlyatiditional paidn
capital.

During 2011, Certain creditors with a total outstiaug debt of $3,369 had accepted the Company's aledhgemel
proposal. The Company allotted for those certagditors a total of 1,081,871 warrants and 300,0p0ons (witt
exercise price of nil) to purchase ordinary sharfethe Company and 13,538,844 ordinary sharesefCthmpany (s¢
also Note 11). In accordance with ASC Topic 470480the Company recorded an amount of $2,149 as a @
extinguishment of debts based on the differencevdoet the carrying amount of the liabilities extirgied ($3,369) ar
the fair value of the warrants and options allotf®tl,220), which was credited directly to additibpaid4n capital (se
also Note 12).




SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)

NOTE 1:-

GENERAL (Cont.)

d.

Extinguishment of liabilities (cont

In a certain arrangement that was subject to tipeoapl of the board of directors, following suchpapval, during 201!
certain creditors including Sigma Wave Ltd (“Sigmahd Mr. Eliyahu trabelsi, a convertible bond hofgdrad accept
the Company's debt arrangement proposal for a &otedunt of $3,910 its outstanding debt. The Compaitotted tc
Sigma and Mr. Eliyahu Trabelsi a total of 14,585, Bdinary shares of the Company (see also NoteldHccordanc
with ASC Topic 470-50-40the Company recorded an amount of $2,417 as aayaextinguishment of debts basec
the difference between the carrying amounts ofliti@lity extinguished $3,910 and the fair valuetbé ordinary shar
granted $1,240, which was credited directly to shaapital $221 and additional paid-capital $1,019 and Amount
liability extinguished on account of shares $12ij waarant in fair value $124.

Concentration of risk that may have a significampact on the Compan

Throughout the reporting periods the Company ddrivest of its revenues from two major customere &lso Not
14c.

The Company purchases certain services and prodsetkby it to generate revenues in its projeatssates from sevel
sole suppliers. Although there are only a limitadnber of manufacturers of those particular servimed product:
management believe that other suppliers could geowimilar services and products on comparable senithou
affecting operating results.

During the year 2010, the Board of Directbesl elected new board of directors recommendesidgima Wave. Sigma
had decided to acquire BH Bond(see Note 11) inrda@itiate a Voluntary Debt to Equity Conversiohthe main
company liabilities to the bond holders and toaiertompany creditors. The Conversion which waspletad in 2012,
reduced the company liabilities by over $6 milli

The company had implemented a restructuring plantiisg at the Q4 of 2010, consist of (i) major retiton of the
operating expenses, by G&A cost cutting and optitiin of the Sales global network (ii) expanding€ Profit margin
by negotiation of a better terms with supplier anticontractors.(iii) sales of unprofitable subsié®and cutting cost in
other global subsidiaries (iv)discontinue of unexgic activities and divisions (v) increase ofesan the company core
competence markets.(vi) increased activities inethacrative and rapid growing verticals market3d(thie company have
brought on board new and highly experienced exeesitatnd market experts to support the company brixagl activity.

Starting at Q4 of 2010, the company had demomrstriatprovement in all operational and financialgmaeters; Positive
operation profit in Q4 of 2010, completion of tRH¥ 2011 with $1 million net profit, FI 2012 with$8 million net
profit, $2 million operating profit, and positivash flow.

Management believed that for the FY 2013 and 2@ielcompany will continue with positive financialchoperational
performance; net profit and positive cash from afien .
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SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)

NOTE 2:-

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have beepaped in accordance with accounting principles galyeaccepted in tf
United States ("US GAAP").

a. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees manageme
to make estimates and assumptions that affectrtitouats reported in the financial statements andrapanying note
Actual results could differ from those estimates @pplicable to these consolidated financial statés) the mo
significant estimates and assumptions relate twalhce for doubtful account and contingencies.

b. Financial statements in U.S. dolla
Most of the revenues of the Company and its sudnsédi are received in U.S. dollars. In additiospbstantial portion
the costs of the Company and its subsidiariesremaried in U.S. dollars. Therefore, managementibet that the doll
is the currency of the primary economic environmintvhich the Company and its subsidiaries operataus, th
functional and reporting currency of the Compang &s subsidiaries is the U.S. dollar.
Monetary accounts maintained in currencies othen tthe U.S. dollar are measured into U.S. dollars in accorde
with the standards of the Financial Accounting 8tads Board ("FASB"). All transaction gains andsks from the re-
measurement of monetary balance sheet items deetesf in the statements of operations as finamui@me or financi:
expenses as appropriate.

C. Principles of consolidatior
The consolidated financial statements include tmants of the Company and its subsidiaries inelsaad the Unite
States. Material intercompany transactions andnaka were eliminated upon consolidation. Materiadfits from
intercompany sales, not yet realized outside tbegrwere also eliminated.

d. Cash and cash equivaler

The Company considers unrestricted shent highly liquid investments originally purchasaith maturities of thre
months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

e. Allowance for doubtful account
The allowance for doubtful accounts is determinéith wespect to specific amountise Company has determined tc
doubtful of collection. In determining the allowanfor doubtful accounts, the Company considers,reaiher thing:
its past experience with such customers and tlogrmdtion available regarding such customers.

f. Inventories:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or miavklue. Inventory writeffs are mainly provided to cover risks aris
from slow-moving items or technological obsoleseer€ost is determined as follows:
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SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)
NOTE 2:- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
g. Inventories (cont.)
Raw materials, parts and supplies - using the ‘ingpaverage cost" method or the “first in first'ootethod.
Finished products - on the basis of direct manufaag costs.
h. Property and equipmer
Property and equipment are stated at cost, netopfmaulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-linehod, over the estimated useful lives, at the foifg annual rates:

%

Computers and peripheral equipm 33
Office furniture and equipmel 6-20
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term of the lease ol

life of the asse
i. Impairment of lon-lived assets and intangible ass

The Company's lontived assets and certain identifiable intangiblsess are reviewed for impairment whenever e
or changes in circumstances indicate that the icayyigmount of an asset may not be recoverable.\Reability of asse
to be held and used is measured by a comparisthe afarrying amount of an asset to the future waodisted cash flov
expected to be generated by the asset. If such @ssensidered to be impaired, the impairment ¢orécognized
measured by the amount by which the carrying amoféirihe asset exceeds the fair value of the agssets to b
disposed of by sale are reported at the loweret#rrying amount or fair value, less costs ta sell

. Convertible Bonds

the company applied the provisions of ASC Topic 4700 — 45 “Debt — Other presentation mattewith respect to
financing agreement signed after December 31, 20itObefore the issuance of the 2010 financial statds an
accordingly, presented as of December 31, 201@aineconvertible bonds in a total amount of $4,262,a long ter
liability.
K. Accrued severance pay and severance pay

The liabilities of the Company for severance pajt®israeli employees are calculated pursuansri@el's Severance F
Law. Employees are entitled to one month's salaryebich year of employment, or portion thereof. Twnpany'
liability for all its employees is presented undaccrued severance pay". The Company deposits mprahly basis t
severance pay funds and insurance policies. TheeaIthese policies is presented as an asseed@idmpany's balan
sheet.

The deposited funds include accrued income up @édbtlance sheet date. The deposited funds may thdrewvn onh
upon the fulfillment of the Company’s obligationrpuant to Israel's Severance Pay Law or labor amgets.

Severance expenses for the years ended Decemi201®1,2011 and 2010 amounted to $10, $15 andrg&5g@ectively.
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SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)

NOTE 2:-

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

Revenue recognitiot

The Company and its subsidiaries generate theémgss from the sale of products, maintenance, iegaind long ter
contracts (including training and installation).

Product sales are recognized in accordance witff 8txounting Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recognitio(* SAB
No. 104"),when persuasive evidence of an agreement exidisedeof the product has occurred or services hager
rendered, the fee is fixed or determinable, cdleidity is reasonably assured, and inconsequemitiaperfunctor
performance obligations remain. If the product ieggispecific customer acceptance, revenue is r@efemtil custome
acceptance occurs or the acceptance provisiondapse

The Company is not obligated to accept returnedymts or issue credit for returned products, undegsoduct return h
been approved by the Company in advance and aocgotalispecific terms and conditions. As of Decengiigr2012, th
Company had an allowance for customer returns iamaount of $6.

The Company recognized certain long-term contr@eemues in accordance with ASC Topic 605 8mnstructionType
and Production-Type Contracts'Pursuant to ASC Topic 6(8B, revenues from these contracts are recognizeer uhe
percentage of completion method. The Company mesdhbe percentage of completion based on outpuapat criteria
such as contract milestones, percentage of engigeeompletion or number of units shipped, as aajblie to eac
contract. Provisions for estimated losses on undeteqh contracts are made during the period in wiiath losses &
first identified, in the amount of the estimateddoon the entire contract. As of December 31, 28d2such estimat
losses were identified.

The Company believes that the use of the percerdhgempletion method is appropriate, since the gamy has tr
ability, using also an independent subcontraceraluation, to make reasonably dependable estinvdtdse extent ¢
progress made towards completion, contract reveramgs contract costs. In addition, contracts exatunclud
provisions that clearly specify the enforceablédntsgof the parties to the contract, the considemnatto be exchanged &
the manner and terms of settlement. In all cases,Gompany expects to perform its contractual alitbigps and tr
parties are expected to satisfy their obligatiomdew the contract.

Revenue recognitio

In contracts that do not meet all the conditionsitie@ed above, the Company utilized zero estimatgsrofits; eque
amounts of revenue and cost are recognized ustilteecan be estimated with sufficient accuracy.

Revenues and costs recognized pursuant to ASC TafjBe5 on contracts in progress are subject to managt
estimates. Actual results could differ from thestneates.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2012, all the lterga contracts were completed and their relateccmegs wer
recognized in full.

Revenues for maintenance services are recognizzdioy term of the contracts.

The warranty period is usually 12 months. Basetharily on historical experience, the Company doasprovide fo
warranty costs when revenue is recognized, sincle sosts are not material.

Deferred revenues and customer advances includerdamoeeceived from customers for which revenues h@ot bee
recognized.




SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)
NOTE 2:- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

The Company is entitled to royalties upon the isseaof certificates. Such royalties are recognizden the sales ¢
reported to the Company (usually on a monthly Basis

n. Shipping and handling cos!

Shipping and handling fees billed to customersreflected as revenues while the related shippirghamdling costs a
included in cost of revenues. To date, shippingmamtlling costs have not been material.

0. Research and development co
Research and development costs (other than softasrexpensed as incurred.
p. Income taxes

The Company and its subsidiaries account for inctames in accordance with ASC Topic 74lcome Taxes" This
Statement prescribes the use of the liability metldereby deferred tax asset and liability accdoafances a
determined based on differences between the finhreporting and tax bases of assets and lialsilaied are measul
using the enacted tax rates and laws that wilhbeffect when the differences are expected to sevéfhe Company a
its subsidiaries provide a valuation allowanceneatessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to th#inated realizab
value.

The Company accounts for uncertain tax positiongadoordance with ASC Topic 74, which prescribes detail
guidance for the financial statement recognitioeasurement and disclosure of uncertain tax positienognized in ¢
enterprise’s financial statements. According to A$@pic 740-10, tax positions must meet a more-jikbannol
recognition and measurement threshold. The Compamcounting policy is to classify interest andgites relating t
uncertain tax positions under income taxes, how#werCompany did not recognize such items in #edfi 2012, 201
and 2010 financial statements.

g. Concentrations of credit ris

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consigigipally of cash an
cash equivalents, restricted cash deposits and temivables. The Company's trade receivabledaaieed from sales
limited number ofcustomers located primarily in Eastern Europe,Unéed States and Israel. The Company perfi
ongoing credit evaluations of its customers' finahcondition. The allowance for doubtful accourgletermined wit
respect to specific debts that the Company hasrdited to be doubtful of collection.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash ittepos deposited with major banks in Israel arel thnited State
Management believes that such financial institigiane financially sound and, accordingly, minimeddit risk exist
with respect to these financial instruments.

The Company has no significant off-balarsteset concentration of credit risk, such as foregrhange contracts, opt
contracts or other foreign hedging arrangements.

F-16




SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)

NOTE 2:-

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

r.

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per sh

Basic earnings (loss) per share are computed lms#te weighted average number of ordinary shareganding durin
each year. Diluted earnings (loss) per share angputed based on the weighted average number ofiardishare
outstanding during each year, plus the dilutiveepbal of stock options and warrants outstandingnduthe year usir
the treasury stock method and the dilutive poténfiany, of convertible bonds using the “if-comted method”.

The number of potential shares from the conversioconvertible bonds, options and warrants thatehasen exclude
from the calculation were 512,080, 2,733,688 arb74,840 for the years ended December 31, 20121 208 201(
respectively.

Fair value of financial instrument

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the carrying amoofntash and cash equivalents, restricted cashsitepourrent trac
receivables, other accounts receivable, trade peyamnd other accounts payable approximate thieivddue due to tr
short-term maturity of such financial instruments.

Accounting for stoc-based compensatio

Sharebased compensation, including grants of stock apties recognized in the consolidated statemeppefations ¢
an operating expense, based on the fair value efativard on the date of grant. The fair value afclsbase:
compensation is estimated using an option-priciogl@h

The value of the portion of the award that is uitiely expected to vest is recognized as an expavesethe requisit
service periods in the Company’s consolidated state of operations.

The Company estimates the fair value of employeeksbptions using a Blac&eholes valuation model. The Comp
amortizes compensation costs using the gradedngestitribution method over the vesting period, obtestimate
forfeitures.

Discontinued operation

The Company applies ASC Topic 205-2Bresentation of Financial Statements - Discontoh@peration”. According
to ASC Topic 20520, when a component of an entity, has been dispboker is classified as held for sale, the resol
its operations, including the gain or loss on tigpdsed component, required to be classified adisued operatiol
and the assets and liabilities of such componeotildhbe classified as assets and liabilities attetl to discontinue
operations if both of the following conditions aret; a) the operations and cash flows of the compbhave been (
will be) eliminated from the ongoing operationstioé company as a result of the disposal transactiod b) the enti
will not have any significant continuing involventen the operations of the component after the aliap transactio
(See also Note 1b).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)

NOTE 3:-

NOTE 4:-

NOTE 5:-

OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAID EXPENSES

December 31

2012 2011
$ $
Prepaid expenst 13¢ 21
Government institution 10€ 56
Others 67 28
311 10&

INVENTORIES, NET

December 31

2012 2011
$ $
Raw materials, parts and suppl 25¢ 21€
Finished products 21 53
28( 26¢

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the inventorprissented net of write offs, for slow inventory time amount ¢
approximately $57 and $74 respectively.

INVESTMENT IN A MAJORITY -OWNED COMPANY

In December 1997, the Company set up SuperCom gigvavned equally with another thighrty investor, in order to exec
a transaction with the Ministry of Interior of tisdovak Republic.

In March 2000, the Company purchased an additib6% of SuperCom Slovakia, at a nominal value of $1, and granted
third-party investor a loan in an amount of $275, beanmegrest of 0.7% per month, for any amounts ontfitay. Interest
compounded on the outstanding principal balancéa®floan and is to be repaid under the same conditas the outstandi
principal balance.

The third-party investor has an option to buy ba6é%o of the shares, for $1, upon repayment of tha to the Company.
The Company currently owns 66% of SuperCom Slovakiatstanding shares and accounts for the investaséng the equi
method of accounting, due to the substantive ppdiion rights held by the norentrolling interest holder, which impact

Company’s ability to exert control over the investe

During 2006, the Company wrote down the entire lbalance due to litigation developments regardiigjissue and due to I«
probability of collection of the loan. See Note 20During all the reported periods, the subsidlzag no operating activity.

F-18




SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)
NOTE 6:- PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

December 31

2012 2011
$ $

Cost:
Computers and peripheral equipm 274 254
Office furniture and equipmel 19¢ 194
Leasehold improvements 29 24
501 472

Accumulated depreciatiol

Computers and peripheral equipm 253 24¢€
Office furniture and equipmel 142 12¢
Leasehold improvements 12 2
40¢ 37€
Depreciated cost 93 96

Depreciation expenses for the years ended Dece®ih@012, 2011 and 2010, were $32, $28 and $4{Fectsely.
The property & equipment also include intangiblseds in amount of $72, which been fully depreciatio
NOTE 7:- BANK CREDIT
a. On February 10, 2011 the Company received fronseaeli bank a credit line in an amount of $100.0A®ecember 3
2012 and December 31, 2011, the entire amount Wl&ged. The credit line is secured by the persanearantee of tt
Compan’s current and former chairmen of the board of dinesc
b. Regarding guarantees and lie see Note 10t

NOTE 8:- ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

December 31

2012 2011
$ $

Accrued marketing expens - 541
Subcontractors of long term contri - 252
Litigation provision - 147
Related partie 387 414
Legal service providel 69 36&
Withholding tax provision in respect of convertiltlends held by controlling shareholt - 177
Other accrued expenses 321 26€

777 2,164
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)

NOTE 9:-

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

a.

Lease commitment:

The Company's facilities and those of certain slibges are rented under several operating leaseagnts for periol
ending in 2013.

In October, 2011, the Company signed lease agresn@nnew offices in Hertzliya, (Israel), for arjpel of two year
commencing on October 1, 2011.

The monthly lease amount, including managementdé#se leased property, is approximately $15.

Future minimum lease commitments under waneelable operating leases for the years endeénilesr 31, are
follows :

2013 141
141

©“

Guarantees, indemnity and liel

1.

The Company issued on October 17, 2011 a bank giegr#o the services company of its new officeldénzliye
(see a above), in an amount of up to NIS62,662 &kl6f December 31, 2011), which was replaced sscarity
deposit in an amount of NIS74,013($20 as of DecerBbe2012)

On April 29, 2012, the Company’s board afediors approved the recording of a floattitarge on all of tt
Company’s assets in favor of the Company’s curasrat formerchairmen of the board of directors, unlimite:
amount, in order to secure persogabrantees granted by them in favor of the Compsmgh as to a bank (s
Note 7a) and in order to secure s-term loans that are given by them from time to ttméhe Company

Litigation:

1.

In April 2004, the Department for Resources Supglyhe Ministry of Ukraine (the "Department") filea clain
with the International Commercial Arbitration Cowtt the Ukrainian Chamber of Commerce and Induéhsg
“Arbitration Court”) to declare Contract No. 10/&he “Contract”),dated April 9, 2002, between the Comg
and the Ministry of Internal Affairs of the Ukrairfthe "Ministry"), as void due to defects in thepeedings L
which the Company was awarded the Contract. Iy, 2004, the Arbitration Court declared the Corttras
void. On April 27, 2005, the Company appealeddbeision to the High Commercial Court of the Ukeainr
May 2005, the Department filed a new statementiaifrcwith the Arbitration Court for restitution &1,048 pai
to the Company by the Department under the Contr@at September 27, 2005, the Company receivedatine
award issued by the Arbitration Court in the secolaim (the "Award"). On December 12, 2005, ther(pan)
was informed that the Ukrainian Supreme Court hiathidsed its appeal regarding the July 2004 detisir
June 29, 2006, the Ukrainian Supreme Court helt ttie Arbitration Court award was valid and legada
applicable law
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U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)

NOTE 9:-

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (cont.)

C.

Litigation: (cont.)

1.

(cont.)

On September 28, 2008, the Department filed aipet{the "Petition") in the Central District Cowt Israel (thi
"Court"), under which the Department requestedaygroval of the Award as a valid foreign arbitralaad unde
the laws of the State of Israel.

During November 2008, the Company filed with theu@@n objection to the Petition and a petitiordézlare th
Award null and void. The Company's objection anttipa rely on what the Company believes to be vbalse:
evidence which the Company has against the mammgruvhich the arbitration proceedings were coretlidty
the Arbitration Court and against their validneswd degality. The Company believes that the arbdn
proceedings were conducted partially and jeopadditsebasic rights. The Company's claims are atsooborate
by a contrary legal opinion written in the scopkitaation decision by one of the arbitrators ("Arator").

During the years 2009 until December 2011, sevemalt sessions where held regarding the Petitimeluding ¢
testimony of the independent arbitrator, while epartmens witnesses (including the other two Ukrait
arbitrators) did not appear in court at the timesesluled for their testimonies.

On December 5, 2011 the Company submitted a suromittiwriting. However, the Department has not sitiem
its summation and its counsel even notified therCthat his appointment as the Departmemunsel had be
cancelled.

On April 15, 2012, the Court gave its judgment,quant to the Court dismissed the DepartngeRgtition and als
declared the Award null and void.

On October 30, 2003, SuperCom Slovakia, a subgid@6%) of Supercom Ltd., received an award from
International Arbitral Center of the Austrian FealdEconomic Chamber, in a case against the Ministipteriol
of the Slovak Republic (“the Ministry”elating to the Agreement on Delivery of Technolo@poperation ar
Services signed on March 17, 1998. Upon the Aabiward, the Ministry of Interior of the Slovak Reblic wa:
ordered to pay SuperCom Slovakia the amount of $KK00,000 (approximately $3,464 as of Decembe
2012) plus interest accruing from March 1999. Idiadn, the Ministry of Interior of the Slovak Replic was
ordered to pay the costs of arbitration in the amafi EUR 42,716 (approximately $56 as of Decen#igr2012
and SuperCom Slovak®&'legal fees in the amount of EUR 63,611 (approteiya$84 as of December .
2012). The Company has begun an enforcement piimcpéo collect the arbitral awards. The Ministo§
Interior of the Slovak Republic filed a claim witthe Commercial Court in Vienna, Austria on Februbdy 2004
whereby it challenged and requested to set asidethitral award. During September 2005, the Coroial
Court of Vienna dismissed the claim. On October 2005, the Ministry of the Interior of the Slov&epubilic
filed an appeal. On August 25, 2006, the AustAapellate Court rejected the appeal and orderedviinéstry to
reimburse Supercom Slovakia's costs of the appgliaiceeding in the amount of EUR 6,688 within agd Ol
October 3, 2006, the Company was informed thatMimestry had decided not to file an extraordinappaal t
the Austrian Supreme Court’'s decision rejectingajgpeal and the award became final. To date, thep@oy’s
efforts to enforce the Commercial Cosrtecision have been unsuccessful, and the contpathyired new la
firm(on a success based fee) to support its eafitre award
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NOTE 9:- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (cont.)
C. Litigation: (cont.)

3. On December 16, 1999, Secu-Systems Lid fl lawsuit with the District Court in Tel-Avilaffa jointly ani
severally against the Company and its former suidogidinkSure Ltd. (“InkSure”)seeking a permanent injunct
and damages arising from the printing method agpieecertain products developed by InkSure. Iratgsuit
Secu-Systems asserted claims of breach of a conifidiey agreement between Sefystems and the Compa
unjust enrichment of the Company and InkSure, breddiduciary duties owed to Se@ystems by the Compa
and InkSure and misappropriation of trade secretsdamage to Secu-Systenpsbperty. On March 15, 20(
the Court denied the breach of contract claim, ujplteld the claim for misappropriation of trade s¢xran
ordered InkSure and the Company to cease all gctivolving the use of the confidential knowledged/o
confidential information of Sec8ystems. In addition, the court ordered the Compand Inksure to provide
report certified by an accountant setting forthfui the income and/or benefit received by InkSared thi
Company as a result of the infringing activity thgh the date of the judgment, and ordered the Coypac
Inksure, jointly and severally, to pay to Se&ystems compensation in the amount of NIS 100,828 @s c
December 31, 2012) and legal expenses as welt@sey’s fees in the amount of NIS 30,000 ($8 as of Deez
31, 2011) (which was paid during 2006). S&ystems has filed an appeal, and the Company &Rlia filed |
counter-appeal, on the above ruling.

During the years thereafter several court sessi@me held, judgments were made and appeals werklil eac
of the parties.

On December 15, 2009, the court suggested thatafies try a mediation process in order to endetvoome t
an agreement. All the parties agreed to the suiggest

In the course of the mediation process, during 2@I@ediation agreement in principle was reached,.

Followed On November 30, 2010, the mediator deteechithat the sum the Company will have to pay twuSe
System is NIS 893,000 (approximately $239 as ofebdwer 31, 2012). The mediation agreement was apf
by the court on February 5, 2012.

During 2011 the Company paid NIS 535,800 (approxihye144 as of December 31, 2012), and during 284
Company paid NIS 357,200(approximately $94 as afebwber 31, 2012) As of December 31, 2012 there
liability related to this litigation
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NOTE 9:- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (cont.)

C.

Litigation: (cont.)

4,

On May 7, 2012, a supplier of the Company filedwaduit with the Magistrate Court in Tel Aviv in thenount ¢
NIS 360,199 (approximately $96 as of December 8122 claiming mainly for payments of products whieére
supplied during 2011 and for payments for produdigch were purchased by the supplier but were egfus b
received by the Company due to dissatisfactiomef@ompany in respect of the supplied products.Qtmmpan:
is denying the supplies’claims and has its own claims against the supiplieespect of the quality of the prodt
supplied by him. The Company had filed with the @@un objection to the Claim and a petition foreaavery b
the supplier of the Company direct loses due tostipplier lack of performance. The Company's oljacanc
petition rely on what the Company believes to bdl-wased evidence which the Company has again:
Supplier lack of performance, major delays in dalyof products, and poor workmanship with somehe
products manufactured by the supplier. A prelimjnasurt session was held regarding the Petitiod,aatditiona
court sessions are scheduled for July 2013. Thanbal of accounts payable with respect to the stipph ¢
December 31, 2012 is approximately $46, which regmes the value of the supplied products duringl20dc
additional provision has been recognized with resfiethe supplier's clain

NOTE 10:- INCOME TAX

a.

Changes in the Israeli corporate tax ra

On December 6, 2011, the Law for the Change inTdee Burden (Legislative AmendmentsP011 was publicized. ¢
part of the law, among other things, the EcononfficiEncy Law (Legislative Amendments for the Implentation of th
Economic Plan for 2009 and 2010) — 2009 and then&Tax Ordinance (New Version)1961 were amended where
commencing in 2012, the blueprint for the reduciiothe corporate tax rates will be cancelled dreldorporate tax re

will be 25%.

Nonr-Israeli subsidiaries

Non-Israeli subsidiaries are taxed according tadltdaws of the countries in which they are lodate
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NOTE 10:- INCOME TAX (cont.)

C.

Deferred income taxe
Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effeéteemporary differences between the carrying amouwftassets ai
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and tamounts used for income tax purposes. Significantponents of tt
deferred tax assets of the Company and its subisigiare as follows:
December 31
2012 2011
$ $
Operating loss carry forwal 10,63: 11,12¢
Reserves and allowances 68¢ 601
Net deferred tax assets before valuation allowi 11,32 11,72¢
Valuation allowance (10,287 (11,729
Net deferred tax assets 1,03:¢ -
Deferred income taxes consist of the followi
Domestic 5,63 6,89-
Valuation allowance (4,599) (6,897)
Net deferred tax assets 1,03: -
Foreign 4,99¢ 4,83
Valuation allowance (4,999) (4,837%)

As of December 31, 2011, the Company and its sidri@d have provided a valuation allowance in altamount c
$10,287 in respect of deferred tax assets resuliom tax loss carryforwards and other temporarffecénces

Management currently believes that since the Compan its subsidiaries have net profit during tbé?and 2012, tt
deferred tax assets are considered to be reatizéhe inext 2 years.
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NOTE 10:- INCOME TAX (cont.)

d.

g.

Carryforward tax losse:
SuperCom Ltd. has accumulated losses for tax pegas of December 31, 2012, in an amount of appiabeiy
$22,528, which may be carried forward and offsetiregt taxable income in the future for an indeéirperiod. SuperCao
Ltd. also has a capital loss in an amount of apprately $14,225 which may be carried forward arfdeifagainst capit
gains for an indefinite period. Losses carryforveardisrael are measured in NIS.
As of December 31, 2012, SuperCom's subsidiarigkdrUnited States have estimated total availadieyforward ta
losses of approximately $14,282. In the U.S., tssés can be carried forward for 20 years. Howergization of U.S
net operating losses may be subject to a subdtamiaal limitation due to the “"change in ownershipovisions of th
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and similar stateipians. These annual limitations may result in ¢éxpiration of ne
operating losses before utilization. An amount 3433 of the carryforward tax losses of the Comfsasybsidiary in tt
U.S, is subject to such limitation, due to the Siggidolding Corp. acquisition in 2007.
SuperCom Ltd has assessments which aredevedias final until the tax year ended Decembg3Q7.
SuperCor’s subsidiaries in the United States and Israel haveeceived final assessments since their incatjom.
Income (loss) before income tax consists of thiofdhg:
Year ended December 31
2012 2011 2010
$ $ $
Domestic 3,917 1,35¢ (1,27%)
Foreign (10€6) (315) (457)
3,811 1,04« (1,726
Reconciliation of the theoretical tax benefit te tictual tax benefi
A reconciliation of theoretical tax expense, assigrall income is taxed at the statutory rate applie to the income
companies in Israel, and the actual tax expenses fsllows:
Year ended December 31
2012 2011 2010
$ $ $
Income (loss) before income tax, as reported irctnsolidated statements
operations 3,811 1,044 (1,726)
Statutory tax rate in Israel 25% 24% 25%
Theoretical tax (benefit) expen 952 251 (432)
Carryforward losses and other deferred taxes fachwa full valuation
allowance was recordé (463) (259 48€
Changes valuation allowan (1,442 - -
Others (54) 27 (4)
Actual income tax (1,00€6) 25 50
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NOTE 11:-

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

In November 2006, the Company raised $3,156.5 tfirdhe issuance of Units consisting of ConvertlBtsds and Warran
Units valued at $2,500 were issued to Brevan Howéadter Fund Limited (“BH”)and Units valued at $656.5 were issue
Special Situation Funds (“SSF'Dased on the participation rights provided in argig placement during 2005, which w
existing shareholders of the Company. Accordinth&r original terms, the Convertible Bonds matiimee years from the d:
of issuance and bear interest at an annual raB&cofwhich was updated as described below). Anyhuilting and other tax
payable with respect to the interest will be grdsep and paid by the Company (approximately 3%hef principal of th
bonds), payment of interest will be net of any fake investors were also granted warrants entitlirggn to acquire a total
134,154 ordinary shares at an original exercisgepf $5 per share during the next five years éeendments below).

In November 2007, due to a breach of certain camditof the convertible bonds, the investors hadright to accelerate t
repayment of the principal amount of the bonds withithe interest payable until the maturity datehe bonds. However, t
Company signed an amendment to the agreement lvdtinvestors under which the Company was requoqzhy to one of tt
investors the abovementioned interest amount ($@vi) any withholding and other taxes payable wilpect to the intere
(approximately 3% of the principal of the bonds)pan respect of the other investors, the Compdranged the conversi
ratio of the bonds to $4.25. In consideration, itheestors waived their right to accelerate the yepent of the bonds. T
Company accounted for this amendment as a moddicaf the bonds.

In November 2007, June 2008, August 12, 2009, fiolig a breach of the original and the amended tesfrthe convertibl
bonds, the Company and the investor agreed to waiugpliance and amend certain provisions of thedBmn among oth:
things, (i) increase the applicable rate of intetes12% and by 0.5% every 180 days afterward) m@ake monthly payments
$41 against the total amount due under the Bond aveight (8) year period, and (iii) increase ivenber of warrants grant
to 159,375 and amend their exercise price to $petGhare . The modification was determined to ehd extinguishment.

On November 9, 2009, the Company entered into apriment Agreement (the “Amendment Agreemewith SSF, the oth
investor (with a principal amount of $624), pursuienthe Amendment Agreement, in exchange for sgcur certain assets
the Company, the Company and SSF agreed to waivpliance and amend certain provisions of the Bancatmong othe
things, (i) increase the applicable rate of intetesl2% and by 0.5% every 180 days afterward nféike monthly payments
$10 against the total amount due under the Bond avesight (8) year period, (iii) reducing the evise price of the bond a
the warrants to $3 and $0.40, respectively anljiirease the number of warrants granted to 31,238

On August 24, 2010, BH entered into an Absoluteigksaent and Transfer of Bond and Warrant (“Assigntfjewith Sigmz
Wave Ltd. (“Sigma”),an Israeli company and a Controlling shareholdethef Company. Pursuant to the Assignment,
absolutely transfers, assigns and makes over ugtoaSall of its rights, title, obligations and inést in the Convertible Bon
and warrants accruing or growing due and outstands at the Closing Date (which later was deterchinge September ]
2010) to BH,

On November 8, 2011, SSF sold, assigned and traedfto Mr. Eliyahu Trabelsi all of their rights der the Convertible Bon
and warrants.

The Assignments had no impact on the Company’dsaesdiabilities or its financial results.
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NOTE 11:- CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Cont.)

As of December 31, 2010, the Company was in campé with the covenants under the amended Conleetibnd:
agreements with respect to bonds held by SSF.

During the year 2011, Sigma and Mr. Eliyahu Trabledsl accepted the Company's debt arrangement gebfm an amount
$3,047 debt under the Convertible Bonds in accarelanth the proposed arrangement of the extinguéstirof liabilities (se
Note 1d). The Company allotted to Sigma and Mr €lsila total of 13,538,444 ordinary shares of tben@any and recorded
amount of $2006 as a gain on extinguishment ofdebhsed on the difference between the carrying atnofuthe liability
extinguished ($3,047) and the fair value of theirar; shares granted ($222), which was creditegctliy to share capital ($7
and additional paidh capital ($148), and the fair value of the ordinahares that the Company was committed to isB8&9)
In addition an amount of $819 was credited diretilgquity as “amount of liability extinguished account of shares"

The actual allotment of 9,094,400 ordinary shacea trustee of Sigma and to Mr. Eliyahu Trabelss wampleted in Apri
2012 (see Note 11).

During 2012, Sigma Wave Ltd (“Sigmadnd Mr. Eliyahu trabelsi, convertible bond holddrad accepted the Company's
arrangement proposal for a total amount of $359®utstanding debt. The Company allotted to SignthMr. Eliyahu Trabel:
a total of 14,585,155 ordinary shares of the Compamn accordance with ASC Topic 470-80; the Company recorded
amount of $2,230 as a gain on extinguishment ofsibhsed on the difference between the carryinguatscof the liabilit
extinguished ($3,592) and the fair value of theirady shares granted ($1,367), which was crediiegttly to share capit
($221) and additional paid-in capital ($1,146).
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NOTE 12:-

a.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company's common stock is quoted urfuerticker symbol “SPCBFbon the OTC Market , which operates
electronic quotation service for securities tradedr-the-counter.

On May, 14 2007 a 1 for 5.88235 reverse split ef@ompany’s ordinary shares became effective &atitig purposes.
Pursuant to this reverse share split, each 5.882#Bary shares of NIS 0.01 par value became Inardishare of NIS
0.0588235 par value.

During 2010, the Company increased its authoribagescapital to 52,000,000 ordinary sha

During 2011, 300,000 ordinary shares, were isssezbtlement of liabilities to an officer in angaggate amount of $¢
Regarding ordinary shares that were issued dur@id 2inder a private placement. Regarding ordinhayes that we
issued during 2011 and after the balance sheetaktepart of an extinguishment of liabilitiess déotes 11

Shareholders' rights:

The ordinary shares confer upon the holders th tigreceive notice to participate and vote in geaeral meetings
the Company, and the right to receive dividenddeiflared.

Stock options:

1. In 2003, the Company adopted a stock ogtlan under which the Company issues stock op{ittres“Option
Plan™). The Option Plan is intended to provide moges to the Company’s employees, officers, doecand/or
consultants by providing them with the opportun@ypurchase ordinary shares of the Company. Sutgebe
provisions of the Israeli Companies Law, the Opfan is administered by the Compensation Comnjitteé is
designed: (i) to comply with Section 102 of thealdr Tax Ordinance or any provision which may amend
replace it and the rules promulgated thereundet@edable the Company and grantees thereundentfib
from Section 102 of the Israeli Tax Ordinance drel@ommissioner’s Rules; and (ii) to enable the Samy to
grant options and issue shares outside the cooft&eaction 102 of the Israeli Tax Ordinance. Optignanted
under the Option Plan will become exercisable tgtaber a period of three to five years or immeeliain
certain circumstances, commencing with the datgafit. The options generally expire no later tharydars
from the date of grant. Any options which are fiigfeé or canceled before expiration become availtdléuture
grants.

As a result of an amendment to Section 102 of sheeli Tax Ordinance as part of the 2003 Israglrédorm, an
pursuant to an election made by the Company theeruapital gains derived by optionees arisingiftbe sal
of shares issued pursuant to the exercise of agptjoanted to them under Section 102 after Janua2@ds3, wil
generally be subject to a flat capital gains tag af 25%. However, as a result of this electibe, Company wi
no longer be allowed to claim as an expense foptaposes the amounts credited to such employeadasefi
when the related capital gains tax is payable leynthas the Company had previously been entitledtbtande
Section 102.

On June 27, 200The Compensation Committee and board of directbtheo Company approved a new op
plan under which the Company may grant stock optitm the U.S. employees of the Company an
subsidiaries. Under this new option plan, the Camgpaay grant both qualified (for preferential tagatment
and nongualified stock options. On August 15, 2007, thes o@tion plan was approved by the shareholderke
Company at the general shareholders meet
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NOTE 12:-

e.

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont.)

Stock options (cont.]

2. During 2010 no options were granted.
On August 9, 2011, the Company issued options techase up to 150,000 shares to a former officethe
Company as part of his employment agreement. Thiergp(the fair value of which was estimated athéfe a
exercise price of $0.11, vested immediately antlexire after five years.
On August 11, 2011, the Company issued optionsutehase up to 300,000 shares to a former officethe
Company as part of the extinguishment of liab#itisee Note 1d). The options (the fair value ofclhiva:
estimated at $36, based on the Compasiiare market price at the date the extinguishmastdetermined) ha
an exercise price of $0.00, vested immediatelywaiticexpire on December 31, 2012.
On August 24, 2011, the Company issued optionsutah@ase up to 385,000 shares to several employetbs
Company. The options (the fair value of which wasneated at $18) have an exercise price of $0.28,0D0 o
them vested on January 1, 2012, and the remair86¢0A0 will vest on January 1, 2013. The option exipire
after ten years.
During 2012 no options were granti

3. A summary of the Company's stock option activitd aglated information is as follow

Year ended December 3.

2012 2011 2010

Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average average

Number of  exercise Numberof exercise Numberof  exercise

options price options price options price
$ $ $

Outstanding at Beginning of ye 2,163,85 0.7¢ 1,404,21! 1.2 1,489,17 1.34
Grantec - - 835,00( 0.11 - -
Exercisec (342,12) 0.0c (20,007 0.0z (11,007 0.01¢€
Canceled and forfeited (1,273,68) 1.61 (65,359 1.74 (73,950 3.52
Outstanding at end of year 548,04 0.97 2,163,85 0.7¢ 1,404,217 1.2%
Exercisable at end of year 393,04° 1.27 1,778,85 0.92 1,404,271 1.2¢
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NOTE 12:- SHARE CAPITAL (Cont.)

e. Stock options (cont.]

3.

A summary of the Company's stock optiolivéagtand related information is as follows (cont.)

The weighted average fair value of options granietihg the reported periods (excluding 300,000ay&igrante
in 2011 as part of the extinguishment of liabikjievas $0.05 per option for the year ended Decelibe2011. |
2010 and 2012 no options were granted.

The fair value of these options was estimated erdtite of grant using the Black & Scholes optianipg model.
The following weighted average assumptions were fsethe 2011 grants: risk-free rate of 0.76% jdénd
yield of 0%, expected volatility factor of 176.54%md expected term of 4.64 ye

The expected volatility was based on the histonaahtility of the Companys stock. The expected term \
based on the historical experience and based omagésnent estimate.

Compensation expenses recognized by the Compaatedeto its sharbased employee compensation aw
were $7, $10, and $14 for the years ended Dece&iher012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The following table summarizes the allocation af #tocl-based compensation chal

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
$ $ $
Cost of revenue 1t 2 3
Research and development expet 4 5 2
Selling and marketing expens - - 3
General and administrative expenses 1.t 3 6
7 10 14
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NOTE 12:- SHARE CAPITAL (Cont.)
e. Stock options (cont.]
3. A summary of the Company's stock option activitg aglated information is as follows (cont

The options outstanding and exercisable as of Dbeer@l, 2012, have been separated into rangeseo€ist
prices as follows:

Options Weighted Options
outstanding average Weighted exercisable  Weighted
Range of as of remaining average Aggregate as of average Aggregate
exercise December contractual exercise intrinsic December exercise intrinsic
price 31,2012 life (years) price value 31, 2012 price value
$
0.00- %
0.20 445,99 6.74 0.1t - 290,99 0.1: -
247-%
3.38 14,45( 1.2¢ 3.0€ - 14,45( 3.0€ -
412-%
4.64 42,40( 3.94 4.44 - 42,40( 4.4¢4 -
5.00- %
5.24 45,20( 2.0¢ 5.1C - 45,20( 5.1C -
548,04 0.97 393,04 1.27

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrthe years ended December 31, 2012 2011 andv2&480, $
and $1, respectively, based on the Compamyerage stock price of $ 0.14, $0.10, and $@wdng the yeal
ended on those dates respectively.

A summary of the status of the Entity’s neasted options granted to employees as of DeceBihe2012 an
changes during the year ended December 31, 2qit2sented below:

Weighted—
average
grant-date
Options fair value

Non-vested at January 1, 20 385,000 $ 0.0t
Grantec

Vested (including cancelled and exercis (230,000 0.0t
Forfeited - -
Non-vested at December 31, 2012 155,000 ¢ 0.0t

As of December 31, 2012, there was $3 of unreceghizompensation cost related to non-vested dbeser
compensation arrangements granted under the spicinglans.
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NOTE 12:-

f.

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont.)

Private placements and warrar

1.

During 2010, warrants to acquire up to 1,759,988 ah were granted, of which 553,846, with an esgerprice ¢
$0.15 per share were granted to an investor astaopprivate placement (see 4 below) and 1,206 d4®&hich
with an exercise price of $0.00 per share were tgdhho certain creditors as part of the extinguishts o
liabilities (see Note 1d). The fair market valuetld warrants granted under the debt extinguishiise$t47, base
on the Compar’'s share market price at the date when the extihmést was determine

During 2011, warrants to purchase up to 1,081,8iates with an exercise price of $0.00 per share gented t
certain creditors as part of the extinguishmentfiatiilities (see Note 1d). The fair market valuetloe warrant
granted is $143, based on the Company'’s share ianike at the date when the extinguishment wasrdehed.

During 2012, warrants to purchase up to 1,384,4f6es with an exercise price of $0.00 per share weanted t
certain creditors as part of the extinguishmentfiatiilities (see Note 1d). The fair market valuetlre warrant
granted is $124, based on the Company’s share taike at the date when the extinguishment wasrdehed.

A summary of the Company's warrants activity to stdtants and investors (including warrants issua
connection with convertible bonds and extinguishtiériabilities), and related information is adlfovs:

Year ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average
Number of exercise  Number of exercise  Number of exercise
warrants price warrants price (*) warrants price

- $ - $ - $

Outstanding at beginnirof year  3,002,85! 0.3¢€ 2,157,00: 0.3€ 658,70t 2.7C
Grantec 1,384,451 0.0C 1,081,87 0.0C  1,759,98 0.0t

Exercisec (712,809 0.41
Canceled and forfeited -

- (236,019 1.24  (261,69) 3.5¢

Outstanding at end of year 3,674,50 0.1: 3,002,85! 0.1€ 2,157,00: 0.3€
Exercisable at end of year 3.674,50 0.1z 3,002,85! 0.1€ 2,157,00; 0.3€

(*)

The Weighted average exercise price israfégricing of the exercise price related to the cotilbkr bonc
holders.
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NOTE 12:-

f.

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont.)

Private placements and warrants (col

2. (cont.)
The warrants to consultants and investors (inclydirarrants issued in connection with convertibleds an
extinguishment of liabilities), outstanding and exsable as of December 31, 2012, have been sepanatic
ranges of exercise prices as follows:
Warrants Weighted average
outstanding and remaining
Range of exercis¢ exercisable as of contractual life Weighted average Aggregate
price December 31, 201 (years) exercise price intrinsic value
- $ $
$0.00 2,959,66. 0.2 0.0cC 26€
$0.15- $0.65 633,84t 2.0¢5 0.21 -
$2.50- $3.53 20,00( 0.3¢ 3.3¢ -
$4.42-%$4.85 61,00( 1.07 4.7z -
3,674,50 0.1:

3. The fair value of all the warrants granted as dbedr above was measured based on the fair valube
instruments issued on the date of grant, sinceschan the opinion of Company Management, such meisn
is more reliable than the fair value of servic

4, On March 22, 2010, the Company entered into a Sigten Agreement with a private investor, Mr. Y6tk

Babayov (the “Investor”)pursuant to which at a March 23, 2010 closing,Gbenpany issued 1,538,461 ordin
shares of the Company at a par value of NIS 0.238&the “Transaction Sharest) consideration of a onetir
cash payment in the amount of $200.

Concurrent with the execution of the Subscriptiogréement, the Company and the Investor entereda
Warrant Agreement pursuant to which the Investoeireed a warrant (the “Warranttp purchase up to 553,€
ordinary shares of the Company for an exerciseeprfc$0.15 per share. The Warrant has a term ef(&Y) year
and contains standard adjustments for stock didsleistock splits, reclassification and similar d@serThe
Companys shareholders approved and ratified at the argaredral meeting held on September 12, 2010, tk
purpose of the private placement of the TransacBbares and Warrant was to provide the Investdn wiore
than twenty five percent (25%) of the Companigsued and outstanding shares as of the dabe afgreement
accordance with Israeli law, which exempts suchauisition from Israeli tender offer requirements

The Transaction Shares and the ordinary shareahilsupon the exercise of the Warrant have not begistere

under the Securities Act and may not be offeresiotnt except pursuant to an effective registratiatesnent or &
applicable exemption from the registration requieets of the Securities Ac
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NOTE 12:-

h.

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont.)

Dividends:

No dividends were declared in the reported periddshe event that cash dividends are declaredhénftiture, suc
dividends will be paid in NIS. The Company doesintgnd to distribute cash dividends in the forafde future.

Convertible bonds and warrants issued to the ctiblebond holder— see Note 11

NOTE 13:- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a.

On October 1, 2001, the Company entered into autimg agreement with a company owned by a formeai@nan o
the Board of Directors, who also was one of th-founders of the Compan

In consideration of these consulting services, Goenpany has undertaken to pay $10.5 per month mhtsr vehicli
expenses. In addition the Company was requireéydbi.5 per month as a directofee. During 2009 the Company |
in cash $32, pursuant to this agreement. Regattimgartial payment in options during 2009, seeeNk&d below ar
regarding debt extinguishment during 2010, see N8&below.

On July 8, 2010, the Board of Directors acceptedréisignation from the board of directors of thai@han of the Boa
of Directors, effective July 25, 2010. The Compaegorded during 2010 an expense of $75 relatechéofdarme
consulting agreement. In addition, on July 8, 20tb@ Company entered into a Services Agreement thighforme
Chairman of the Board of Directors and as of tl@edane of the Company’s major shareholders (tleevi€e Provider),
effective immediately, pursuant to which the partterminated the former consulting agreement andealgthat th
Service Provider will provide the Company with oirgp consulting services as may be reasonably reduiy thi
Company, for a consideration of 2% of the Compargross receipts from a major customer and indecatibn o
reasonable costs and expenses incurred by thec8d&txavider.

During 2012 , 2011 and 2010, the Company recordeeixaense of $ 24, $130 and $83, respectivelyctoraance wit
the Services Agreement, which was terminated Onguk012
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NOTE 13:- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont.)

b.

On October 1, 2001, the Company entered into auttimg agreement with a company owned by a formemiver of th
Company's Board of Directors, who was one of then@any's cdounders and a principal shareholder. On Janua
2005, the General Shareholders Meeting approvéest-alia, the following amendments to the consultingeagent

. As of the date of the approval of the General Sf@ders Meeting, the consideration shall be an arthoti$7 pe
month.

. Upon the termination of the car lease agreemeianch 2005, to increase the car lease, to a priagpdo NI
4,200 (approximately $1.1 as of December 31, 2Q&kEluding tax) per montl

In addition, the Company was required to pay $&5month as a director’s fee.

During 2009 the Company paid in cash $22 pursuaithis agreement. Regarding the partial paymewopiions durin
2009, see below Note 13d and regarding debt exshment during 2010 see Note 13e below.

On July 8, 2010, the Board of Directors accepteal réssignation from the board of directors of thember of th
Company's Board of Directors, effective immediatdlize Company recorded during 2010 an expense dfrdlated t
the former consulting agreement. In addition, oly 8) 2010, the Company entered into a Servicesdgent with th
former member of the Board of Directors and ashat tlate one of the Company’s major shareholdées “ervice
Provider”), effective immediately, pursuant to which the partierminated the former consulting agreement amedes
that the Service Provider will provide the Compamyh management services with respect to the Cogigacertail
project for a consideration of (i) a monthly fee$, (ii) indemnification of reasonable costs argenses incurred by t
Service Provider, and (iii) the Company will progithe Service Provider with a cellular phone andatomobile. Th
Company shall also grant the Service Provider optito purchase up to 50,000 ordinary shares ofChmpan'
according to terms to be determined by the BoarDimdctors, which terms have not yet been deterchimethe date «
approval of the financial statements.

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company recordegkpanse of $18, $63 and $38, respectively, inrdecwe with th
Services Agreement, which was terminated On JuB0Z2.
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NOTE 13:- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont.)

C.

On October 1, 2001, the Company entereddntonsulting agreement with a company owned byodribe cofounder:
of the Company

In consideration for these services, the Compary nquired to pay $4.6 per month plus motor vetéglgenses. Durir
2009 the Company paid in cash $15 pursuant taatiieement. Regarding the partial payment in optitumsig 2009, s¢
Note 13d below and regarding debt extinguishmenhd2010 see Note 13e below.

The Company recorded during 2010 an expense oféafd to the former consulting agreement. On 8ul2010, th
Company entered into a Services Agreement with cibounder of the Company and as of that date onehe
Company’s major shareholders (the “Service ProVjdeffective immediately, pursuant to which the partierminate
the former consulting agreement and agreed thab#neice Provider will provide the Company with oimgg consultini
services as may be reasonably required by the Quyrfpa a consideration of a monthly fee of $3 amdeimnification ¢
reasonable costs and expenses incurred by thec8dPvovider in connection with the services. ThenBany shall als
grant the Service Provider options to purchaseouf00,000 ordinary shares of the Company accoririgrms that wi
be determined by the Board of Directors, which ®imave not yet been determined by the date of appuf the
financial statements.

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company recordegkpanse of $19, $39 and $21, respectively, inrdere with th
Services Agreement which was terminated On JuR0Z2

On December 21, 2008, the Special General Meefighareholders approved that as part of a coshgyttan, all of th
Company's nomxternal directors, will join a temporary arrangeingursuant to which the remuneration payable ¢or
shall be paid in fully vested options to purchasares of the Company instead of in cash, effe@gmber 1, 2008, for
minimum period of three months, with an optiontie Company to extend it from time to time for aibdial consecutiv
periods of up to twelve (12) months in the aggregBuring 2009, an aggregated number of optionsutchase up -
478,543 of the Company'’s ordinary shares were gohtd the Company’s noexternal directors as part of the cost cu
plan. The options have an exercise price of 0.08382AS per share, vesting immediately, and williex@fter ten year:

As part of the debt extinguishment plan of the Camp(see also Note 1d) and in accordance with t8eiwvice
Agreement, the abovementioned Service Providersealgto a partial forgiveness of the debts due ¢mntlunder th
former consulting agreements accrued from Octoh20@9 until July 8, 2010 which total amount wag%2nd agreed
repayment in 1,083,071 warrants to purchase orglishares of the Company as consideration for thieeedebts dur
The fair value of the warrants was estimated a$ $IBe difference between the carrying amount efaimounts due a
the fair value of the warrants was recognized egpétal gain. During 2012, 589,737 warrants werresed.
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SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)

NOTE 13:- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont.)

f.

On July 25, 2010, the Board of directors of the @any elected Mrs. Tsviya Trabelsi to serve as thait@an of th
Board of Directors. Mrs. Trabelsi is an officerSigma Wave Ltd., which is the controlling shareleoldf the Compan
and is also the wife of the Company'’s chief examtfficer and the sister of one of the memberthefCompanys boar:
of directors. On May 12, 2011, the special generaéting approved the Service Agreement of the Cogipahairma
of the board of directors whereby, her monthly ## be calculated every month at 60% of the Conyanchie
executive officers monthly cost. In addition to the above considenathe Company shall bear all reasonable cosd
expenses incurred by the chairman in connectioh hétr services and provide her with an automokile December 1
2011, Mrs. Tsviya Trabelsi resigned from the boefféctive immediately and the board of directorstled Compan
approved the appointment of Mr. Arie Trabelsi asriew Chairman, effective December 12, 2011 andedeas th
chairman of the board effective immediately. Thaegal Assembly on December 27, 2012, approved gheiatment c
Mrs. Tsviya Trabelsi as its new Chairman, Her managnt services fees are subjected to the approta¢ mext gener
meeting and are expected to be the same as thpsa/agd by the general assembly on May 2

Mr. Trabelsi serves as the chief executive offethe Company from June 1, 2012, and has servéteashairman of tt
Companys board from December 12, 2011. Mr. Arie Trabedsihie sole director of Sigma Wave Ltd., which is
controlling shareholder of the Company, His managr@nservices fees are subjected to the approvileohext gener
meeting and are expected to be the same as thps®vad by the general assembly on May, 2(

As of December 31, 2012, the Company accrued $228penses arising from all related parties pragdionsultin
services




SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)
NOTE 14:- SEGMENTS, MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
a. Summary information about geographic ar¢

The Company manages its business on the basiseofeportable segment (see Note 1 for a brief detsmni of the
Company's business) and follows the requirementsS& Topic 280, "Segment Reporting".

The following is a summary of revenues from extemestomers of the continued operations within gaphgic areas ai
data regarding property and equipment, net:

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Property Property Property

Total and Total and Total and
Equipment, Equipment, Equipment,

Revenues net revenues net revenues net

$ $ $ $ $ $

East European country ( 8,63 - 7,49¢ - 6,77( -
United State: 217 17 344 24 53¢ 37
Israel 86 76 8C 72 83 73
8,94( 93 7,92 96 7,38¢ 11C

- Revenues were attributed to countries based oousteme’s location.

- Property and equipment were classified based ogrgphic areas in which such property and equipritents ar
held.

(*) Due to a demand of the customer, the name®spiecific country cannot be disclosed.
b. Summary of revenues from external customers oftiinued operations based on products and ser

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
$ $ $
Raw materials and equipme 3,85¢ 5,827 3,827
Maintenance, royalties and project management 5,08¢ 2,10( 3,561
8,94( 7,927 7,38¢
C. Major customer data as a percentage of total §alasexternal costumers of the continued operati

Year ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

Customer A 64% 95% 92%




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)

NOTE 15:- OTHER (INCOME) EXPENSES

Gain on prior years subcontract provis

Capital loss on disposal of property and equipn
Doubtful debt provisio

Gain on extinguishment of debts |

Capital gain on sale of subsidiary

Net total

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
$ $ $
(329) - -
- 6 -
1,59t
(187) (149) (124)
s : (272)
1,08t (137) (396)

* Comprised of the capital gain on extinguishmenwofking capital related liabilities (employees,\dee providers etc.

See also Note

Bad debt

The following is a summary of the allowance for dtiul accounts related to accounts receivableHenjears ended December

31

2010
2011
2012

Balance at Balance at
beginning provision end
of period of period of period
USD
(in thousands)
3,47( (1,939) 1,55:¢
1,55:¢ (1,419 134
134 1,59: 1,72¢




SUPERCOM LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.)

U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)

NOTE 16:-

*

()

FINANCIAL (EXPENSES) INCOME, NET

Year ended December 31
2012 2011 2010
$ $ $

Financial expense
Interest, amortization of discount, bank chargesfaes (*) (425) (1,027 (627)

Exchange differences (57)
Total financial expenses (425) (1,027 (67¢€)

Financial income
Gain on extinguishment of convertible bonds ( 2,23( 2,00¢ -
Exchange difference - 5 -
Interest - - -
Total financial income 2,23( 2,017 -
Net total 1,80¢ 99C (67¢)

In 2012, 2011 and 2010, includes expenses of $82KE, and $586 related to convertible bonds, resmde. (See Not
11 above)

See Note :
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We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgheets of Vuance Ltd. and subsidiaries (the 'fizmy") as of December 31, 2011
2010, and the related consolidated statements efatipns, changes in shareholdatsficit and cash flows for each of the three yearthe
period ended December 31, 2011. These financiséments are the responsibility of the Company'sagament. Our responsibility is
express an opinion on these consolidated finasta¢ments based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBiogUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to havewere we engaged to perform, an audit of iterimal control over financial reportir
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for desigrénglit procedures that are appropriate it
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compsaiyternal control over financial reportii
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An aulibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts and disclosure
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made bypagement, as well as evaluating
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, based on our audits, the consddidafinancial statements referred to above presainly,fin all material respects, t
consolidated financial position of Vuance Ltd. autbsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and 2010thencesults of their operations, and t
cash flows for each of the three years in the peginded December 31, 2011, in conformity with aatiog principles generally accepted in
United States of America.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemleat® been prepared assuming the Company will amsts a going concern. As discu
in Note 1f to the financial statements, the Complaay incurred substantial recurring losses andtivegeash flows from operations and, a
December 31, 2011, the Company had a working dageficit and total shareholders' deficit. Theseditions, along with other matters as
forth in Note 1f, raise substantial doubt about @@mpany's ability to continue as a going concdtanagemens plans in regards to the
matters are also described in Note 1f. The findrst@ements do not include any adjustments thghtmiesult from the outcome of t
uncertainty.

/sl Fahn Kanne & Co. Grant Thornton Israel
May 9, 2012




ITEM 19. Exhibits.

Exhibit Description

Number

1.11 Memorandum of Association of the Compa

1.27 Articles of Association of the Compar

2.11 Forms of Stock Certificates Representing ordin&ares.

4.11 The SuperCom Ltd. 1999 Employee Stock Option PdarAmended and Restated in 20(

4.2(a)7 The SuperCom Ltd. 2003 Israeli Share Option F

4.2(b)7 The SuperCom Lt. 2007 U.S. Stock Option Pl:

4.33 Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Intelli-Bite, Integrated Security Systems, Inc., Vuamee, and SuperCom Ltd.
dated as of March 6, 20C

4.45 Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Business Abseigen Vuance, Inc. and OLTIS Security Systertesmational, LLC,
dated as of January 9, 20:

4.55 Asset Purchase Agreement between SuperCom Ltdnaéy Inc., WidePoint Corporation and Advance Resp&oncepts
Corporation, dated as of January 29, 2(

4.64 ggfgcription Agreement and Warrant Agreement betv&uperCom Ltd. and Mr. Yitzchak Babayov, datedfadarch 22,

4,76 Share Purchase Agreement for the sale of SuperaPacific Ltd. between SuperCom Ltd. and Mrv8teSlom, Adv. as
trustee for an undisclosed purchaser, dated Ocihe2010

4.86 Financing Agreement between SuperCom Ltd. and Sigfaee Ltd., dated March 30, 20!

8 List of Subsidiaries of SuperCom L1

11.12 Code of Ethics

121 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act.

12.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act.

13.1 Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sads-Oxley Act.

13.2 Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sads-Oxley Act.

15.17 Consent of Fahn, Kanne & Co., a member of Grantiitoa, dated May 9, 201.

15.2 Consent of Deloitte Brightman Almagor Zohar & Canamber firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu dated Ap4i 2013.

101 The following materials from our Annual Repont Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, #rhZatted in XBRL

(eXtensible Business Reporting Language) are foeniserewith: (i) the Consolidated Balance Shégtshe Consolidated
Statements of Operations, and (iii)) the Statemeh@hanges in Shareholders' Deficit, (iv) the Cdidsded Statements of Cash
Flows, and (v) Notes to Consolidated Financial Stegnts

1 Previously filed as an exhibit to, and incogied herein by reference from, the Company’s AnRegdort on Form 2@-filed on Septembt
14, 2004.

2 Previously filed as an exhibit to, and incoqted herein by reference from, the Company’s AnRegdort on Form 20-F filed on June 30,
2008.

3 Previously filed as exhibits to, and incorperhherein by reference from, the Company’s Annwggidt on Form 20-F filed on June 30,
20009.

4 Previously filed as exhibits to, and incorpethherein by reference from, Exhibit 10.1 and 16.the Company’s report on Form 6-K
submitted on April 7, 2010.

5 Previously filed as an exhibit to, and incoqted herein by reference from, the Comy's Annual Report on Form -F filed on July 23



2010.
6 Previously filed as exhibits to, and incorpethherein by reference from, the Company’s Annweggdd®t on Form 20-F filed on June 13,

2011.
7 Previously filed as exhibits to, and incorpethherein by reference from, the Company’s Annuggid®t on Form 20-F filed on May 9,

2012.
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SIGNATURE

SuperCom Ltd. hereby certifies that it meets athef requirements for filing on Form 20-F and tihéias duly caused and authorized the
undersigned to sign this Annual Report on its biehal

SUPERCOM LTD.

By: /s/ Arie Trabelsi

Name:Arie Trabelsi
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Date: April 24, 2013
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Exhibit 8
SUBSIDIARIES OF SUPERCOM LTD. AS OF APRIL 30, 2012

Name of Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Percent Owned
Organization

Vuance Inc United State: 100%
Vuance RFID Inc.” United State! 100%
S.B.C. Aviation Ltd. Israel 100%
SuperCom Slovakia A.¢ Slovakia 66%
PureRFid Inc United State! 100%

* Vuance RFID Inc. has an Israeli wholly-owned sdizsy, Vuance RFID Ltd.




Exhibit 12.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANTT O
SECTION 302(a) OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Arie Trabelsi, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 28FBuperCom Ltd.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortémnstate a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The Company'’s other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13¢
15(f) and 15(d)-15(f)) for the Company and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Company, including its consolidatetisidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metiin which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Compamljsclosure controls and procedures and presémtibis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Camyfs internal control over financial reporting tleecurred during the period
covered by the annual report that has materiafsctdd, or is reasonably likely to materially atfdte Company’s internal control over the
financial reporting; and

5. The Company'’s other certifying officer(s) antllve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over
financial reporting, to the Company’s auditors #mel audit committee of the Company’s Board of Dtivex (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cboirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inv@dvmanagement or other employees who have a si@gmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 24, 2013

/sl Arie Trabelsi

Arie Trabelsi
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 12.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT T O
SECTION 302(a) OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Meira Zada, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 28FBuperCom Ltd.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortémnstate a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The Company'’s other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13¢
15(f) and 15(d)-15(f)) for the Company and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Company, including its consolidatetisidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metiin which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Companyssldsure controls and procedures and presentdisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Camyfs internal control over financial reporting tleecurred during the period
covered by the annual report that has materiaflsctdd, or is reasonably likely to materially atfdte Company’s internal control over the
financial reporting; and

5. The Company'’s other certifying officer(s) antllve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over
financial reporting, to the Company’s auditors #mel audit committee of the Company’s Board of Dtivex (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cboirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inv@dvmanagement or other employees who have a si@gmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 24, 2013

/s/ Meira Zada

Chief Financial Officer and Principal Accountingfioér




Exhibit 13.1

SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarba@efey Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of satti350, chapter 63 of title 18, United St¢
Code), each of the undersigned officers of SuperCtun(the “Company”), does hereby certify, to swtficer’'s knowledge, that:

The Annual Report on Form 20-F for the fiscal yeaded December 31, 2012 (the “Form 20-F") of then@any fully complies with
the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of tkehange Act of 1934, and the information contaiimethe Form 20-F fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and lieaf operations of the Company.

Dated: April 24, 201: Is! Arie Trabelsi

By: Arie Trabelsi
Title: Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadwll be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@uammission or its staff upon request.




Exhibit 13.2

SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURJANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarba@efey Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of satti350, chapter 63 of title 18, United St¢
Code), each of the undersigned officers of SuperCtem(the “Company”), does hereby certify, to swtficer's knowledge, that:

The Annual Report on Form 20-F for the fiscal yeaded December 31, 2011 (the “Form 20-F") of then@any fully complies with
the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of tkehange Act of 1934, and the information contaiimethe Form 20-F fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and ltexaf operations of the Company.

Dated: April 24, 201: /sl Meira Zada

By: Meira Zada
Title: Chief Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadwll be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@anmission or its staff upon request.




Exhibit 15.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®egion Statement Nos. 333-121231 and 333-17%#8%orm S8 of our report, date
March 21, 2013, relating to the consolidated finanstatements of SuperCom Ltd ("the Companigf) the year ended December 31, 2
appearing in this Annual report on Form 20-F & @ompany.
/sl Brightman Almagor Zohar & Co.
Certified Public Accountants
A member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Tel Aviv, Israel

April 24, 2013




